



COVER SHEET FOR COMMUNITY PLANNING SUBMITTALS

Name(s) of Submitting Government(s): Norman Park, Funston, Ellenton	Colquitt County and the cities of Moultrie, n, Doerun, and Berlin					
RC:	SWGRC					
Submittal Type:	Comp Plan Update					
Preparer:	🛛 RC 🛛 Local Government 🔲 Consultant: Specify					
Cover Letter Date: 5/12/22						
Date Submittal Initially Received by RC:	5/18/22					
Explain Unusual Time-lags or Other Anomal	ies, when present:					
Inaccurate/incomplete information, above, and no performance errors under the terms of the a	nconformity with the standards articulated, below, are reportable as nnual DCA/RC contract and may lead to adverse audit findings.					
 performance errors under the terms of the annual DCA/RC contract and may lead to adverse audit findings. ALL SUBMITTALS MUST BE TRANSMITTED ELECTRONICALLY USING THE DEPARTMENT'S SHAREPOINT SITE. COMBINE ALL INDIVIDUAL IMAGES, DOCUMENTS AND SPREADSHEETS INTO <u>ONE SINGLE, SEARCHABLE PDF</u> (INCLUDING COVER LETTERS, APPENDICES, ETC.), PUT THIS COMPLETED FORM AS THE FIRST PAGE OF THE PDF AND THEN UPLOAD IT. REVISED SUBMITTALS <u>MUST INCLUDE THE ENTIRE DOCUMENT</u>, NOT ONLY THE REVISED PORTION. EMAILED OR HARDCOPY MATERIALS <u>WILL NOT</u> BE ACCEPTED FOR DCA REVIEW. ALL SUBMITTALS MUST BE CHANNELED THROUGH THE APPROPRIATE REGIONAL COMMISSION. 						
	rendeboad 10					

COLQUITT COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

101 East Central Avenue

DENVER F. BRASWELL Chairman BARBARA JELKS District 1 Commissioner CHRIS HUNNICUTT District 2 Commissioner MARC DEMOTT District 3 Commissioner PAUL NAGY District 5 Commissioner JOHNNY HARDIN District 6 Commissioner



Post Office Box 517 Moultrie, Georgia 31776-0517 Phone 229-616-7400 Facsimile 229-616-7018 www.coboc.com

May 17, 2022

CHARLES H. CANNON. IV County Administrator 229-616-7404

MELISSA E. LAWSON

County Clerk 229-616-7409

LESTER CASTELLOW County Attorney Post Office Box 190 Moultrie, Georgia 31776-0190 229-985-1213

Southwest Georgia Regional Commission PO Box 346 Camilla, GA 31730

RE: Comprehensive Plan Update Submittal

Colquitt County has completed an update of its comprehensive plan and is submitting it with this letter for review by the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission and the Department of Community Affairs.

I certify that we have held the required public hearings and have involved the public in development of the plan in a manner appropriate to our community's dynamics and resources. Evidence of this has been included with our submittal.

I certify that appropriate staff and decision-makers have reviewed both the Regional Water Plan covering our area and the Rules for Environmental Planning Criteria (O.C.G.A. 12-2-8) and taken them into consideration in formulating our plan.

If you have any questions concerning our submittal, please contact Denver F. Braswell, County Chairman, at 229.616.7409

Sincerely,

Dawn Burnell

Denver F. Braswell Chairman Colquitt County, Georgia

DFB/ml

CITY OF NORMAN PARK

P O BOX 197 154 East Broad Street Norman Park, GA 31771 PHONE 229.769.3611 FAX 229.769.3207

COUNCIL

Waylon Stuckey Sandy Hurst

Greg Harrell

Sam Brown

Clayton Sims, Jr.

MAYOR Bruce Norton CITY CLERK Hope Amador

May 12, 2022

Southwest Georgia Regional Commission PO Box 346 Camilla, GA 31730

RE: Comprehensive Plan Update Submittal

The City of Norman Park has completed an update of its comprehensive plan and is submitting it with this letter for review by the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission and the Department of Community Affairs.

I certify that we have held the required public hearings and have involved the public in development of the plan in a manner appropriate to our community's dynamics and resources. Evidence of this has been included with our submittal.

I certify that appropriate staff and decision-makers have reviewed both the Regional Water Plan covering our area and the Rules for Environmental Planning Criteria (O.C.G.A. 12-2-8) and taken them into consideration in formulating our plan.

If you have any questions concerning our submittal, please contact Bruce Norton, Mayor, at 229.769.3611.

Sincerely

Bruce Norton Mayor, City of Norman Park

Enclosures

City of Funston P.O. Box 209 115 West Mulberry Street

1.2

COUNCIL DOBSON STRIPLING BOBBY RUIS ROBBY CLAYTON JERRY SMITH LARRY SOVIERO MAYOR FERRELL RUIS CITY CLERK LIZ CHAPMAN

May 17, 2022

Southwest Georgia Regional Commission PO Box 346 Camilla, GA 31730

RE: Comprehensive Plan Update Submittal

The City of Funston has completed an update of its comprehensive plan and is submitting it with this letter for review by the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission and the Department of Community Affairs.

I certify that we have held the required public hearings and have involved the public in development of the plan in a manner appropriate to our community's dynamics and resources. Evidence of this has been included with our submittal.

I certify that appropriate staff and decision makers have reviewed both the Regional Water Plan covering our area and the Rules for Environmental Planning Criteria (O.C.G.A. 12-2-8) and taken them into consideration in formulating our plan.

If you have any questions concerning our submittal, please contact Ferrell Ruis, Mayor, at 229.941.2770.

Sincerely,

Ferrell Ruis Mayor, City of Eunston Jewell Rues

Enclosures

Funston Georgia 31753 • Phone: 229-941-2770 • Fax: 229-941-2007

MAYOR - POST 1 CITY COUNCIL Audie Perry, Sr. Donald Branch - Post 2 Jackie Castleberry - Post 3 CITY CLERK Vicki Bunn Carey Jackson -Post 4 Javier Martinez - Post 5 **CITY ATTORNEY** Kathy Branch - Post 6 William C. McCalley CITY CONSULTANT City of Ellenton P.O. Box 40, 103 N. Baker Street Ellenton, Georgia. 31747 (229)324-2900 • Fax (229) 324-3372 www.cityhall@ellentonga.com May 17, 2022 Southwest Georgia Regional Commission PO Box 346 Camilla, GA 31730 RE: Comprehensive Plan Update Submittal The City of Ellenton has completed an update of its comprehensive plan and is submitting it with this letter for review by the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission and the Department of Community Affairs. I certify that we have held the required public hearings and have involved the public in development of the plan in a manner appropriate to our community's dynamics and resources. Evidence of this has been included with our submittal. I certify that appropriate staff and decision-makers have reviewed both the Regional Water Plan covering our area and the Rules for Environmental Planning Criteria (O.C.G.A. 12-2-8) and taken them into consideration in formulating our plan. If you have any questions concerning our submittal, please contact Audie Perry, Sr., Mayor, at 229.324.2900. Sincerely, udie Perry, Sr Mayor, City of Ellenton Enclosures

4

P O BOX 37 223 W. Broad Street Doerun, GA 31744	PHONE 229.782.5444 FAX 229.782.5224
COUNCIL	MAYOR
CHAD KIMBRELL	MIKE CAMPBELL
MIKE BLAIR	CITY CLERK
SUPRINA GREENE	KIMBERLY TAYLOR
RANDY DALTON	
JUDY COLEMAN	
May 12, 2022	
Southwest Georgia Regional Commission	
PO Box 346 Camilla, GA 31730	
Carniid, GA 51750	
RE: Comprehensive Plan Update Submittal	
The City of Doerun has completed an update of submitting it with this letter for review by the Sout and the Department of Community Affairs.	f its comprehensive plan and is thwest Georgia Regional Commission
I certify that we have held the required public h development of the plan in a manner approprio resources. Evidence of this has been included w I certify that appropriate staff and decision-mak Water Plan covering our area and the Rules for B (O.C.G.A. 12-2-8) and taken them into considered	ite to our community's dynamics and vith our submittal. ers have reviewed both the Regional Environmental Planning Criteria
f you have any questions concerning our submit Mayor, at 229.782.5444.	ttal, please contact Mike Campbell,
Sincerely,	
Mike Campbell	
Mayor, City of Doerun	
Enclosures	



CITY OF BERLIN P.O BOX 188 283 LANGFORD STREET BERLIN, GA 31722 PHONE (229) 324-2444 FAX (229) 324-2282

Mayor Mark Bridwell

Council Members

Tina Bridwell Gary Milam Scott Merritt Kavla Summerlin

Court Clerk/City Clerk Autumn Roberts

Chief of Police Zachery Fallin

May 18, 2022

Southwest Georgia Regional Commission PO Box 346 Camilla, GA 31730

RE: Comprehensive Plan Update Submittal

The City of Berlin has completed an update of its comprehensive plan and is submitting it with this letter for review by the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission and the Department of Community Affairs.

I certify that we have held the required public hearings and have involved the public in development of the plan in a manner appropriate to our community's dynamics and resources. Evidence of this has been included with our submittal.

I certify that appropriate staff and decision-makers have reviewed both the Regional Water Plan covering our area and the Rules for Environmental Planning Criteria (O.C.G.A. 12-2-8) and taken them into consideration in formulating our plan.

If you have any questions concerning our submittal, please contact Mark Bridwell, Mayor, at 229.324.2444.

Sincerely,

Mark L. Bridwell

Mark Bridwell Mayor, City of Berlin



P O BOX 3368 21 1st Avenue, NE Moultrie, GA 31776 PHONE 229.668.0023 FAX 229.668.0351

COUNCIL COLE POSEY MARGARET MATHIS WILMA HADLEY CECIL BARBER LISA CLARKE HILL

MAYOR WILLIAM M. MCINTOSH CITY CLERK TINA COLEMAN

DANIEL DUNN May 17, 2022

Southwest Georgia Regional Commission PO Box 346

Camilla, GA 31730

RE: Comprehensive Plan Update Submittal

The City of Moultrie has completed an update of its comprehensive plan and is submitting it with this letter for review by the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission and the Department of Community Affairs.

I certify that we have held the required public hearings and have involved the public in development of the plan in a manner appropriate to our community's dynamics and resources. Evidence of this has been included with our submittal.

I certify that appropriate staff and decision-makers have reviewed both the Regional Water Plan covering our area and the Rules for Environmental Planning Criteria (O.C.G.A. 12-2-8) and taken them into consideration in formulating our plan.

If you have any questions concerning our submittal, please contact William M. McIntosh, Mayor, at 229.668.0023.

Sincerely,

linin M. Monte

William M. McIntosh Mayor, City of Moultrie

Enclosures

P.O. Box 3368 • Moultrie, Georgia 31776 • 229-985-1974

Colquitt County Joint Comprehensive Plan 2017

Moultrie

Doerun

Funston

Norman Park

Ellenton

Berlin

2022 Plan Update

Prepared with assistance from:



Contents

Introduction	12
Public Involvement	12
Broadband	
Colquitt County	
Community Profile	
Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats (SWOT)	
Needs and Opportunities	20
Goals and Policies	21
Economic Development	25
Transportation	29
Land Use	
Colquitt County Report of Accomplishments	
Colquitt County Community Work Program 2023-2027	
Adoption Resolution	40
Moultrie	41
City of Moultrie Community Profile	42
Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (SWOT)	46
Needs and Opportunities	47
Goals and Policies	47
Economic Development	54
Transportation	58
Land Use	61
Moultrie Report of Accomplishment 2018-2022	64
City of Moultrie Community Work Program 2023-2027	66
Adoption Resolution	69
Norman Park	70
Community Profile	70
Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (SWOT)	73
Needs and Opportunities	73
Goals and Policies	

Economic Development	
Transportation	83
Land Use	84
City of Norman Park Report of Accomplishment 2018-2022	87
City of Norman Park Report of Accomplishments	88
City of Norman Park Community Work Program 2023-2027	89
Adoption Resolution	90
Berlin	91
Community Profile	92
Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (SWOT)	94
Needs and Opportunities	95
Goals and Policies	95
Economic Development	99
Transportation	
Land Use	105
City of Berlin Report of Accomplishment 2018-2022	
Adoption Resolution	110
Ellenton	
Community Profile	
Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (SWOT)	
Needs and Opportunities	115
Goals and Policies	115
Economic Development	
Transportation	
Land Use	
City of Ellenton Report of Accomplishment 2018-2022	
Community Work Program	
Adoption Resolution	
Doerun	
Community Profile	
Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (SWOT)	132
Needs and Opportunities	133
Goals and Policies	

Economic Development	139
Transportation	
Land Use	146
City of Doerun Report of Accomplishment	149
City of Doerun Community Work Program	150
Adoption Resolution	
Funston	153
Community Profile	153
Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (SWOT)	157
Needs and Opportunities	158
Goals and Policies	159
Economic Development	162
Transportation	166
Land Use	168
City of Funston Report of Accomplishment	
City of Funston Community Work Program	172
Adoption Resolution	173
Meeting Advertisements	175
Meeting Sign-in Sheets	
Appendix	

Introduction

The comprehensive plan is a long-range (15-20 year) statement of a community's vision for development (and redevelopment). By addressing the entire physical environment of the city and the multitudes of functions, policies, and programs that comprise their day-to-day workings, the plan seeks to guide what, when, were, why, and how of future physical changes to the landscape of Colquitt County and its municipalities.

The purpose of a comprehensive plan is to provide a guide for local government officials and other community leaders for making everyday decisions that are supportive of the community's stated goals for its future. The plan should serve as the local government's guide for assessing development proposals, including rezoning applications and redevelopment plans. For residents, business owners, and members of the development community, the plan provides insight into what types of land uses and development are appropriate at various locations throughout the city. Finally, evaluating various local government functions and services, the plan is a point of reference for government staff in preparing capital improvements programs and associated budgets.

The last full Comprehensive Plan for Colquitt County and the Cities of Moultrie, Doerun, Funston, Norman Park, Ellenton, and Berlin was completed in 2018 by the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission (SWGRC). Even though the plan was updated in 2020 to include the broadband element. The five-year update is still required by the Georgia Department of Community Affairs (DCA) in 2022.

The DCA oversees and provides guidance for local comprehensive planning in Georgia. The department's Minimum Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning, as updated on October 1, 2018, consists of the following nine distinct components of a comprehensive plan for all local governments: community goals, needs and opportunities, community work program, broadband services element, capital improvements element, economic development element, land-use element, transportation element, and a housing element. Colquitt County is a Tier 1 job Tax Credit community and therefore according to the DCA's rules will be required to do an economic development element. Colquitt County and all of its municipalities, except Ellenton, also have zoning ordinances and are therefore required to do a land use element as well. Although not required, a transportation element will also be provided by the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission.

Public Involvement

SWGRC's Role

The SWGRC's Planning Department facilitated the 2017 Comprehensive Plan update for Colquitt County and the Cities of Moultrie, Doerun, Funston, Norman Park, Ellenton, and Berlin. Leading community input sessions and Steering Committee meetings, the SWGRC team gathered feedback and guidance from the public and used this information to assemble the Comprehensive Plan and made recommendations that are reflective of the community's desires. The elected officials of each local government hold ultimate responsibility and authority to approve and direct the implementation of the Comprehensive Plan documents.

Public Input and Steering Committee

The 2017 update of the Colquitt County Comprehensive Plan relied heavily on public involvement.

The planning process began with initial public hearings at the county commission and city council meetings on June 9, 2021, and April 21, 2022. The plan requirements were discussed and an overview of the comprehensive planning process as well as various ways the public could participate. Also, a separate virtual meeting was conducted to review the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats (SWOT). At the two advertised public hearings meetings, eight people participated and nine people attended the second meeting. Comments include changes in city council members, county commissioners, SWOT, and additional projects to the community work program. All the comments received were incorporated into the plan update. The cities of Norman Park and Berlin could not attend the second public hearing, but both cities conducted a joint public hearing on May 10, 2022. Eight people participated in the meeting and minor changes were made and incorporate into the plan update. In addition, the final draft plan was sent to contiguous counties and cities for comments and no comments were received.

Aside from public meetings, the SWGRC planning website (<u>www.swgrcplanning.org</u>) and flyers were utilized to further explain the plan process and requirements and to provide an avenue for residents to be notified of meetings and send questions and concerns to the planner.

Following the initial public hearings, a series of community input sessions were held where the public was invited to help identify the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats and from that develop a list of needs and opportunities for Colquitt County and each of its municipalities. The next meeting that was held was to develop goals and policies for Colquitt County and each of its municipalities regarding a variety of topics.

The steering committee was formed from various department heads, business owners, residents, and at least one elected official, as required by the DCA's rules for comprehensive planning. The steering committee members are as follows:

- Tina Bridwell, City of Berlin, Councilmember
- Gary Milam, City of Berlin, Councilmember
- Melissa Weathers, City of Berlin, Councilmember
- William McIntosh, City of Moultrie, Mayor

- Angela Castellow, City of Moultrie, Councilmember
- Peter Dillard, City of Moultrie, City Manager
- Brab Young, Colquitt County, PC member
- Brent Chitty, Colquitt County, business owner
- Barbara Jelks, Colquitt County, retired educator
- Justin Cox, Colquitt County, Director of Compliance Office
- Chas Cannon, Colquitt County, County Administrator
- Audie Perry Sr., City of Ellenton, Mayor
- Judy Phillips, City of Ellenton, Councilmember
- Vicki Bunn, City of Ellenton, City Clerk
- George Saunders, City of Doerun, Mayor
- Kevin Branch, City of Doerun, Public Works/Utilities Director
- Ferrell Ruis, City of Funston, Mayor
- Dobson Stripling, City of Funston, Councilmember
- Bobby Ruis, City of Funston, Councilmember
- Robby Clayton, City of Funston, Councilmember
- Jerry Smith, City of Funston, Councilmember
- Bruce Norton, City of Norman Park, Mayor
- Hope Amador, City of Norman Park, City Clerk
- Chuck Snyder, City of Norman Park, Police Officer
- Stephen Godley, City of Moultrie Planning and Zoning Director

The steering committee provided valuable feedback, guidance, and recommendations about the comprehensive plan and served the integral role of guiding the plan as a document representative of the overall goals of Colquitt County and its municipalities.

Review Process

According to the DCA's new rules for comprehensive planning, effective March I, 2014, each community must transmit the plan to the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission (SWGRC) when all components are complete. The transmittal must also include the community's certification that it has considered both the Regional Water Plan and the Rules for Environmental Planning Criteria. Once it completes its review, the SWGRC will forward the plan to the DCA for review. Once the plan has been found by the DCA to comply with the Minimum Standards and Procedures, each community must adopt the approved plan.

Broadband

The Broadband Element is a required component of the Comprehensive Plan. Colquitt County and the Cities of Berlin, Doerun, Ellenton, Funston, Moultrie, and Norman Park know that technology can make a difference in whether a community succeeds or fails. Technology changes everything. Broadband will help redesign the digital footprint and create a process that will enable communities to meet the demands of healthcare, education and provide services to the citizens. Most communities regionally and nationwide have the highest broadband coverages near the downtown area and these numbers dip as the area becomes more rural. There same can be said of our Colquitt County and its cities. There is a lack of providers willing to provide services and most communities are limited to only one provider. A very limited number of rural communities can afford broadband in the rural areas and have utilized cellular data plans to connect to the internet. A high-speed connection is not affordable for most families. Colquitt County has locations that are 13% underserved. The Cities of Berlin, Doerun, Ellenton, Funston, Moultrie, and Norman Park all have broadband services but would like to improve the quality of services. Colquitt County and the cities are taking steps to address Broadband access or the lack thereof within communities.

On November 5th, 2019, the Colquitt County Board of Commissioners unanimously passed local ordinance ORD-2019-2, the Broadband Ready Community Ordinance, which streamlines the permitting and application process for any Broadband-related projects located in Colquitt County. Colquitt County was one of the very first counties in the State of Georgia to adopt this ordinance. The Moultrie Downtown Development, which receives annual funding from the Colquitt County Board of Commissioners, is establishing a fiber ring around a nine-block area in downtown Moultrie. The fiber ring will provide free public Wi-Fi, as well as security systems and speakers. The project began in February 2020.

In November 2020, Colquitt County became a Broadband Ready community. This designation has helped put Colquitt County in a good position to expand and build upon broadband infrastructures.

Local Broadband service providers, at the urging of local government, recently expanded their digital footprint an additional five miles outside the city of Moultrie in order to reach more rural and underserved areas. The Colquitt County Board of Commissioners, in coordination with the smaller cities of Funston, Norman Park, and Ellenton, unanimously approved the establishment of new cell towers in each of these locations. Although not directly related to Broadband, the establishment of these new towers does provide greater access to technology in rural and underserved areas of the county.



Produced: November, 2021

Colquitt County

The statistical information presented in this element was produced using Census information for 1990 through 2015. Traditionally, data was collected using a detailed questionnaire, now the American Community Survey (ACS) is utilized to collect a smaller sample size, which impacts small area estimates. Making projections is not accurate science, and the best information has been utilized to predict future occurrences. The following predictions offer a basis for population projections. It is assumed that there will be no large-scale economic, political, legal or environmental crisis in the region that would impact Colquitt County's long-term growth. It is further assumed that Colquitt County's economic growth will not deviate significantly, and the County will have the necessary resources (water, power, land) and infrastructure to accommodate projected growth.

Community Profile

All Topics 🗸	Q	Colquitt County, Georgia	
		-	
Population Estimates, July 1 2021, (V2021)			45,812
L PEOPLE			
Population			
Population Estimates, July 1 2021, (V2021)			45,812
Population estimates base, April 1, 2020, (V2021)			▲ 45,898
Population, percent change - April 1, 2020 (estimates base) to July 1, 2021, (V2021)			△ -0.2%
Population, Census, April 1, 2020			45,898
Population, Census, April 1, 2010			45,498
Age and Sex			
Persons under 5 years, percent			▲ 6.6%
Persons under 18 years, percent			▲ 25.6%
Persons 65 years and over, percent			▲ 16.1%
Female persons, percent			▲ 50.6%
Race and Hispanic Origin			
White alone, percent			▲ 72.7%
Black or African American alone, percent (a)			▲ 23.8%
American Indian and Alaska Native alone, percent (a)			▲ 1.2%
Asian alone, percent (a)			▲ 0.9%
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander alone, percent (a)			▲ 0.2%
1 Two or More Races, percent			▲ 1.3%
Hispanic or Latino, percent (b)			▲ 19.6%
White alone, not Hispanic or Latino, percent			▲ 55.4%
Population Characteristics			
O Veterans, 2016-2020			2,087
Foreign born persons, percent, 2016-2020			9.8%

Source: U.S Census Bureau 2020

Colquitt County Demographics (Cont'd)

Housing	
Housing units, July 1, 2019, (V2019)	18,753
Owner-occupied housing unit rate, 2016-2020	62.3%
Median value of owner-occupied housing units, 2016-2020	\$92,600
Median selected monthly owner costs -with a mortgage, 2016-2020	\$1,070
Median selected monthly owner costs -without a mortgage, 2016-2020	\$328
Median gross rent, 2016-2020	\$664
Building permits, 2020	150
Families & Living Arrangements	
Households, 2016-2020	15,865
Persons per household, 2016-2020	2.82
Living in same house 1 year ago, percent of persons age 1 year+, 2016-2020	84.5%
Language other than English spoken at home, percent of persons age 5 years+, 2016-2020	17.7%
Computer and Internet Use	
Households with a computer, percent, 2016-2020	87.1%
Households with a broadband Internet subscription, percent, 2016-2020	73.0%
Education	
High school graduate or higher, percent of persons age 25 years+, 2016-2020	74.6%
Bachelor's degree or higher, percent of persons age 25 years+, 2016-2020	13.7%
Health	
With a disability, under age 65 years, percent, 2016-2020	11.1%
Persons without health insurance, under age 65 years, percent	▲ 23.5%
	G 20.0 M
Economy	
In civilian labor force, total, percent of population age 16 years+, 2016-2020	58.6%
In civilian labor force, female, percent of population age 16 years+, 2016-2020	53.0%
Total accommodation and food services sales, 2012 (\$1,000) (c)	D
Total health care and social assistance receipts/revenue, 2012 (\$1,000) (c)	192,228
Total manufacturers shipments, 2012 (\$1,000) (c)	760,075
Total retail sales, 2012 (\$1,000) (c)	460,046
Total retail sales per capita, 2012 (c)	\$9,971
Transportation	
Mean travel time to work (minutes), workers age 16 years+, 2016-2020	22.7
Income & Poverty	
Median household income (in 2020 dollars), 2016-2020	\$36,799
Per capita income in past 12 months (in 2020 dollars), 2016-2020	\$20,530
Persons in poverty, percent	▲ 20.4%
Businesses	
Total employer establishments, 2019	895
Total employment, 2019	11,646
Total annual payroll, 2019 (\$1,000)	401,649
Total employment, percent change, 2018-2019	1.6%
Total nonemployer establishments, 2018	2,975
① All firms, 2012	3,851
Men-owned firms, 2012	2,067
Women-owned firms, 2012	1,531
Minority-owned firms, 2012	1,371
Nonminority-owned firms, 2012	2,359
Veteran-owned firms, 2012	404
Nonveteran-owned firms, 2012	3,217
GEOGRAPHY	
Geography	
Population per square mile, 2010	83.6
Land area in square miles, 2010	544.15
1 FIPS Code	13071

Source: U.S Census Bureau 2020

Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats (SWOT) Strengths

- Business-friendly
- Progressive and diverse
- Well marketed
- Location along a transportation network
- College of Osteopathic medicine
- Strong agricultural economy
- Excellent rated public safety
- Connectivity to I-75

Weaknesses

- Marketing of Spence field is lacking
- No utility infrastructure in the county
- Lack of higher-paying jobs
- Illogical boundaries with Moultrie
- Low pay to public safety officers (have become a training ground)
- Technology (Improve the Broadband)

Opportunities

- Spence field
- Grant opportunities
- Market Moultrie's Potential
- Alternative energy
- Hotel/conference center

Threats

- None identified

Needs and Opportunities

Needs

- Although Colquitt County does not own Spence Field, they are directly impacted by it. The benefits spill over into Colquitt County from Moultrie. Marketing of the facilities at Spence Field would benefit Moultrie and Colquitt County.
- Wages for public safety officers is low and Colquitt County has become a training ground for new officers that once trained leave for other jobs that pay more. Higher wages are necessary to retain qualified public safety officers.
- There is a lot of confusion with regards to what properties are in the City of Moultrie and which are in Colquitt County.
- Colquitt County lacks utilities which force most development to the outskirts of Moultrie and other jurisdictions which is not necessarily a bad thing, but the County loses out on some potential economic development projects that want to be in the City of Moultrie for a variety of reasons.

Opportunities

- Spence Field presents a lot of opportunities to both Moultrie and Colquitt County, and each should recognize this and market Spence Field to maximize its economic potential.
- Colquitt County needs to pursue grant funding for eligible projects to help finance efforts.
- Because what benefits the City of Moultrie also tends to benefit Colquitt County some joint marketing efforts should be improved and expanded.
- Moultrie and Colquitt County have some large events and some that happen throughout the year but there is no facility available to seat 300 people comfortably for seminars and meals. A hotel/conference center could be an opportunity that could greatly benefit both Moultrie and Colquitt County.

Goals and Policies

Goal: Economic Prosperity

Encourage development or expansion of businesses and industries that are suitable for the community.

Pathways: Factors to consider when determining suitability include job skills required; long-term sustainability; linkages to other economic activities in the region; impact on the resources of the area; or prospects for creating job opportunities that meet the needs of a diverse local workforce.

Policies:

- We will support programs for retention, expansion and creation of businesses that are a good fit for our community's economy in terms of job skill requirements and linkages to existing businesses.
- We want development whose design, landscaping, lighting, signage, and scale add value to our community

Goal: Resource Management

Promote the efficient use of natural resources and identify and protect environmentally sensitive areas of the community.

Pathways: This may be achieved by promoting energy efficiency and renewable energy generation; encouraging green building construction and renovation; utilizing appropriate waste management techniques; fostering water conservation and reuse; or setting environmentally sensitive areas aside as green space or conservation reserves.

Policies:

- We will preserve the rural character of our community and provide the opportunity for agricultural and forest activities to remain a vital part of the community.
- We support new land uses that contribute to protecting the environment and preserving meaningful open space.

Goal: Efficient Land Use

Maximize the use of existing infrastructure and minimize the costly conversion of undeveloped land at the periphery of the community.

Pathways: This may be achieved by encouraging development or redevelopment of sites closer to the traditional core of the community; designing new development to minimize the amount of land consumed; carefully planning expansion of public infrastructure; or maintaining open space in agricultural, forestry, or conservation uses.

Policies:

- Our community will use land efficiently to avoid the costs associated with urban sprawl.
- We are open to land planning and development concepts that may be new to our area but have been tried successfully in other places.

Goal: Local Preparedness

Identify and put in place the prerequisites for the type of future the community seeks to achieve.

Pathways: These prerequisites might include infrastructure (roads, water and sewer) to support or direct new growth; ordinances and regulations to manage growth as desired; leadership and staff capable of responding to opportunities and managing new challenges; or undertaking an all-hazards approach to disaster preparedness and response.

Policies:

- Our community will make efficient use of existing infrastructure and public facilities in order to minimize the need for costly new/expanded facilities and services.
- We will protect existing infrastructure investments (i.e., already paid for) by encouraging infill redevelopment, and compact development patterns.
- We will ensure that capital improvements needed to accommodate future development are provided concurrent with new development.

Goal: Housing Options

Promote an adequate range of safe, affordable, inclusive, and resource efficient housing in the community.

Pathways: This may be achieved by instituting programs to provide housing for residents of all socioeconomic backgrounds, including senior housing; coordinating with local economic development programs to ensure availability of adequate workforce housing in the community.

Policies:

• We support appropriate residential and non-residential in-fill development and redevelopment in ways that complement surrounding areas.

• We will eliminate substandard or dilapidated housing in our community.

Goal: Transportation Options

Address the transportation needs, challenges, and opportunities of all community residents.

Policies:

- Our new and reconstructed roadways will be appropriately designed, using context sensitive design considerations, to enhance community aesthetics and to minimize environmental impacts.
- We will encourage new development that supports and ties in well with existing and planned public transit options in the community.

Goal: Educational Opportunities

Make educational and training opportunities readily available to enable all community residents to improve their job skills, adapt to technological advances, or pursue life ambitions.

Pathways: This can be achieved by expanding and improving local educational institutions or programs; providing access to other institutions in the region; or coordinating with local economic development programs to ensure an adequately trained and skilled workforce.

Policies:

• We will promote and encourage the development of advanced educational programs for all residents in Colquitt County to meet the needs of existing and future industry.

Goal: Community Health

Ensure that all community residents, regardless of age, ability, or income, have access to critical goods and services, safe and clean neighborhoods, and good work opportunities.

Pathways: This may be achieved by providing services to support the basic needs of disadvantaged residents; instituting programs to foster better health and fitness; or providing all residents the opportunity to improve their circumstances in life and to fully participate in the community.

Policies:

• We will promote and encourage the retention and expansion of quality healthcare providers in our community, and we encourage the use of our local hospital network.

Goal: Broadband Options

Make the county a broadband ready community and accessibility to a high-speed internet service to improve the economy, education, agriculture, address the needs, and improve the well-being of the community residents.

Policies:

- We will continue to adhere to the broadband certification policies to remain certified.
- We will continue to follow the adopted broadband ordinance to prevent nuisance that does not conform with the land use policies.
- We will collaborate with broadband service providers to extend a high internet service to unserved and underserved areas.
- We will amend the land-use ordinance when necessary to accommodate broadband installation.

Economic Development

The Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) as developed by the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission under a grant from the US Department of Commerce Economic Development Administration is hereby incorporated by reference into this Comprehensive Plan to serve as the Economic Development Element for Colquitt County and the Cities of Moultrie, Doerun, Norman Park, Ellenton, Berlin and Funston.

The Southwest Georgia Regional Commission's (SWGRC) Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) was designed to bring together the public and private sectors in the creation of an economic roadmap to diversify and strengthen the regional economy. The SWGRC CEDS analyzed the regional economy and serves as a guide for establishing regional goals and objectives, a regional plan of action, and the investment priorities and funding sources.

As a performance-based plan, this CEDS plays a critical role in adapting to global economic conditions by fully utilizing the region's unique advantages to maximize economic opportunity for its residents by attracting the private investment that creates jobs. The SWGRC CEDS is a regionally owned strategy that is the result of a continuing economic development planning process developed with regional public and private sector participation. This plan sets forth the goals and objectives necessary to solve the economic development problems of the Southwest Georgia region and clearly defines the measures of success.

The Southwest Georgia CEDS gives an overview of the region briefly describing geography, population, economy, labor, and workforce development and use, education, transportation access, environment, and regional resources. It reviews the state of the Regional Economy and provides a list of achievable Goals and Objectives for the region, a Plan of Action to ensure success, and Performance Measures used to evaluate the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission's successful development and implementation of the 2012-2017 CEDS. Implementation of the goals identified in this plan is significant to the economic future of the SWGRC District.

Policies, issues and opportunities, and Short-Term Work Program implementation strategies located in the current Comprehensive Plans for each of our 14-county region were used extensively to develop the CEDS Goals and Objectives, Vital Projects and Problems and Opportunities.

Included below are goals and objectives from the CEDS which are aligned with the current economic development goals of Colquitt County and the Cities of Moultrie, Doerun, Norman Park, Ellenton, Berlin and Funston.

Goal: Encourage and increase regional collaboration among cities and counties.

Objective: To increase the likelihood of large-scale economic development projects resulting in jobs and private investment.

Goal: Expand existing industries.

Objective: To increase the potential that existing industries will expand in the region.

Goal: Improve infrastructure of water, sewer roads and technology.

Objective: To increase the likelihood that businesses will be started or moved to the region.

Goal: Support technical colleges within the region.

Objective: To increase the level of education of the region's workforce.

Goal: Increase tourism in the region.

Objective: Increase the region's tax base and local government's ability to provide services and recreational opportunities.

Goal: Recruit retirees to the region.

Objective: Support communities in the region and increase the tax base by recruiting retirees.

Goal: Increase access to capital for small businesses in the region.

Objective: To increase availability and likelihood to access low-interest financing for businesses creating jobs and making private investments.

Goal: Create a diverse economy resistant to economic recession.

Objective: To promote the development of diverse employment opportunities at various skill levels.

Goal: Improve and upgrade the educational attainment levels of the labor workforce skills within the region.

Objective: Develop and support community-based efforts to address improved education levels and labor force skills. Support the continued improvement of the education system in addressing education issues and education skill improvement for the region.

Goal: Provide a well-trained workforce, professional, technical, and skilled, capable of accommodating new industry and maintaining existing industry.

Objective: Improved education attainment by reducing high school drop-out rate.

Colquitt County and its municipalities according to the CEDS...

The population of Colquitt County (including cities) is 45,898, which is a population increase of 400 from the 2010 Census. The poverty rate has grown to 20.4% from 2016-2020. The median household income is \$36,799 between 2016 -2020. Twenty-five percent (25.4%) of the population does not have a high school diploma. With its long growing season and varied types of soils, the county has traditionally been a state leader in agricultural production. Colquitt County currently has the largest farm gate in Georgia. Despite the county's agricultural strength, manufacturing has replaced farming as the largest employment sector in the county. There are six cities in Colquitt County: Berlin, Doerun, Ellenton, Funston, Moultrie and Norman Park. Berlin is a small town in Colquitt County, named after the capitol of Germany. The City of Doerun is home to the Georgia Annual May Day Festival and is sponsored by the Doerun Booster Association. Ellenton and Funston are small towns that are also in Colquitt County. Norman Park is home to the Georgia Baptist Conference Center.

Colquitt County is located within the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission area, a rural and agricultural portion of Georgia. Agribusiness and textile manufacturing remain the most significant contributors to the region's economy. Colquitt County is ranked as the 40th most populous county in the state and is the region's third most populous county, following Dougherty and Thomas Counties. Moultrie is a city of 14,638 in a county of 45,898 people covering 544.15 square miles. Colquitt County also has one of the largest concentrations of Hispanic or migrant workers in Georgia, an important asset to the local farmers. It is estimated the county has between 2,000 to 5,000 migrant workers, depending on the season. Most of these workers are available on a temporary work permit and after five years some become regular U.S. citizens. Migrant farm workers are important to the local economy and are generally undercounted during the census. It is expected that the historical growth trend of the minority population in the county will continue. In contrast, the unincorporated portion of the county has experienced a reverse trend.

The Annual Sunbelt Agricultural Expo is Colquitt County's largest attraction and adds millions of dollars to the local economy. The Expo, held annually in October, draws over 300,000 visitors and is the largest outdoor farm show in North America with field demonstrations, and more than 1,000 corporate

and private exhibitors in the annual event. This event has evolved into an incredible economic development opportunity for the City of Moultrie and Colquitt County.

The Sanderson Farms project brought in 1,500 jobs for the county. That impact has translated into \$90 million of investment from Sanderson farms, more than \$50 million investment from producers in the region, a 30 percent increase in sales tax collections over the past two years and a 7.3 percent growth in the tax digest.

Educational attainment has improved in Colquitt County. A comprehensive effort by the entire community, to include the business community, has significantly improved workforce education and readiness. Results certified by the Georgia Board of Education showed a 93% graduation Colquitt County High School (CCHS) rate for 2015, making CCHS a state leader in that category. The number of adults without elementary education has dropped, as the number of adults with some college or college degrees has grown. However, educational attainment is growing faster at the state level than in Colquitt County. The city of Moultrie is catching up to the state level of adults with college degrees somewhat faster than the county as a whole. Colquitt County is home to Southern Regional Technical College that has over 2,000 students. Brewton-Parker College has a two-year extension degree program, and there is also Abraham Baldwin Agricultural College which is located on the square in downtown Moultrie.

Supplementary Economic Statistics/Data (See Appendix)

Tapestry Segmentation Explained

Tapestry segmentation provides an accurate, detailed description of America's neighborhoods—U.S. residential areas are divided into 67 distinctive segments based on their socioeconomic and demographic composition. The top three tapestry segments in Colquitt County are: Down the Road, Middleburg and Southern Satellites.

Transportation

An integrated transportation system should contribute to a high quality of life for residents and a desirable climate for business. Many transportation issues in Colquitt County are related to the increase in vehicular volumes and congestion. While the automobile is the dominant mode of transportation, the county wants to provide a balanced and coordinated "multimodal" transportation system to accommodate ongoing growth and development. Comprehensive improvements to all modes of travel can help improve the operation and capacity of the road system.

Road Network

Colquitt County is split down the middle by U.S. Highway 319 running northeast/southwest. State highways in the county include highways 33, 37, 111, 133, 202 and 270. Highway 37 comes from Camilla and Mitchell County through Funston and Moultrie on to Cook County and the City of Adel while highway 133



originates in Valdosta and runs northwest through Berlin, Moultrie and Doerun on its way to Albany. Highway 111 originates in Havana, Florida and runs northeast through Cairo and Meigs before ending just outside of Moultrie in Colquitt County. All these thoroughfares are in fair to good condition and are not overloaded with the exception of possible Highway 133 that is being widened to from Valdosta to Moultrie to Albany. The widening will increase the capacity of Highway 133 considerably and will give Colquitt County another higher capacity transportation route for goods and services to travel upon thus increasing its economic development potential.



Source: SWGRC GIS



Traffic count locations and AADT numbers. Source: GDOT

Traffic counts in Colquitt County are highest US Highway 319 with annual average daily traffic (AADT) counts of approximately 5,500 to 6,600. Highway 133 is the next busiest with similar numbers to that of US Highway 319. Not surprisingly, the highest numbers are concentrated around Moultrie due to the amount of development present.

Alternative Modes

With regards to bicycling, Colquitt County has little to no bicycle activity and part of this may be since there are no designated bicycle lanes in the county. Many of the county and state roads see so little traffic however that bicycling by any average adult, at least, would be fairly safe.

There is no route based public transportation system that serves the residents of Colquitt County. While the smaller communities may not need a fixed-route system, there is a need for some sort of affordable route-based transportation system in the City of Moultrie. The low-income and elderly populations often do not have access to a personal vehicle and therefore have limited means of getting around town. This becomes problematic as many essential services such as medical and even commercial are not evenly distributed across the city, requiring some to drive across town for these services.

Parking

The current level of service for parking is adequate for the rural nature of Colquitt County and the parking requirements for new development have been designed to provide more than enough parking for commercial developments along the bypass near Moultrie.

Railroads

Colquitt County is serviced by the Norfolk Southern rail line that comes from Sparks (just North of Adel) through Ellenton, just north of Moultrie and finally through Doerun on its way through Worth and Dougherty Counties to the City of Albany. The rail line provides critical freight transport for a number of industries in Colquitt County and the Cities of Ellenton and Doerun.

Land Use

The Future Land Use Map is a required component for all communities that have zoning. It is intended to be an expression of the community's vision for the future, and a guide to its future development patterns citywide. It is based off of previous Future land use maps with updates added to fully meet the trends of development in Colquitt County and was refined with the help of the public during the public outreach portion of the plan's development. It is intended to be representation of the community's vision for the future. Below are descriptions of categories which are utilized on the Future Land Use Map.

Residential

This residential category is intended to correspond primarily to existing neighborhoods but is also proposed for undeveloped areas adjacent to existing neighborhoods. The residential category means residential lot sizes of approximately 7,500 square feet to 22,000 square feet or more. The primary housing type is detached, single-family residential, duplexes and manufactured homes. This future land use category is implemented with one or more residential zoning districts. Regulations may differ according to zoning district; for instance, manufactured homes may be permitted in residential category but not in another. Furthermore, different lot sizes may be established as may be necessary.

Commercial

This category is for land dedicated to commercial business uses, including retail sales, services, and entertainment facilities and service industries. Commercial uses may be located as a single use in one building or grouped together in a shopping center.

Commercial areas are intended to provide suitable areas for those business and commercial uses which primarily serve the public traveling by automobile, and which benefit from direct access to highways. Such districts are generally designed so that the automobile has precedence over the pedestrian. This area is intended to be implemented with one or more commercial zoning districts.

Industrial

This category corresponds to industrial operations which may or may not be objectionable due to the emission of noise, vibration, smoke, dust, gas, fumes, odors, or radiation and that may create fire or explosion hazards or other objectionable conditions. Uses within this district may require substantial quantities of water for manufacturing operations and may require rail, air, or water transportation.

Agricultural/Forestry

The agricultural/forestry land use designation in Colquitt County is intended for those areas outside of the urban service areas which are associated with agricultural farm operations and associated activities, forestry, natural resource conservation, groundwater recharge areas, and low-density residential development that may or may not be accessory to agricultural or farm operation of varying sizes.

Crossroad Community

Remnants of earlier Colquitt County communities are scattered across the county's landscape and make up this character area. The county has 14 unincorporated communities within its boundaries and includes: Autreyville, Bay, Barbers, Center Hill, Cool Springs, Crosland, Hartsfield, Minnesota, Murphy, New Elm, Pineboro, Schley, Sigsbee and Ticknor. All but two communities (Barbers and Cool Springs) are located along county highways that connect the city of Moultrie to other communities inside and outside of the region. The few homes that can be found in these areas are typically located far apart from one another on large agricultural lots. The communities have few paved roads and the majority of the dirt roads leading to area farms. Sidewalks are non-existent, confining pedestrian access to the gravel edge of area roads. Commercial activities are limited and may not extend beyond a local post office or convenience store.

Development patterns for crossroads communities' areas include Residential developments that incorporate "Corner Commercial" sites, single family homes and commercial centers on appropriate sites. Neighborhood level commercial ventures are allowed and community facilities such as, fire departments voting precincts and community centers.



Produced: June, 2022

Т

Colquitt County Report of Accomplishments

In this section, the projects listed within the ROA are evaluated by the municipalities and assessed. The status of each project was assessed and classified. Four classification responses were used to determine the project's status. These classifications are:

- Completed
- Currently Underway (Include a projected completion date)
- Postponed (Include an explanation of the reason)
- Not Accomplished and will no longer be undertaken or pursued by the local government (Include an explanation for the reason)

Any projects that are not completed and active are moved to the new community work program (2023-2027).

Colquitt Report of Accomplish	ment 201	8-2022			
General Planning					
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source	STATUS UPDATE
Purchase new generator for Annex	2018- 2022	County	\$50,000	General Fund, GEMA/FEM A Grants	Underway - Completion Date 2023
Continue to collaborate with City of Moultrie to provide recreation services	2018- 2022	County, City of Moultrie	\$1,100,000 /yr.	County GF, City of Moultrie GF	Completed
Planning Commissioner Training for at least half of the members every 2-3 yrs	2018, 2020, 2022	County	\$2,000/yr.	General Fund	Underway - Completion Date 2023
Cleanup through code enforcement dilapidated properties	2018- 2022	County	N/A	General Fund	Underway - Completion Date 2023
Semi-Annual/Quarterly meetings w/ all local municipalities to discuss issues and brainstorm ideas together	2018- 2023	County/ Municipalities	N/A	General Fund	Underway - Completion Date 2023
Improve/ Establish Broadband capabilities in unserved or underserved areas.	2020- 2022	County	\$1,000	Grants/ General Fund	Completed
Economic Development					
---	---------------	----------------------------------	------------------	--	---
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source	
Use the Hurst Building to attract new or expanding company to Colquitt County	2018- 2022	County/Develop ment Authority	\$150,000	General Fund	Completed
Secure EDA (federal) funding to develop and construct a business accelerator in Colquitt Co.	2018- 2022	County/Develop ment Authority	\$50,000	General Fund/Grant s	Underway - Completion Date 2023
Natural and Historic Resource	s				
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source	
Establish a county archive	2018- 2022	County	\$250,000	SPLOST	Completed
Community Facilities					
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source	STATUS UPDATE
Jail renovation and expansion of cell pods	2018- 2022	County	\$3 million	SPLOST	Underway - Completion Date 2023
Expand/Improve Sunset Airport facilities and runway	2022- 2025	County/Airport Authority	\$1 million	Grants/ General Fund/TSPL OST	Completed
Land Use					
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source	
Develop an inventory of vacant and dilapidated sites for infill development	2018- 2022	County	N/A	N/A	Underway - Completion Date 2023
Develop a plan for the use of the old landfill for recreational uses.	2018- 2022	County	\$25,000	Grants, General Fund	No longer being considered due to liability & safety issues

Colquitt County Community Work Program 2023-2027

Colquitt County Community Worl		•		
General Planning				
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source
Purchase new generator for Annex	2023-2027	County	\$50,000	General Fund, GEMA/FEMA Grants
Continue to collaborate with City of Moultrie to provide recreation services	2023-2027	County, City of Moultrie	\$1,100,000/yr.	County GF, City of Moultrie GF
Planning Commissioner Training for at least half of the members every 2-3 years	2023, 2025, 2027	County	\$2,000/yr.	General Fund
Cleanup through code enforcement dilapidated properties	2023-2027	County	N/A	General Fund
Semi-Annual/Quarterly meetings w/ all local municipalities to discuss issues and brainstorm ideas together	2023-2027	County/Municipalities	N/A	General Fund
Participate in the development and updating Pre-Hazard Mitigation Plan.	2023-2027	City	\$25000	GEMA, FEMA, Grants
Participate in the development and updating the Joint Comprehensive Plan	2023-2027	City	Staff-Time	General Fund
Partner with Southwest Georgia Regional Commission to develop Age Friendly activities that support the Age-Friendly designation.	2023-2027	Southwest Regional Commission/ County	RC Staff-Time	Grants
Economic Development				
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source
Secure EDA (federal) funding to develop and construct a business accelerator in Colquitt Co.	2023-2027	County/Development Authority	\$50,000	General Fund/Grants
Natural and Historic Resources		· 		
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source
Update County archive	2023-2027	County	Staff-Time	Grants
Work with the Department of				

Natural Resources on groundwater protection	2023-2027	County	Staff-Time	SPLOST		
Community Facilities						
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source		
Jail renovation and expansion of cell pods	2023-2027	County	\$3 million	SPLOST		
Provide funds for to maintain Sunset Airport facilities and runway	2023-2027	County/Airport Authority	\$1 million	Grants/ General Fund/TSPLOST		
Land Use						
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source		
Develop an inventory of vacant and dilapidated sites for infill development	2023-2027	County	N/A	Grants		
Broadband Element	•					
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source		
Review and amend land-use policies to accommodate a broadband installation.	2023-2027	County	Staff-Time	General Fund/Grants		
Collaborate with broadband service providers for the provision of high-speed internet services to unserved and underserved areas	2023-2027	County	Staff-Time	General Fund/Grants		

Adoption Resolution

Resolution 2022-R-6

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE COLQUITT COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

WHEREAS, Colquitt County, Georgia found it necessary to update their joint comprehensive plan as part of the requirements to maintain its Qualified Local Government Status;

WHEREAS, the County Commission held public meetings and hearings to allow private citizens to review the Comprehensive Plan and gathered citizens input;

WHEREAS, in the development of the comprehensive plan, Colquitt County examined, evaluated, and where applicable, incorporated considerations of both the Flint River Basin Regional Water Development and Conservation Plan and the Environmental Planning Criteria pursuant to O.C.G.A. 12-2-8, and;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Colquitt County Board of Commissioners that the Comprehensive Plan shall be adopted, hereby certifying that adequate citizen participation requirements have been met.

SO RESOLVED, this 5th day of July, 2022.

Bunnell

Denver F. Braswell Chairman Colquitt County, Georgia

ATTEST:

Melissa Lawson County Clerk Colquitt County, Georgia

Moultrie

The statistical information presented in this element was produced using Census information for 1990 through 2020. Traditionally, data was collected using a detailed questionnaire, now the American Community Survey (ACS) is utilized to collect a smaller sample size, which impacts small area estimates. Making projections is not an accurate science, and the best information has been utilized to predict future occurrences. The following predictions offer a basis for population projections. It is assumed that there will be no large-scale economic, political, legal, or environmental crisis in the region that would impact the City of Moultrie's long-term growth. It is further assumed that Moultrie's economic growth will not deviate significantly, and the city will have the necessary resources (water, power, land) and infrastructure to accommodate projected growth.

City of Moultrie Community Profile

All Topics	Q	Moultrie city, Georgia	×
		g	
Population Estimates, July 1 2021, (V2021)			🛆 NA
PEOPLE			
Population			
Population Estimates, July 1 2021, (V2021)			🛆 NA
Population estimates base, April 1, 2020, (V2021)			🛆 NA
Population, percent change - April 1, 2020 (estimates base) to July 1, 2021, (V2021)			🛆 NA
Population, Census, April 1, 2020			14,638
Population, Census, April 1, 2010			14,268
Age and Sex			
Persons under 5 years, percent			▲ 7.0%
Persons under 18 years, percent			▲ 26.6%
Persons 65 years and over, percent			▲ 15.0%
Female persons, percent			▲ 50.4%
Race and Hispanic Origin			
White alone, percent			⚠ 44.8%
Black or African American alone, percent (a)			▲ 46.3%
American Indian and Alaska Native alone, percent (a)			▲ 1.8%
Asian alone, percent (a)			▲ 1.5%
On the term of			⚠ 0.1%
Two or More Races, percent			▲ 2.3%
Hispanic or Latino, percent (b)			12.6%
White alone, not Hispanic or Latino, percent			▲ 38.5%
Population Characteristics			
Overans, 2016-2020			623
Foreign born persons, percent, 2016-2020			7.2%

Source: United States Census Bureau (2020)

City of Moultrie Demographics (Cont'd)

City of Moultrie Demographics (Cont'd)	
Housing	
Housing units, July 1, 2019, (V2019)	X
Owner-occupied housing unit rate, 2016-2020	42.8%
Median value of owner-occupied housing units, 2016-2020	\$115,900
Median selected monthly owner costs -with a mortgage, 2016-2020	\$1,116
Median selected monthly owner costs -without a mortgage, 2016-2020	\$396
Median gross rent, 2016-2020	\$654
Building permits, 2020	х
Families & Living Arrangements	
Households, 2016-2020	5,105
Persons per household, 2016-2020	2.66
Diving in same house 1 year ago, percent of persons age 1 year+, 2016-2020	78.7%
Language other than English spoken at home, percent of persons age 5 years+, 2016-2020	12.0%
Computer and Internet Use	
Households with a computer, percent, 2016-2020	83.9%
Households with a broadband Internet subscription, percent, 2016-2020	69.9%
Education	
High school graduate or higher, percent of persons age 25 years+, 2016-2020	75.9%
Bachelor's degree or higher, percent of persons age 25 years+, 2016-2020	18.5%
Health	
With a disability, under age 65 years, percent, 2016-2020	8.9%
Persons without health insurance, under age 65 years, percent	▲ 21.6%
Economy	
In civilian labor force, total, percent of population age 16 years+, 2016-2020	56.5%
In civilian labor force, female, percent of population age 16 years+, 2016-2020	54.4%
Total accommodation and food services sales, 2012 (\$1,000) (c)	36,344
Total health care and social assistance receipts/revenue, 2012 (\$1,000) (c)	155,493
Total manufacturers shipments, 2012 (\$1,000) (c)	376,333
Total retail sales, 2012 (\$1,000) (c)	376,388
Total retail sales per capita, 2012 (c)	\$25,947
Transportation	
Mean travel time to work (minutes), workers age 16 years+, 2016-2020	22.8
Income & Poverty	
Median household income (in 2020 dollars), 2016-2020	\$28,621
Per capita income in past 12 months (in 2020 dollars), 2016-2020	\$18,854
Persons in poverty, percent	27.0%

City of Moultrie Demographics (Cont'd)

BUSINESSES	
Businesses	
Total employer establishments, 2019	х
Total employment, 2019	х
Total annual payroll, 2019 (\$1,000)	х
Total employment, percent change, 2018-2019	х
Total nonemployer establishments, 2018	х
1 All firms, 2012	1,967
Men-owned firms, 2012	1,095
Women-owned firms, 2012	716
Minority-owned firms, 2012	888
On Nonminority-owned firms, 2012	969
Veteran-owned firms, 2012	109
Nonveteran-owned firms, 2012	1,668
GEOGRAPHY	
Geography	
Population per square mile, 2010	873.1
Land area in square miles, 2010	16.34
FIPS Code	1353060

Source: United States Census Bureau (2020)

City of Moultrie Demographics (Cont'd)

Median Household Income 2016 Median Household Income 2021 Median Household Income 2016-2021 Annual Rate Average Household Income 2016 Average Household Income 2016 Average Household Income 2012 Average Household Income 2016-2021 Annual Rate Per Capita Income	\$26,000 \$27,409 1.05% \$41,138 \$44,927
2021 Median Household Income 2016-2021 Annual Rate Average Household Income 2016 Average Household Income 2021 Average Household Income 2016-2021 Annual Rate	\$27,40 1.05% \$41,138
2016-2021 Annual Rate Average Household Income 2016 Average Household Income 2021 Average Household Income 2016-2021 Annual Rate	\$27,40 1.05% \$41,138
Average Household Income 2016 Average Household Income 2021 Average Household Income 2016-2021 Annual Rate	\$41,138
2016 Average Household Income 2021 Average Household Income 2016-2021 Annual Rate	
2021 Average Household Income 2016-2021 Annual Rate	
2016-2021 Annual Rate	\$44,927
Per Capita Income	1.78%
2016 Per Capita Income	\$15,925
2021 Per Capita Income	\$17,264
2016-2021 Annual Rate	1.63%
Households by Income	104.7.7.0.4
Current median household income is \$26,006 in the area, compared to \$54,149 for all U.S. households. Median househ projected to be \$27,405 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households	hold income is
Current average household income is \$41,138 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for all U.S. households. Average hous projected to be \$44,927 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households	sehold income is
Current per capita income is \$15,925 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita income of \$29,472. The per capita i be \$17,264 in five years, compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households	income is projected to
Housing	
	6,322
2000 Total Housing Units	2,833
2000 Total Housing Units 2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units	2,000
-	2,681
2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units	
2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Renter Occupied Housing Units	2,681
2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2000 Vacant Housing Units	2,681 808
2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2000 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units	2,681 808 6,088
2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2000 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units	2,681 808 6,088 2,460
2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2000 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units	2,681 808 6,088 2,460 2,891
2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2000 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units	2,681 808 6,088 2,460 2,891 737
2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2000 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units	2,681 808 6,088 2,460 2,891 737 6,308
2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2000 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units	2,681 808 6,088 2,460 2,891 737 6,308 2,349
2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2000 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2016 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2016 Renter Occupied Housing Units	2,681 808 6,088 2,460 2,891 737 6,308 2,349 3,217
2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2000 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2016 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2016 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2016 Vacant Housing Units 2016 Vacant Housing Units	2,681 808 6,088 2,460 2,891 737 6,308 2,349 3,217 742
2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2000 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2016 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2016 Vacant Housing Units 2016 Vacant Housing Units 2016 Vacant Housing Units 2017 Total Housing Units	2,681 808 6,088 2,460 2,891 737 6,308 2,349 3,217 742 6,423

Data Note: Income is expressed in current dollars Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021. Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (SWOT)

Strengths

- Dedicated municipal staff
- Community spirit
- Ability to work together with other jurisdictions and authorities
- Good schools
- Ample recreational opportunities
- Dive Center
- YMCA
- Small town feel
- Location along transportation network
- Hospital
- Downtown
- A fiber ring has been installed around our downtown area
- PCOM Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine
- Widening of state route 133 from Albany to Valdosta

Weaknesses

- Blighted neighborhoods
- Lower educational levels of residents and untrained workforce
- Lack of higher paying jobs in Moultrie
- Technology (Improve the Broadband)
- Ill-defined service area
- Ill-defined city limits
- Infrastructure in SE

Opportunities

- Redevelopment potential throughout town
- Infill development
- Market Moultrie's Potential
- More nightlife in the downtown
- Stadium near downtown
- Improved connections to bypass
- Commercial growth
- Industrial growth

Threats

- Declining income levels
- Health of the public
- Loss of big industries
- Noise and air pollution from vehicles using I-75
- Drugs & crime

Needs and Opportunities

Needs

- We'd like to promote revitalization throughout our town, particularly in residential neighborhoods and some former commercial and industrial areas.
- We need to promote training opportunities for our workforce to improve our local workforce.
- We need to improve our levels of educational and promote the benefits of finishing school and continuing with lifelong education to attract higher paying, higher skill jobs.

Opportunities

- Moultrie can be described as a full-service city (hospital, YMCA, full range of utilities, access to transportation routes, etc.) with excellent amenities and promoting those benefits and the potential Moultrie has would attract the industry and jobs the City of Moultrie desires.
- There is redevelopment potential throughout Moultrie that could be done to increase the tax rolls and reuse land that already has utilities.
- The residential neighborhoods around town have numerous infill opportunities available.
- Downtown Moultrie (particularly the square) is easily characterized as the gem of Moultrie and there is lots of opportunities for improving and strengthening that image. Bringing nightlife to the downtown would provide an attraction for young individuals and assuage the negative aspects of the small-town feel. Basically, rebranding downtown Moultrie as a destination any time of the day would be a huge benefit.
- One key problem with Moultrie's downtown is the fact that it is relatively hidden in the fact that visitors have a confusing route to enter and exit the downtown to and from the bypass. Connections need to be more visible and aesthetically appealing to and from the downtown.

Goals and Policies

Goal: Economic Prosperity

Encourage development or expansion of businesses and industries that are suitable for the community. Factors to consider when determining suitability include job skills required; long-term sustainability; linkages to other economic activities in the region; impact on the resources of the area; or prospects for creating job opportunities that meet the needs of a diverse local workforce.

Policies:

- We will support programs for retention, expansion and creation of businesses that are a good fit for our community's economy in terms of job skill requirements and linkages to existing businesses.
- We will target reinvestment to declining, existing neighborhoods, vacant or underutilized sites or buildings in preference to new economic development projects in Greenfield (previously undeveloped) areas of our community.

Goal: Resource Management

Promote the efficient use of natural resources and identify and protect environmentally sensitive areas of the community. This may be achieved by promoting energy efficiency and renewable energy generation; encouraging green building construction and renovation; utilizing appropriate waste management techniques; fostering water conservation and reuse; or setting environmentally sensitive areas aside as green space or conservation reserves.

Policies:

- We will encourage new development to locate in suitable locations in order to protect natural resources, environmentally sensitive areas, or valuable historic, archaeological or cultural resources from encroachment.
- We will factor potential impacts on air and water quality in making decisions on new developments and transportation improvements. We will promote the protection and maintenance of trees and green open space in all new development.
- We will promote enhanced solid waste reduction and recycling initiatives.

Goal: Efficient Land Use

Maximize the use of existing infrastructure and minimize the costly conversion of undeveloped land at the periphery of the community. This may be achieved by encouraging development or redevelopment of sites closer to the traditional core of the community; designing new development to minimize the amount of land consumed; carefully planning expansion of public infrastructure; or maintaining open space in agricultural, forestry, or conservation uses.

Policies:

- We are committed to redeveloping and enhancing existing commercial and industrial areas within our community in preference to new development in Greenfield (previously undeveloped) areas of the community.
- We will encourage development of a rational network of commercial nodes (villages, or activity centers) to meet the service needs of citizens while avoiding unattractive and inefficient strip development along major roadways.

Goal: Local Preparedness

Identify and put in place the prerequisites for the type of future the community seeks to achieve. These prerequisites might include infrastructure (roads, water, and sewer) to support or direct new growth; ordinances and regulations to manage growth as desired; leadership and staff capable of responding to opportunities and managing new challenges; or undertaking an all-hazards approach to disaster preparedness and response.

Policies:

- Our community will make efficient use of existing infrastructure and public facilities to minimize the need for costly new/expanded facilities and services.
- We will protect existing infrastructure investments (i.e., already paid for) by encouraging infill redevelopment, and compact development patterns.

Goal: Sense of Place

Protect and enhance the community's unique qualities. Maintain the downtown as a focal point of the community; fostering compact, walkable, mixed-use development; protecting and revitalizing historic areas of the community; encouraging new development that is compatible with the traditional features of the community; or protecting scenic and natural features that are important to defining the community's character.

Policies:

• We will encourage the development of downtown as a vibrant center of the community to improve overall attractiveness and local quality of life.

Goal: Regional Cooperation

Cooperate with neighboring jurisdictions to address shared needs. This may be achieved by actively participating in regional organizations; identifying joint projects that will result in greater efficiency and less cost to the taxpayer; or developing collaborative solutions for regional issues such as protection of shared natural resources, development of the transportation network, or creation of a tourism plan.

Policies:

- We will work jointly with neighboring jurisdictions on developing solutions for shared regional issues (such as growth management, watershed protection)
- We will consult other public entities in our area when making decisions that are likely to impact them.

Goal: Housing Options

Promote an adequate range of safe, affordable, inclusive, and resource efficient housing in the community. This may be achieved by encouraging development of a variety of housing types, sizes, costs, and densities in each neighborhood; instituting programs to provide housing for residents of all socio-economic backgrounds; or coordinating with local economic development programs to ensure availability of adequate workforce housing in the community.

Policies:

- We will eliminate substandard or dilapidated housing in our community.
- We will stimulate infill housing development in existing neighborhoods
- We will encourage development of housing opportunities that enable residents to live close to their places of employment. We will increase opportunities for low-to-moderate income families to move into affordable owner-occupied housing.

Goal: Transportation Options

Address the transportation needs, challenges, and opportunities of all community residents. This may be achieved by fostering alternatives to transportation by automobile, including walking, cycling, and transit; employing traffic calming measures throughout the community; requiring adequate connectivity between adjoining developments; or coordinating transportation and land use decision-making within the community.

Policies:

• We support creation of a community-wide pedestrian/bike path network.

Goal: Educational Opportunities

Make educational and training opportunities readily available to enable all community residents to improve their job skills, adapt to technological advances, or pursue life ambitions. This can be achieved by expanding and improving local educational institutions or programs; providing access to other institutions in the region; or coordinating with local economic development programs to ensure an adequately trained and skilled workforce.

Policies:

• We will promote and encourage the development of advanced educational programs for all residents in Moultrie to meet the needs of existing and future industry.

Goal: Community Health

Ensure that all community residents, regardless of age, ability, or income, have access to critical goods and services, safe and clean neighborhoods, and good work opportunities. This may be achieved by providing services to support the basic needs of disadvantaged residents; instituting programs to foster better health and fitness; or providing all residents the opportunity to improve their circumstances in life and to fully participate in the community.

Policies:

- Creation of recreational facilities and set-aside of greenspace are important to our community.
- We are committed to providing pleasant, accessible public gathering places and parks throughout the community.

Goal: Broadband Options

Make the City of Moultrie a broadband ready community and accessibility to a high-speed internet service to improve the economy, education, agriculture, address the needs, and improve the well-being of the community residents.

Policies:

- We will be a broadband certified community.
- We will develop a broadband ordinance and adopt it to regulate the installation.
- We will collaborate with broadband service providers to extend a high internet service to unserved and underserved areas.
- We will amend the land-use ordinance when necessary to accommodate broadband installation.

The map below shows locations with the City of Moultrie that are served, unserved and no location for a broadband availability. According to the U.S Census bureau, 69.9% of households have a broadband internet subscription between 2016-2020. That is 30.1% of households are not with a broadband subscription. Also, the number of households with a computer is 83.9%. Every community deserve access to a high-speed internet. According to the Pew Institute, nearly 21 million Americans, mostly in rural areas, still lack a reliable high-speed connection.

Broadband is a critical infrastructure in the 21st century and very essential to our education, healthcare, agriculture, economic vitality, and basic quality of life.



Economic Development

The Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) as developed by the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission under a grant from the US Department of Commerce Economic Development Administration is hereby incorporated by reference into this Comprehensive Plan to serve as the Economic Development Element for Colquitt County and the Cities of Moultrie, Doerun, Norman Park, Ellenton, Berlin and Funston.

The Southwest Georgia Regional Commission's (SWGRC) Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) was designed to bring together the public and private sectors in the creation of an economic roadmap to diversify and strengthen the regional economy. The SWGRC CEDS analyzed the regional economy and serves as a guide for establishing regional goals and objectives, a regional plan of action, and the investment priorities and funding sources.

As a performance-based plan, this CEDS plays a critical role in adapting to global economic conditions by fully utilizing the region's unique advantages to maximize economic opportunity for its residents by attracting the private investment that creates jobs. The SWGRC CEDS is a regionally owned strategy that is the result of a continuing economic development planning process developed with regional public and private sector participation. This plan sets forth the goals and objectives necessary to solve the economic development problems of the Southwest Georgia region and clearly defines the measures of success.

The Southwest Georgia CEDS gives an overview of the region briefly describing geography, population, economy, labor, and workforce development and use, education, transportation access, environment, and regional resources. It reviews the state of the Regional Economy and provides a list of achievable Goals and Objectives for the region, a Plan of Action to ensure success, and Performance Measures used to evaluate the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission's successful development and implementation of the 2012-2017 CEDS. Implementation of the goals identified in this plan is significant to the economic future of the SWGRC District.

Policies, issues and opportunities, and Short-Term Work Program implementation strategies located in the current Comprehensive Plans for each county in our14 county region were used extensively to develop the CEDS Goals and Objectives, Vital Projects and Problems and Opportunities.

Included below are goals and objectives from the CEDS which are aligned with the current economic development goals of Colquitt County and the Cities of Moultrie, Doerun, Norman Park, Ellenton, Berlin and Funston.

Goal: Encourage and increase regional collaboration among cities and counties.

Objective: To increase the likelihood of large-scale economic development projects resulting in jobs and private investment.

Goal: Expand existing industries.

Objective: To increase the potential that existing industries will expand in the region.

Goal: Improve infrastructure of water, sewer roads and technology.

Objective: To increase the likelihood that businesses will be started or moved to the region.

Goal: Support technical colleges within the region.

Objective: To increase the level of education of the region's workforce.

Goal: Increase tourism in the region.

Objective: Increase the region's tax base and local government's ability to provide services and recreational opportunities.

Goal: Recruit retirees to the region.

Objective: Support communities in the region and increase the tax base by recruiting retirees.

Goal: Increase access to capital for small businesses in the region.

Objective: To increase availability and likelihood to access low-interest financing for businesses creating jobs and making private investments.

Goal: Create a diverse economy resistant to economic recession.

Objective: To promote the development of diverse employment opportunities at various skill levels.

Goal: Improve and upgrade the educational attainment levels of the labor workforce skills within the region.

Objective: Develop and support community-based efforts to address improved education levels and labor force skills. Support the continued improvement of the education system in addressing education issues and education skill improvement for the region.

Goal: Provide a well-trained workforce, professional, technical, and skilled, capable of accommodating new industry and maintaining existing industry.

Objective: Improved education attainment by reducing high school drop-out rate.

Colquitt County and its municipalities according to the CEDS...

The population of Colquitt County (including cities) is 45,898, which is a population increase of 400 from the 2010 Census. The poverty rate has grown from 26.7% to 27.0% from 2013-2020. The median household income is \$28,621. Twenty-four percent (24.1%) of the population does not have a high school diploma. With its long growing season and varied types of soils, the county has traditionally been a state leader in agricultural production. Colquitt County currently has the largest farm gate in Georgia. Despite the county's agricultural strength, manufacturing has replaced farming as the largest employment sector in the county. There are six cities in Colquitt County: Berlin, Doerun, Ellenton, Funston, Moultrie and Norman Park. Berlin is a small town in Colquitt County, named after a German city, and is considered to be a speed trap. The City of Doerun is home to the GA Annual May Day Festival and is sponsored by the Doerun Booster Association. Ellenton, Funston, and Riverside are small towns located within Colquitt County. The City of Norman Park is home to the Georgia Baptist Conference Center.

Colquitt County is located within the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission area, a very rural and agriculturally oriented portion of Georgia. Agribusiness and textile manufacturing remain the most significant contributors to the region's economy. Colquitt County is ranked as the 40th most populous county in the state and is the region's third most populous county, following Dougherty and Thomas Counties. Moultrie is a city of 14,638 in a county of 45,898 people covering 544.15 square miles. Colquitt County also has one of the largest concentrations of Hispanic or migrant workers in Georgia, an important asset to the local farmers. It is estimated the county has between 2,000 to 5,000 migrant workers, depending on the season. The majority of these workers are available on a temporary work permit and after five years some become regular U.S. citizens. Migrant farm workers are important to the local economy and are generally undercounted during the census. It is expected that the historical

growth trend of the minority population in the county will continue. In contrast, the unincorporated portion of the county has experienced a reverse trend.

The Annual Sunbelt Agricultural Expo is Colquitt County's largest attraction and adds millions of dollars to the local economy. The Expo, held annually in October, draws over 300,000 visitors annually and is the largest outdoor farm show in North America with field demonstrations, and more than 1,000 corporate and private exhibitors at the annual event. This event has evolved into an incredible economic development opportunity for the City of Moultrie and Colquitt County.

The Sanderson Farms project brought in 1, 500 jobs for the county, exceeding expectations of all involved. That impact has translated into \$90 million of investment from Sanderson farms, more than \$50 million investment from producers in the region, a 30-percent increase in sales tax collections over the past two years and a 7.3 percent growth in the tax digest.

Educational attainment has grown in Colquitt County. A comprehensive effort by the entire community, to include the business community, is significantly improving workforce education and readiness. Results certified by the Georgia Board of Education gave Colquitt County High School (CCHS) a 93% graduation rate for 2015, making CCHS a state leader in that category. The number of adults without elementary education has dropped, as the number of adults with some college or college degrees has grown. However, educational attainment is growing faster at the state level than in Colquitt County. The city of Moultrie is catching up to the state level of adults with college degrees somewhat faster than the county as a whole. Colquitt County is home to Southern Regional Technical College that has over 2,000 students. Brewton-Parker has a 2-year extension degree program, and also Abraham Baldwin Agricultural College which is located on the square in downtown Moultrie.

Supplementary Economic Statistics/Data (See Appendix)

Tapestry Segments Explained

Tapestry segmentation provides an accurate, detailed description of America's neighborhoods—U.S. residential areas are divided into 67 distinctive segments based on their socioeconomic and demographic composition. The top three tapestry segments in Moultrie are: Small Town Simplicity, Heartland Communities and Hardscrabble Road.

An integrated transportation system

should contribute to a high quality of

transportation issues in Moultrie are

related to the increase in vehicular

volumes and congestion. While the

transportation, the City wants to

development. Comprehensive improvements to all modes of travel

capacity of the road system.

automobile is the dominant mode of

provide a balanced and coordinated "multi-modal" transportation system to accommodate ongoing growth and

can help improve the operation and

life for residents and a desirable

climate for business. Many

Transportation

12C Small Town Simplicity Svcs/Prof **HS Diploma Only** White Household Housing Visit the doctor regularly Singles **Single Family** Shop with coupons at 40.4 discount stores Go hunting, fishing, \$29k target shooting Read newspapers; watch TV Households: 2,309,536 Own, maintain domestic trucks, ATVs 5 6F **Heartland Communities** Svcs/Prof **HS Diploma Only** White Household Housing Go hunting, fishing; **Married Couples Single Family** ride motorcycles 41.9 Buy insurance from agent Participate in local activities \$41k Listen to country music: watch CMT Own domestic truck, SUV Households: 2,867,687 5 Hardscrabble Road 8G) Svcs/Admin **HS Diploma Only** White/Black Housing Household Play basketball, football, volleyball **Single Family** Singles

Road Network

The City of Moultrie is split by Georgia Highway 37 through the Downtown. As seen on the traffic count map below the average annual daily trips (AADT) along the route vary at



Invest in retirement savings,

- Listen to gospel, R&B, rap, hip-hop music
- Own 1–2 vehicles

stocks, bonds

32.0

Households: 1,493,226

\$28k

3

different points along the route through Moultrie. The highest counts occur just east of US Highway 319 with 16,000 AADT. Moultrie essentially has a bypass around 75% of the city formed by US319, GA33 and GA111.



Traffic count locations and AADT numbers. Source: GDOT

Alternative Modes

With regards to bicycling, Colquitt County has little to no bicycle activity and part of this may be due to the fact that there are no designated bicycle lanes available in the county. Many of the county and state roads see so little traffic however that bicycling by any average adult, at least, would be fairly safe. Moultrie has a lot of sidewalks, but they tend to be concentrated in downtown and the historic residential areas south of the downtown. The City of Moultrie does have a walking trail that was a railto-trail project that is used by many local residents. However, the trail lacks connectivity within Moultrie and does not connect to any of the surrounding communities.

There is no route based public transportation system that serves the residents of Colquitt County. While the smaller communities may not need a fixed-route system, there is a need for some sort of affordable route-based transportation system in the City of Moultrie. The low-income and elderly populations often do not have access to a personal vehicle and therefore have limited means of getting around town. This becomes problematic as many essential services such as medical and even commercial are not evenly distributed across the city, requiring some to drive across town for these services.

Parking

On-street is the preferred method of parking in all of the communities in Colquitt County. Commercial activity centers typically have ample on-site parking for their customers. However, there are very few public parking lots in any of the downtowns in Colquitt County. As commercial activity increases in downtown Moultrie, the parking around civic buildings may become increasingly problematic, as these same parking spots must be shared with patrons of the surrounding commercial entities. Coupled with the one-way streets in Moultrie's downtown, circling the area numerous times in order to find available parking or park a considerable way away from their intended destination may become more common.

Railroads

Moultrie no longer has a railroad in town. It once had a CSX rail line that became abandoned and then became a rail trail. The Norfolk southern line that comes from Ellenton come just north of the city on its way to Doerun bypassing Moultrie.

Land Use

The Future Land Use Map is a required component for all communities that have zoning. It is intended to be an expression of the community's vision for the future, and a guide to its future development patterns citywide. It is based off of previous Future land use maps with updates added to fully meet the trends of development in Moultrie and was refined with the help of the public during the public outreach portion of the plan's development. It is intended to be representation of the community's vision for the future. Below are descriptions of categories which are utilized on the Future Land Use Map.

Residential

This residential category is intended to correspond primarily to existing neighborhoods but is also proposed for undeveloped areas adjacent to existing neighborhoods. The residential category means residential lot sizes of approximately 7,500 square feet to 22,000 square feet or more. The primary housing type is detached, single-family residential, duplexes and manufactured homes. This future land use category is implemented with one or more residential zoning districts. Regulations may differ according to zoning district; for instance, manufactured homes may be permitted in residential category but not in another. Furthermore, different lot sizes may be established as may be necessary.

Commercial

This category is for land dedicated to commercial business uses, including retail sales, services, and entertainment facilities and service industries. Commercial uses may be located as a single use in one building or grouped together in a shopping center.

Commercial areas are intended to provide suitable areas for those business and commercial uses which primarily serve the public traveling by automobile, and which benefit from direct access to highways. Such districts are generally designed so that the automobile has precedence over the pedestrian. This area is intended to be implemented with one or more commercial zoning districts.

Industrial

This category corresponds to industrial operations which may or may not be objectionable due to the emission of noise, vibration, smoke, dust, gas, fumes, odors, or radiation and that may create fire or

explosion hazards or other objectionable conditions. Uses within this district may require substantial quantities of water for manufacturing operations and may require rail, air, or water transportation.

Agricultural

The agricultural/forestry land use designation in Moultrie is intended for those areas outside of the urban service areas which are associated with agricultural farm operations and associated activities, forestry, natural resource conservation, groundwater recharge areas, and low-density residential development that may or may not be accessory to agricultural or farm operation of varying sizes.



Moultrie Report of Accomplishment 2018-2022

In this section, the projects listed within the ROA are evaluated by the municipalities and assessed. The status of each project was assessed and classified. Four classification responses were used to determine the project's status. These classifications are:

- Completed
- Currently Underway (Include a projected completion date)
- Postponed (Include an explanation of the reason)
- Not Accomplished and will no longer be undertaken or pursued by the local government (Include an explanation for the reason)

Any projects that are not completed and active are moved to the new community work program (2023-2027).

General Planning					
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source	STATUS UPDATE
NE Moultrie Industrial Area Revitalization/Redevelopment Study	2018- 2022	City/Development Authority	\$75,000	General Fund/Grants	Underway. 2027
Improve/ Establish Broadband capabilities in unserved or underserved areas.	2020- 2022	City	\$1,000	Grants/General Fund	Postponed - City no longer owns cable company
Economic Development	1		I		
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source	STATUS UPDATE
Corporate Industry Visitations at least once per year and hopefully more	2018- 2022	County/Moultrie	\$1,500/year	County/Moultrie	Underway. 2027
Market all attractions in County in statewide publications	2018- 2022	City/County/ Chamber of Commerce	\$30,000	Hotel/motel tax	Underway. 2027
Market downtown Moultrie	2018- 2022	City	\$20,000/year.	Hotel/motel tax	Underway. 2027
Continue to improve the airport facilities at Spence Field and Moultrie Municipal.	2018- 2022	County/Moultrie	TBD	City, DOT, FAA	Underway. 2027

Natural and Historic Resources					
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source	STATUS UPDATE
Review Historic Design Standards	2018- 2022	City	\$5,000	General Fund	Postponed 2027 due to lack of funding
Housing		l	l		
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source	STATUS UPDATE
Eliminate substandard housing in the areas targeted for revitalization (NW Moultrie in particular)	2018- 2022	City	\$300,000	Grants/Private Investment/General Fund	Completed grant but working on new process
Community Facilities	1	I	I	L	L
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source	STATUS UPDATE
Maintain Storm water management project areas	2018- 2022	City	TBD	General fund, utility fund	Underway. 2027
Continue sidewalk repair/curb and gutter from 5th street SE to MLK and sidewalk upgrades on 1st avenue, 2nd Street and East Central Avenue.	2018- 2022	City	\$15,000/annually	Capital improvement program	Completed
Resurface ten (10) percent of the City's streets every five years.	2018- 2022	SPLOST/DOT	\$50,000	City	Completed
Continue to remove excess garbage/litter during Annual Spring cleanup	2018- 2022	City	\$2,000	Solid Waste Fund	Underway. 2027
Continue to divert C&D materials from MSW landfill to C&D landfill	2018- 2022	City	N/A	Solid Waste Fund	Completed
Develop CNG Fueling Station	2018- 2022	City	\$800,000	Gen. Fund/Utilities	Postponed - Cost effectiveness but will continue to monitor for viability

Relocate Fire Station #2	2019- 2021	City	\$2 million	General Fund	Underway. 2027
Other Considerations					
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source	STATUS UPDATE
Increase communication between departments and surrounding local governments, boards, and authorities.	2018- 2022	City/County	N/A	General Fund	Underway. 2027

City of Moultrie Community Work Program 2023-2027

General Planning						
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source		
NE Moultrie Industrial Area Revitalization/Redevelopment Study	2023-2027	City/Development Authority	\$75,000	General Fund/Grants		
Improve/ Establish Broadband capabilities in unserved or underserved areas.	2023-2027	City	\$1,000	Grants/General Fund		
Participate in the development and updating Pre-Hazard Mitigation Plan.	2023-2027	City	\$25000	GEMA, FEMA, Grants		
Participate in the development and updating the Joint Comprehensive Plan	2023-2027	City	Staff-Time	General Fund		
		Economic Devel	opment			
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source		
Corporate Industry Visitations at least once per year and hopefully more	2023-2027	County/Moultrie	\$1,500/year	County/Moultrie		
Market all attractions in County in statewide publications	2018-2022	City/County/ Chamber of Commerce	\$30,000	Hotel/motel tax		

Market downtown Moultrie	2023-2027	City	\$20,000/year.	Hotel/motel tax			
Continue to improve the airport facilities at Spence Field and Moultrie Municipal.	2023-2027	County/Moultrie	TBD	City, DOT, FAA			
Natural and Historic Resources							
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source			
Review Historic Design Standards	2023-2027	City	\$5,000	General Fund			
		Housing					
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source			
Eliminate substandard housing in the areas targeted for revitalization (NW Moultrie in particular)	2023-2027	City	\$300,000	Grants/Private Investment/General Fund			
		Community Facili	ties				
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source			
Maintain Storm water management project areas	2023-2027	City	TBD	General fund, utility fund			
Continue to remove excess garbage/litter during Annual Spring cleanup	2023-2027	City	\$2,000	Solid Waste Fund			
Continue to divert C&D materials from MSW landfill to C&D landfill	2023-2027	City	N/A	Solid Waste Fund			
Develop CNG Fueling Station	2023-2027	City	\$800,000	Gen. Fund/Utilities			
Relocate Fire Station #2	2023-2025	City	\$2 million	General Fund			
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source			
Increase communication between departments and surrounding local governments, boards, and	2023-2027	City/County	N/A	General Fund			

authorities.						
Broadband Element						
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source		
Review and amend land-use policies to accommodate a broadband installation.	2023-2027	County	Staff-Time	General Fund/Grants		
Collaborate with broadband service providers for the provision of high-speed internet services to unserved and underserved areas	2023-2027	County	Staff-Time	General Fund/Grants		
Other Considerations						
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source		
Increase communication between departments and surrounding local governments, boards, and authorities.	2023-2027	City/County	N/A	General Fund		
Partner with Southwest Georgia Regional Commission to develop Age Friendly activities that support the Age- Friendly designation.	2023-2027	Southwest Regional Commission/ County	RC Staff-Time	Grants		

Adoption Resolution

R07-2022-05 A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE COLQUITT COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN WHEREAS, the City Council of Moultrie, Georgia found it necessary to update their joint comprehensive plan as part of the requirements to maintain its Qualified Local Government Status; WHEREAS, the City Council held public meetings and hearings to allow private citizens to review the Comprehensive Plan and gathered citizens input; WHEREAS, in the development of the comprehensive plan, The City of Moultrie examined, evaluated, and where applicable, incorporated considerations of both the Flint River Basin Regional Water Development and Conservation Plan and the Environmental Planning Criteria pursuant to O.C.G.A. 12-2-8, and; THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Moultrie, Georgia that the Comprehensive Plan shall be adopted, hereby certifying that adequate citizen participation requirements have been met. Adopted on the <u>st</u> day of <u>fully</u> 2022. Mayor William M. McIntosh Witness men Tina Coleman, City Clerk

Norman Park

Community Profile



Source: U.S Census Bureau 2020

City of Norman Park Demographics (Cont'd)



Executive Summary

Prepared by SWGRC

Norman Park Area: 3.13 square miles

Population	
2000 Population	81
2010 Population	97
2016 Population	1,05
2021 Population	1,09
2000-2010 Annual Rate	1.78%
2010-2016 Annual Rate	1.26%
2016-2021 Annual Rate	0.75%
2016 Male Population	50.5%
2016 Female Population	49.5%
2016 Median Age	35.

In the identified area, the current year population is 1,051. In 2010, the Census count in the area was 972. The rate of change since 2010 was 1.26% annually. The five-year projection for the population in the area is 1,091 representing a change of 0.75% annually from 2016 to 2021. Currently, the population is 50.5% male and 49.5% female.

Median Age

The median age in this area is 35.5, compared to U.S. median age of 38.0.

Race and Ethnicity	
2016 White Alone	71.6%
2016 Black Alone	10.4%
2016 American Indian/Alaska Native Alone	0.9%
2016 Asian Alone	0.8%
2016 Pacific Islander Alone	0.0%
2016 Other Race	14.0%
2016 Two or More Races	2.5%
2016 Hispanic Origin (Any Race)	23.8%

Persons of Hispanic origin represent 23.8% of the population in the identified area compared to 17.9% of the U.S. population. Persons of Hispanic Origin may be of any race. The Diversity Index, which measures the probability that two people from the same area will be from different race/ethnic groups, is 66.7 in the identified area, compared to 63.5 for the U.S. as a whole.

Households	
2000 Households	318
2010 Households	356
2016 Total Households	381
2021 Total Households	394
2000-2010 Annual Rate	1.14%
2010-2016 Annual Rate	1.09%
2016-2021 Annual Rate	0.67%
2016 Average Household Size	2.72

The household count in this area has changed from 356 in 2010 to 381 in the current year, a change of 1.09% annually. The five-year projection of households is 394, a change of 0.67% annually from the current year total. Average household size is currently 2.72, compared to 2.69 in the year 2010. The number of families in the current year is 294 in the specified area.

City of Norman Park Demographics (Cont'd)



Executive Summary

Norman Park Area: 3.13 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

Median Household Income	
2016 Median Household Income	\$34,313
2021 Median Household Income	\$40,295
2016-2021 Annual Rate	3.27%
Average Household Income	
2016 Average Household Income	\$46,842
2021 Average Household Income	\$52,478
2016-2021 Annual Rate	2.30%
Per Capita Income	
2016 Per Capita Income	\$15,826
2021 Per Capita Income	\$17,628
2016-2021 Annual Rate	2.18%
Households by Insome	

Households by Income

Current median household income is \$34,313 in the area, compared to \$54,149 for all U.S. households. Median household income is projected to be \$40,295 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households

Current average household income is \$46,842 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for all U.S. households. Average household income is projected to be \$52,478 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households

Current per capita income is \$15,826 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita income of \$29,472. The per capita income is projected to be \$17,628 in five years, compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households

Housing	
2000 Total Housing Units	350
2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units	247
2000 Renter Occupied Housing Units	70
2000 Vacant Housing Units	33
2010 Total Housing Units	384
2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units	268
2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units	88
2010 Vacant Housing Units	28
2016 Total Housing Units	391
2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units	273
2016 Renter Occupied Housing Units	108
2016 Vacant Housing Units	10
2021 Total Housing Units	398
2021 Owner Occupied Housing Units	277
2021 Renter Occupied Housing Units	117
2021 Vacant Housing Units	4

Currently, 69.8% of the 391 housing units in the area are owner occupied; 27.6%, renter occupied; and 2.6% are vacant. Currently, in the U.S., 55.4% of the housing units in the area are owner occupied; 32.9% are renter occupied; and 11.7% are vacant. In 2010, there were 384 housing units in the area - 69.8% owner occupied, 22.9% renter occupied, and 7.3% vacant. The annual rate of change in housing units since 2010 is 0.81%. Median home value in the area is \$74,438, compared to a median home value of \$198,891 for the U.S. In five years, median value is projected to change by 5.05% annually to \$95,238.

Data Note: Income is expressed in current dollars

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021. Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.
Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (SWOT)

Strengths

- Relatively safe community
- Up & coming downtown
- Low ISO fire rating
- Proximity to Moultrie
- Location along major thoroughfare (Hwy 319)
- Good elementary school compared to other small towns
- Local health clinic

Weaknesses

- Sewer System lacks capacity and needs upgrades
- Aging housing stock
- Lack of commercial development along Hwy 319
- Technology (Improve the Broadband)

Opportunities

- Georgia Baptist College
- Commercial development opportunities along Hwy 319

Threats

- Unfunded mandates
- The sewage plant is "fragile" w/ no backups if something happened.

Needs and Opportunities

Needs

- Upgrades to sanitary sewer system and sewer plant
- Newer housing in neighborhoods
- More variety of housing styles, prices, etc.
- More commercial development

Opportunities

• The Georgia Baptist College is a large complex that can function as a number of different things and can bring in a lot of people.

- Opportunities exist along Hwy 319 for commercial development.
- Norman Park has qualities that make it a good community to live including a good elementary school, relatively low crime, low ISO fire rating, a local health clinic and proximity to Moultrie and Tifton.

Goals and Policies

Goal: Economic Prosperity

Encourage development or expansion of businesses and industries that are suitable for the community. Factors to consider when determining suitability include job skills required; long-term sustainability; linkages to other economic activities in the region; impact on the resources of the area; or prospects for creating job opportunities that meet the needs of a diverse local workforce.

Policies:

• We will support programs for retention, expansion and creation of businesses that are a good fit for our community's economy in terms of job skill requirements and linkages to existing businesses.

Goal: Local Preparedness

Identify and put in place the prerequisites for the type of future the community seeks to achieve. These prerequisites might include infrastructure (roads, water and sewer) to support or direct new growth; ordinances and regulations to manage growth as desired; leadership and staff capable of responding to opportunities and managing new challenges; or undertaking an all-hazards approach to disaster preparedness and response.

Policies:

- We will consider impacts on infrastructure and natural resources in our decision making on economic development projects.
- Our community will make efficient use of existing infrastructure and public facilities to minimize the need for costly new/expanded facilities and services.

Goal: Sense of Place

Protect and enhance the community's unique qualities. This may be achieved by maintaining the downtown as focal point of the community; fostering compact, walkable, mixed-use development; protecting and revitalizing historic areas of the community; encouraging new development that is compatible with the traditional features of the community; or protecting scenic and natural features that are important to defining the community's character.

Policies:

• We will encourage the development of downtown as a vibrant center of the community in order to improve overall attractiveness and local quality of life.

Goal: Housing Options

Promote an adequate range of safe, affordable, inclusive, and resource efficient housing in the community. This may be achieved by encouraging development of a variety of housing types, sizes, costs, and densities in each neighborhood; instituting programs to provide housing for residents of all socio-economic backgrounds; or coordinating with local economic development programs to ensure availability of adequate workforce housing in the community.

Policies:

• We will eliminate substandard or dilapidated housing in our community.

Goal: Broadband Options

Make the Norman Park City a broadband ready community and accessibility to a high-speed internet service to improve the economy, education, agriculture, address the needs, and improve the well-being of the community residents.

Policies:

- We will be a broadband certified community.
- We will develop a broadband ordinance and adopt it to regulate the installation.
- We will collaborate with broadband service providers to extend a high-speed internet service to unserved and underserved areas.
- We will amend the land-use ordinance when necessary to accommodate broadband installation.



Economic Development

The Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) as developed by the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission under a grant from the US Department of Commerce Economic Development Administration is hereby incorporated by reference into this Comprehensive Plan to serve as the Economic Development Element for Colquitt County and the Cities of Moultrie, Doerun, Norman Park, Ellenton, Berlin and Funston.

The Southwest Georgia Regional Commission's (SWGRC) Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) was designed to bring together the public and private sectors in the creation of an economic roadmap to diversify and strengthen the regional economy. The SWGRC CEDS analyzed the regional economy and serves as a guide for establishing regional goals and objectives, a regional plan of action, and the investment priorities and funding sources.

As a performance-based plan, this CEDS plays a critical role in adapting to global economic conditions by fully utilizing the region's unique advantages to maximize economic opportunity for its residents by attracting the private investment that creates jobs. The SWGRC CEDS is a regionally owned strategy that is the result of a continuing economic development planning process developed with regional public and private sector participation. This plan sets forth the goals and objectives necessary to solve the economic development problems of the Southwest Georgia region and clearly defines the measures of success.

The Southwest Georgia CEDS gives an overview of the region briefly describing geography, population, economy, labor, and workforce development and use, education, transportation access, environment, and regional resources. It reviews the state of the Regional Economy and provides a list of achievable Goals and Objectives for the region, a Plan of Action to ensure success, and Performance Measures used to evaluate the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission's successful development and implementation of the 2012-2017 CEDS. Implementation of the goals identified in this plan is significant to the economic future of the SWGRC District.

Policies, issues and opportunities, and Short-Term Work Program implementation strategies located in the current Comprehensive Plans for each of our 14-county region were used extensively to develop the CEDS Goals and Objectives, Vital Projects and Problems and Opportunities.

Included below are goals and objectives from the CEDS which are aligned with the current economic development goals of Colquitt County and the Cities of Moultrie, Doerun, Norman Park, Ellenton, Berlin and Funston.

Goal: Encourage and increase regional collaboration among cities and counties.

Objective: To increase the likelihood of large-scale economic development projects resulting in jobs and private investment.

Goal: Expand existing industries.

Objective: To increase the potential that existing industries will expand in the region.

Goal: Improve infrastructure of water, sewer roads and technology.

Objective: To increase the likelihood that businesses will be started or moved to the region.

Goal: Support technical colleges within the region.

Objective: To increase the level of education of the region's workforce.

Goal: Increase tourism in the region.

Objective: Increase the region's tax base and local government's ability to provide services and recreational opportunities.

Goal: Recruit retirees to the region.

Objective: Support communities in the region and increase the tax base by recruiting retirees.

Goal: Increase access to capital for small businesses in the region.

Objective: To increase availability and likelihood to access low-interest financing for businesses creating jobs and making private investments.

Goal: Create a diverse economy resistant to economic recession.

Objective: To promote the development of diverse employment opportunities at various skill levels.

Goal: Improve and upgrade the educational attainment levels of the labor workforce skills within the region.

Objective: Develop and support community-based efforts to address improved education levels and labor force skills. Support the continued improvement of the education system in addressing education issues and education skill improvement for the region.

Goal: Provide a well-trained workforce, professional, technical, and skilled, capable of accommodating new industry and maintaining existing industry.

Objective: Improved education attainment by reducing high school drop-out rate.

Colquitt County and its municipalities according to the CEDS...

The population of Colquitt County (including cities) is 45,812, which is a population increase of 400 from the 2010 Census. The poverty rate has reduced from 26.7% to 26.0% from 2013-2020. There is an increase of median household income from \$32,484 to \$34,514. Fifty-eight percent (58.1%) of the population does not have a high school diploma. With its long growing season and varied types of soils, the county has traditionally been a state leader in agricultural production. Colquitt County currently has the largest farm gate in Georgia. Despite the county's agricultural strength, manufacturing has replaced farming as the largest employment sector in the county. There are six cities in Colquitt County: Berlin, Doerun, Ellenton, Funston, Moultrie and Norman Park. Berlin is a small town in Colquitt County, named after a German city, and is considered to be a speed trap. The City of Doerun is home to the GA Annual May Day Festival and is sponsored by the Doerun Booster Association. Ellenton, Funston, and Riverside are small towns located within Colquitt County. The City of Norman Park is home to the Georgia Baptist Conference Center.

Colquitt County is located within the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission area, a very rural and agriculturally oriented portion of Georgia. Agribusiness and textile manufacturing remain the most significant contributors to the region's economy. Colquitt County is ranked as the 40th most populous county in the state and is the region's third most populous county, following Dougherty and Thomas Counties. Moultrie is a city of 14,638 in a county of 45,898 people covering 544.15 square miles. Colquitt County also has one of the largest concentrations of Hispanic or migrant workers in Georgia, an important asset to the local farmers. It is estimated the county has between 2,000 to 5,000 migrant workers, depending on the season. The majority of these workers are available on a temporary work permit and after five years some become regular U.S. citizens. Migrant farm workers are important to the local economy and are generally undercounted during the census. It is expected that the historical growth trend of the minority population in the county will continue. In contrast, the unincorporated portion of the county has experienced a reverse trend.

The Annual Sunbelt Agricultural Expo is Colquitt County's largest attraction and adds millions of dollars to the local economy. The Expo, held annually in October, draws over 300,000 visitors annually and is the largest outdoor farm show in North America with field demonstrations, and more than 1,000 corporate and private exhibitors this year marked the 38th Annual event. This event has evolved into an incredible economic development opportunity for the City of Moultrie and Colquitt County.

The Sanderson Farms project brought in 1, 500 jobs for the county, exceeding expectations of all involved. That impact has translated into \$90 million of investment from Sanderson farms, more than \$50 million investment from producers in the region, a 30-percent increase in sales tax collections over the past two years and a 7.3 percent growth in the tax digest.

Educational attainment has grown in Colquitt County. A comprehensive effort by the entire community, to include the business community, is significantly improving workforce education and readiness. Results certified by the Georgia Board of Education gave Colquitt County High School (CCHS) a 93% graduation rate for 2015, making CCHS a state leader in that category. The number of adults without elementary education has dropped, as the number of adults with some college or college degrees has grown. However, educational attainment is growing faster at the state level than in Colquitt County. The city of Moultrie is catching up to the state level of adults with college degrees somewhat faster than the county as a whole. Colquitt County is home to Southern Regional Technical College that has over 2,000 students. Brewton-Parker has a 2-year extension degree program, and also Abraham Baldwin Agricultural College which is located on the square in downtown Moultrie.

Supplementary Economic Statistics/Data (See Appendix)

Tapestry Segments Explained

Tapestry segmentation provides an accurate, detailed description of America's neighborhoods—U.S. residential areas are divided into 67 distinctive segments based on their socioeconomic and demographic composition. The top three tapestry segments in Norman Park are: Down the Road, Southern Satellites and Top Tier.



Transportation

An integrated transportation system should contribute to a high quality of life for residents and a desirable climate for business. Some transportation issues in Norman Park are related to the increase in vehicular volumes and congestion. While the automobile is the dominant mode of transportation, the city wants to provide a balanced and coordinated "multi-modal" transportation system to accommodate ongoing growth and development. Comprehensive improvements to all modes of travel can help improve the operation and capacity of the road system.

Road Network

U.S. Hwy 319 bisects Norman Park and is by far the busiest route in town. Although no traffic counts are available from within the city limits, counts nearby indicate approximately 6,000 Annual Average Daily Trips (AADT) through Norman Park.



Alternative Modes

The road network in Norman Park is largely a simple grid pattern. Sidewalks are available on some of the streets particularly in the downtown and older residential areas and out to the Elementary school. There are no dedicated bicycle lanes in Norman Park, but residents find that most city streets have very low traffic and can provide a fairly safe avenue for cycling.

Colquitt County is a member of the Southwest Georgia Regional Rural Transit System. Transit buses are available for all residents of Colquitt County, Doerun, Norman Park, Ellenton, Moultrie, Berlin and Funston. The transit system provides transport to anywhere in the region for a fee based on mileage. Users must call to schedule a pickup by 3 pm the day before their scheduled trip. This service has proven to be very beneficial for those that do not drive. Typically, elderly or those that do not have a license have utilized the service for daily life activities including grocery shopping and doctor's appointments.

Parking

On-street is the preferred method of parking in Norman Park. As Norman Park's downtown begins to see a potential resurgence lack of parking may become an issue in the future where a public parking lot may be needed. The current level of parking is adequate for the City of Norman Park at this time.

Railroad

There is no railroad in the City of Norman Park.

Land Use

The Future Land Use Map is a required component for all communities that have zoning. It is intended to be an expression of the community's vision for the future, and a guide to its future development patterns citywide. It is based off of previous Future land use maps with updates added to fully meet the trends of development in Norman Park and was refined with the help of the public during the public outreach portion of the plan's development. It is intended to be representation of the community's vision for the future. Below are descriptions of categories which are utilized on the Future Land Use Map.

Residential

This residential category is intended to correspond primarily to existing urban neighborhoods but is also proposed for undeveloped areas adjacent to existing urban neighborhoods. Residential means residential development ranging from approximately three to five (3-5) units per acre (i.e., lot sizes minimum of approximately 8,000 square feet to 10,000 square feet). The primary housing type is detached, single-family residential, though other housing types such as duplexes and manufactured homes may be allowed by applicable zoning regulations under certain circumstances. This future land use category is implemented with one or more residential zoning districts. Regulations may differ according to zoning district; for instance, manufactured homes may be permitted in one residential category but not in another. Furthermore, different lot sizes may be established as may be necessary.

Commercial

This category is for land dedicated to non-industrial business uses, including retail sales, services, and entertainment facilities. Commercial uses may be located as a single use in one building or grouped together in a shopping center.

Given the small rural nature of Norman Park, one category can fulfill the needs of encompassing both highway and downtown commercial uses. The Norman Park zoning ordinance has three different zoning classifications for commercial and a commercial planned unit development district that will place development in the appropriate locations.

Industrial

This category corresponds to industrial operations which may or may not be objectionable due to the emission of noise, vibration, smoke, dust, gas, fumes, odors, or radiation and that may create fire or explosion hazards or other objectionable conditions. Uses within this district may require substantial quantities of water for manufacturing operations and may require rail, air, or water transportation.

Agricultural

The agricultural land use designation in Norman Park is intended for those areas outside of the urban service areas which are associated with agricultural farm operations and associated activities, forestry, natural resource conservation, groundwater recharge areas, and low-density residential development that may or may not be accessory to agricultural or farm operation of varying sizes.



City of Norman Park Report of Accomplishment 2018-2022

In this section, the projects listed within the ROA are evaluated by the municipalities and assessed. The status of each project was assessed and classified. Four classification responses were used to determine the project's status. These classifications are:

- Completed
- Currently Underway (Include a projected completion date)
- Postponed (Include an explanation of the reason)
- Not Accomplished and will no longer be undertaken or pursued by the local government (Include an explanation for the reason)

Any projects that are not completed and active are moved to the new community work program (2023-2027).

City of Norman Park Report of Accomplishments

Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source	STATUS (COMPLETED, UNDERWAY, POSTPONED, NOT ACCOMPLISHED)
Improve/ Establish Broadband capabilities in unserved or underserved	2020- 2022	City	\$1,000	Grants/General Fund	Underway. Projected completion date 2027.
Economic Development					
Investigate ways to market the City of Norman Park as a great place to live.	2018- 2022	City	\$3,000	General Fund	Underway. Projected completion date 2027
Try and redevelop or find a new tenant for the Georgia Baptist College	2018- 2022	City	Staff time	General Fund	Completed
Community Facilities					
Upgrade sewer system and sewer plant	2018- 2022	City	\$150,000	General Fund, Grants	Underway. Improvements and repairs are completed when necessary or when available funding allows.
Housing					
Pursue grants and loans that would make possible rehabilitation projects for elderly homeowners	2018- 2022	City	\$10,000/y r.	General Fund	Underway. Grants and other forms of funding are pursued when they become available. Completion date 2027
Demolish substandard housing in neighborhoods	2018- 2022	City	\$10,000/y r.	General Fund	Underway. Projected completion date 2027.
Land Use					
Identify areas along Hwy 319 for rezoning to encourage commercial development	2018	City, RC	\$1,000	General Fund	Underway. Areas have been identified, and commercial development is encouraged. 2027

City of Norman Park Community Work Program 2023-2027

General Planning				
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source
Partner with Southwest Georgia Regional Commission to develop Age Friendly activities that support the Age-Friendly designation.	2023-2027	Southwest Regional Commission/ County	RC Staff- Time	Grants
Participate in the development and updating Pre-Hazard Mitigation Plan	2023-2027	City	\$25000	GEMA, FEMA, Grants
Participate in the development and updating the Joint Comprehensive Plan	2023-2027	City	Staff-Time	General Fund
Economic Development				
Investigate ways to market the City of Norman Park as a great place to live.	2023-2027	City	\$3,000	General Fund
Community Facilities	1		1	<u> </u>
Upgrade sewer system, water and sewer plant.	2023-2027	City	\$6 Million	General Fund, Grants, Ioans
Housing				
Pursue grants and loans that would make possible rehabilitation projects for elderly homeowners	2023-2027	City	\$10,000/yr.	General Fund, Grants
Demolish non-historical substandard or dilapidated structures that failed to meet building codes and regulation.	2023-2027	City	\$10,000/yr.	General Fund
Pursue grants to rehabilitate substandard houses.	2023-2027	City	\$400,000	Grants
Land Use				
Identify areas along Hwy 319 for rezoning to encourage commercial development	2023-2027	City, RC	\$1,000	General Fund
Broadband Element	1	1	1	1
Collaborate with broadband providers to Improve/ Establish Broadband capabilities in unserved or underserved areas.	2023-2027	City	\$1.5M	Grants
Develop a broadband ordinance and adopt it to accommodate and regulate broadband installation.	2023-2027	City	Staff Time	Grants/General Fund

Adoption Resolution



Berlin

Community Profile



Source: U.S Census Bureau 2020

Community Profile



Executive Summary

Prepared by SWGRC

A	0 75		mailer
Area:	0.75	square	miles

Berlin

Population	
2000 Population	514
2010 Population	551
2016 Population	417
2021 Population	386
2000-2010 Annual Rate	0.70%
2010-2016 Annual Rate	-4.36%
2016-2021 Annual Rate	-1.53%
2016 Male Population	51.1%
2016 Female Population	48.9%
2016 Median Age	38.6

In the identified area, the current year population is 417. In 2010, the Census count in the area was 551. The rate of change since 2010 was -4.36% annually. The five-year projection for the population in the area is 386 representing a change of -1.53% annually from 2016 to 2021. Currently, the population is 51.1% male and 48.9% female.

Median Age

The median age in this area is 38.6, compared to U.S. median age of 38.0.	
Race and Ethnicity	
2016 White Alone	74.1%
2016 Black Alone	9.1%
2016 American Indian/Alaska Native Alone	0.7%
2016 Asian Alone	1.2%
2016 Pacific Islander Alone	0.0%
2016 Other Race	13.7%
2016 Two or More Races	1.2%
2016 Hispanic Origin (Any Race)	18.5%

Persons of Hispanic origin represent 18.5% of the population in the identified area compared to 17.9% of the U.S. population. Persons of Hispanic Origin may be of any race. The Diversity Index, which measures the probability that two people from the same area will be from different race/ethnic groups, is 61.0 in the identified area, compared to 63.5 for the U.S. as a whole.

Households	
2000 Households	182
2010 Households	196
2016 Total Households	148
2021 Total Households	136
2000-2010 Annual Rate	0.74%
2010-2016 Annual Rate	-4.39%
2016-2021 Annual Rate	-1.68%
2016 Average Household Size	2.82

The household count in this area has changed from 196 in 2010 to 148 in the current year, a change of -4.39% annually. The five-year projection of households is 136, a change of -1.68% annually from the current year total. Average household size is currently 2.82, compared to 2.81 in the year 2010. The number of families in the current year is 107 in the specified area.

Data Note: Income is expressed in current dollars Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021. Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

City of Berlin Demographics (Cont'd)



Executive Summary

Berlin Area: 0.75 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

Median Household Income	
2016 Median Household Income	\$31,007
2021 Median Household Income	\$36,325
2016-2021 Annual Rate	3.22%
Average Household Income	
2016 Average Household Income	\$50,810
2021 Average Household Income	\$58,996
2016-2021 Annual Rate	3.03%
Per Capita Income	
2016 Per Capita Income	\$18,847
2021 Per Capita Income	\$21,724
2016-2021 Annual Rate	2.88%
Henry helds he was seen	

Households by Income

Current median household income is \$31,007 in the area, compared to \$54,149 for all U.S. households. Median household income is projected to be \$36,325 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households

Current average household income is \$50,810 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for all U.S. households. Average household income is projected to be \$58,996 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households

Current per capita income is \$18,847 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita income of \$29,472. The per capita income is projected to be \$21,724 in five years, compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households

Housing	
2000 Total Housing Units	231
2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units	155
2000 Renter Occupied Housing Units	27
2000 Vacant Housing Units	49
2010 Total Housing Units	236
2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units	144
2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units	52
2010 Vacant Housing Units	40
2016 Total Housing Units	236
2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units	103
2016 Renter Occupied Housing Units	44
2016 Vacant Housing Units	88
2021 Total Housing Units	236
2021 Owner Occupied Housing Units	98
2021 Renter Occupied Housing Units	39
2021 Vacant Housing Units	100

Currently, 43.6% of the 236 housing units in the area are owner occupied; 18.6%, renter occupied; and 37.3% are vacant. Currently, in the U.S., 55.4% of the housing units in the area are owner occupied; 32.9% are renter occupied; and 11.7% are vacant. In 2010, there were 236 housing units in the area - 61.0% owner occupied, 22.0% renter occupied, and 16.9% vacant. The annual rate of change in housing units since 2010 is 0.00%. Median home value in the area is \$79,000, compared to a median home value of \$198,891 for the U.S. In five years, median value is projected to change by 3.33% annually to \$93,056.

Data Note: Income is expressed in current dollars Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021. Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (SWOT)

Strengths

- Unity of the community
- Low crime rate
- Local Fire Department
- Local EMT station
- Location along major thoroughfare (Hwy 133)
- Available land
- Cheap utilities
- Affordable housing

Weaknesses

- No grocery store
- Lack of sewer
- Lack of commercial development
- Technology (Improve the Broadband)

Opportunities

- Commercial development potential along Hwy 133 after widening
- Rorey Davis Memorial Park changes/updates

Threats

- None identified

Needs and Opportunities

Needs

- Berlin needs a sewer system top help attract commercial development.
- More commercial development particularly along Hwy 133.
- Grocery store

Opportunities

- Market the strengths of the small town (sense of community, low crime, local fire/ems, cheap utilities, etc.) to bring residents and commercial development.
- Opportunities exist along Hwy 133 for commercial development. The 4-laning should provide more traffic along the roadway and increase the potential for commercial development.
- Making upgrades to Rorey Davis Memorial Park will increase its usability by the community.

Goals and Policies

Goal: Economic Prosperity

Encourage development or expansion of businesses and industries that are suitable for the community.

Policies:

• Our decisions on new development will contribute to, not take away from, our community's character and sense of place.

Goal: Local Preparedness

Identify and put in place the prerequisites for the type of future the community seeks to achieve. These prerequisites might include infrastructure (roads, water and sewer) to support or direct new growth; ordinances and regulations to manage growth as desired; leadership and staff capable of responding to opportunities and managing new challenges; or undertaking an all-hazards approach to disaster preparedness and response.

Policies:

• We will ensure that new development does not cause a decline in existing levels of service for the community's residents and employers.

Goal: Sense of Place

Protect and enhance the community's unique qualities. Maintain the downtown as a focal point of the community; fostering compact, walkable, mixed-use development; protecting and revitalizing historic areas of the community; encouraging new development that is compatible with the traditional features of the community; or protecting scenic and natural features that are important to defining the community's character.

Policies:

• We will encourage the development of downtown as a vibrant center of the community in order to improve overall attractiveness and local quality of life.

Goal: Housing Options

Promote an adequate range of safe, affordable, inclusive, and resource efficient housing in the community. This may be achieved by encouraging development of a variety of housing types, sizes, costs, and densities in each neighborhood; instituting programs to provide housing for residents of all socio-economic backgrounds; or coordinating with local economic development programs to ensure availability of adequate workforce housing in the community.

Policies:

- We will eliminate substandard or dilapidated housing in our community.
- We will increase opportunities for low-to-moderate income families to move into affordable owner-occupied housing.

Goal: Community Health

Ensure that all community residents, regardless of age, ability, or income, have access to critical goods and services, safe and clean neighborhoods, and good work opportunities. This may be achieved by providing services to support the basic needs of disadvantaged residents; instituting programs to foster better health and fitness; or providing all residents the opportunity to improve their circumstances in life and to fully participate in the community.

Policies:

- We are committed to creating walkable, safe, and attractive neighborhoods throughout the community, where people have easy access to schools, parks, and necessary services (grocery store, drug store) without having to travel by car.
- We are committed to providing pleasant, accessible public gathering places and parks throughout the community.
- We will invest in parks and open space to enhance the quality of life for our citizens.

Goal: Broadband Options

Make Berlin City a broadband ready community and accessibility to a high-speed internet service to improve the economy, education, agriculture, address the needs, and improve the well-being of the community residents.

Policies:

- We will be a broadband certified community.
- We will develop a broadband ordinance and adopt it to regulate the installation.
- We will collaborate with broadband service providers to extend a high-speed internet service to unserved and underserved areas.
- We will amend the land-use ordinance when necessary to accommodate broadband installation.



Economic Development

The Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) as developed by the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission under a grant from the US Department of Commerce Economic Development Administration is hereby incorporated by reference into this Comprehensive Plan to serve as the Economic Development Element for Colquitt County and the Cities of Moultrie, Doerun, Norman Park, Ellenton, Berlin and Funston.

The Southwest Georgia Regional Commission's (SWGRC) Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) was designed to bring together the public and private sectors in the creation of an economic roadmap to diversify and strengthen the regional economy. The SWGRC CEDS analyzed the regional economy and serves as a guide for establishing regional goals and objectives, a regional plan of action, and the investment priorities and funding sources.

As a performance-based plan, this CEDS plays a critical role in adapting to global economic conditions by fully utilizing the region's unique advantages to maximize economic opportunity for its residents by attracting the private investment that creates jobs. The SWGRC CEDS is a regionally owned strategy that is the result of a continuing economic development planning process developed with regional public and private sector participation. This plan sets forth the goals and objectives necessary to solve the economic development problems of the Southwest Georgia region and clearly defines the measures of success.

The Southwest Georgia CEDS gives an overview of the region briefly describing geography, population, economy, labor, and workforce development and use, education, transportation access, environment, and regional resources. It reviews the state of the Regional Economy and provides a list of achievable Goals and Objectives for the region, a Plan of Action to ensure success, and Performance Measures used to evaluate the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission's successful development and implementation of the 2012-2017 CEDS. Implementation of the goals identified in this plan is significant to the economic future of the SWGRC District.

Policies, issues and opportunities, and Short-Term Work Program implementation strategies located in the current Comprehensive Plans for each of our 14-county region were used extensively to develop the CEDS Goals and Objectives, Vital Projects and Problems and Opportunities.

Included below are goals and objectives from the CEDS which are aligned with the current economic development goals of Colquitt County and the Cities of Moultrie, Doerun, Norman Park, Ellenton, Berlin and Funston.

Goal: Encourage and increase regional collaboration among cities and counties.

Objective: To increase the likelihood of large-scale economic development projects resulting in jobs and private investment.

Goal: Expand existing industries.

Objective: To increase the potential that existing industries will expand in the region.

Goal: Improve infrastructure of water, sewer roads and technology.

Objective: To increase the likelihood that businesses will be started or moved to the region.

Goal: Support technical colleges within the region.

Objective: To increase the level of education of the region's workforce.

Goal: Increase tourism in the region.

Objective: Increase the region's tax base and local government's ability to provide services and recreational opportunities.

Goal: Recruit retirees to the region.

Objective: Support communities in the region and increase the tax base by recruiting retirees.

Goal: Increase access to capital for small businesses in the region.

Objective: To increase availability and likelihood to access low-interest financing for businesses creating jobs and making private investments.

Goal: Create a diverse economy resistant to economic recession.

Objective: To promote the development of diverse employment opportunities at various skill levels.

Goal: Improve and upgrade the educational attainment levels of the labor workforce skills within the region.

Objective: Develop and support community-based efforts to address improved education levels and labor force skills. Support the continued improvement of the education system in addressing education issues and education skill improvement for the region.

Goal: Provide a well-trained workforce, professional, technical and skilled, capable of accommodating new industry and maintaining existing industry.

Objective: Improved education attainment by reducing high school drop-out rate.

Colquitt County and its municipalities according to the CEDS...

The population of Colquitt County (including cities) is 45,898 which is a population increase of 400 from the 2010 Census. The poverty rate has reduced from 26.7% to 22.8% from 2013-2020. The median household income has also increased from \$32,484 to \$40,536 based on U.S Census 2020. Fifty-six percent (56.9%) of the population does not have a high school diploma. With its long growing season and varied types of soils, the county has traditionally been a state leader in agricultural production. Colquitt County currently has the largest farm gate in Georgia. Despite the county's agricultural strength, manufacturing has replaced farming as the largest employment sector in the county. There are six cities in Colquitt County; Berlin, Doerun, Ellenton, Funston, Moultrie and Norman Park. Berlin is a small town in Colquitt County, named after a German city, and is considered to be a speed trap. The City of Doerun is home to the GA Annual May Day Festival and is sponsored by the Doerun Booster Association. Ellenton, Funston, and Riverside are small towns located within Colquitt County. The City of Norman Park is home to the Georgia Baptist Conference Center.

Colquitt County is located within the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission area, a very rural and agriculturally oriented portion of Georgia. Agribusiness and textile manufacturing remain the most significant contributors to the region's economy. Colquitt County is ranked as the 40th most populous county in the state and is the region's third most populous county, following Dougherty and Thomas Counties. Moultrie is a city of 14,638 in a county of 45,898 people covering 544.15 square miles. Colquitt County also has one of the largest concentrations of Hispanic or migrant workers in Georgia, an important asset to the local farmers. It is estimated the county has between 2,000 to 5,000 migrant workers, depending on the season. The majority of these workers are available on a temporary work permit and after five years some become regular U.S. citizens. Migrant farm workers are important to the local economy and are generally undercounted during the census. It is expected that the historical growth trend of the minority population in the county will continue. In contrast, the unincorporated portion of the county has experienced a reverse trend.

The Annual Sunbelt Agricultural Expo is Colquitt County's largest attraction and adds millions of dollars to the local economy. The Expo, held annually in October, draws over 300,000 visitors annually and is the largest outdoor farm show in North America with field demonstrations, and more than 1,000 corporate and private exhibitors this year marked the 38th Annual event. This event has evolved into an incredible economic development opportunity for the City of Moultrie and Colquitt County.

The Sanderson Farms project brought in 1, 500 jobs for the county, exceeding expectations of all involved. That impact has translated into \$90 million of investment from Sanderson farms, more than \$50 million investment from producers in the region, a 30-percent increase in sales tax collections over the past two years and a 7.3 percent growth in the tax digest.

Educational attainment has grown in Colquitt County. A comprehensive effort by the entire community, to include the business community, is significantly improving workforce education and readiness. Results certified by the Georgia Board of Education gave Colquitt County High School (CCHS) a 93% graduation rate for 2015, making CCHS a state leader in that category. The number of adults without elementary education has dropped, as the number of adults with some college or college degrees has grown. However, educational attainment is growing faster at the state level than in Colquitt County. The city of Moultrie is catching up to the state level of adults with college degrees somewhat faster than the county as a whole. Colquitt County is home to Southern Regional Technical College that has over 2,000 students. Brewton-Parker has a 2-year extension degree program, and also Abraham Baldwin Agricultural College which is located on the square in downtown Moultrie.

Supplementary Economic Statistics/Data (See Appendix)

Tapestry Segments Explained

Tapestry segmentation provides an accurate, detailed description of America's neighborhoods—U.S. residential areas are divided into 67 distinctive segments based on their socioeconomic and demographic composition. The top three tapestry segments in Berlin are: Southern Satellites, Top Tier and Professional Pride.

10A Southern Satellites Svcs/Prof/Admin **HS Diploma Only** White Housing Household Go hunting, fishing **Married** Couples Single Family; Shop at Walmart **Mobile Homes** 40.1 Own a pet dog Listen to country music: \$45k watch CMT Own, maintain truck Households: 3,818,057 6 **Top Tier 1**A **Prof/Mgmt College Degree** White Household Housing Own lavish vacation homes **Married Couples** Single Family Hire financial advisers 46.7 Shop at high-end retailers/chains \$166k Access radio and newspapers online Purchase/Lease fully equipped Households: 2,073,878 luxury cars **Professional Pride** 1B **Prof/Mgmt College Degree** White Household Housing Upgrade picture-perfect homes **Married Couples Single Family** Hold 401(k) and IRA plans/securities 40.8 Own latest tablets, smartphones, and laptops \$132k Read epicurean, sports, home service magazines Households: 1,926,841 Own 2-3 vehicles Λ

Transportation

An integrated transportation system should contribute to a high quality of life for residents and a desirable climate for business. While the automobile is the dominant mode of transportation, the City wants to provide a balanced and coordinated "multi-modal" transportation system to accommodate ongoing growth and development. Comprehensive improvements to all modes of travel can help improve the operation and capacity of the road system.

Road Network

GA Hwy 133 cuts across the northeast corner of Berlin and is by far the busiest route in town. Although no traffic counts are available from within the city limits, counts nearby indicate approximately 2,920 Annual Average Daily Trips (AADT) through Berlin.



Alternative Modes

The road network in Berlin is largely a simple grid pattern. Sidewalks are only available on Langford Street in the downtown and in front of the old school building complex. There are no dedicated bicycle lanes in Berlin but residents find that most city streets have very low traffic and can provide a fairly safe avenue for cycling.

Colquitt County is a member of the Southwest Georgia Regional Rural Transit System. Transit buses are available for all residents of Colquitt County, Doerun, Norman Park, Ellenton, Moultrie, Berlin and Funston. The transit system provides transport to anywhere in the region for a fee based on mileage. Users must call to schedule a pickup by 3 pm the day before their scheduled trip. This service has proven to be very beneficial for those that do not drive. Typically, elderly or those that do not have a license have utilized the service for daily life activities including grocery shopping and doctor's appointments in particular.

Parking

On-street is the preferred method of parking in Berlin. Berlin's downtown is in a state of extreme decline and on street parking is still available but the buildings are mostly empty and falling down. The current level of parking is adequate for the City of Berlin at this time.

Railroad

There is no railroad in the City of Berlin.

Land Use

The Future Land Use Map is a required component for all communities that have zoning. It is intended to be an expression of the community's vision for the future, and a guide to its future development patterns citywide. It is based off of previous Future land use maps with updates added to fully meet the trends of development in Berlin and was refined with the help of the public during the public outreach portion of the plan's development. It is intended to be representation of the community's vision for the future. Below are descriptions of categories which are utilized on the Future Land Use Map.

Residential

This residential category is intended to correspond primarily to existing urban neighborhoods but is also proposed for undeveloped areas adjacent to existing urban neighborhoods. Residential means residential development ranging from approximately three to five (3-5) units per acre (i.e., lot sizes minimum of approximately 8,000 square feet to 10,000 square feet). The primary housing type is detached, single-family residential, though other housing types such as duplexes and manufactured homes may be allowed

by applicable zoning regulations under certain circumstances. This future land use category is implemented with one or more residential zoning districts. Regulations may differ according to zoning district; for instance, manufactured homes may be permitted in one residential category but not in another. Furthermore, different lot sizes may be established as may be necessary.

Commercial

This category is for land dedicated to non-industrial business uses, including retail sales, services, and entertainment facilities. Commercial uses may be located as a single use in one building or grouped together in a shopping center.

Given the small rural nature of Berlin, one category can fulfill the needs of encompassing both highway and downtown commercial uses. The Berlin zoning ordinance has three different zoning classifications for commercial and a commercial planned unit development district that will place development in the appropriate locations.

Industrial

This category corresponds to industrial operations which may or may not be objectionable due to the emission of noise, vibration, smoke, dust, gas, fumes, odors, or radiation and that may create fire or explosion hazards or other objectionable conditions. Uses within this district may require substantial quantities of water for manufacturing operations and may require rail, air, or water transportation.

Agricultural

The agricultural land use designation in Berlin is intended for those areas outside of the urban service areas which are associated with agricultural farm operations and associated activities, forestry, natural resource conservation, groundwater recharge areas, and low-density residential development that may or may not be accessory to agricultural or farm operation of varying sizes.





City of Berlin Report of Accomplishment 2018-2022

In this section, the projects listed within the ROA are evaluated by the municipalities and assessed. The status of each project was assessed and classified. Four classification responses were used to determine the project's status. These classifications are:

- Completed
- Currently Underway (Include a projected completion date)
- Postponed (Include an explanation of the reason)

• Not Accomplished and will no longer be undertaken or pursued by the local government (Include an explanation for the reason)

Any projects that are not completed and active are moved to the new community work program (2023-2027).

Economic Development					
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source	STATUS (COMPLETED, UNDERWAY, POSTPONED, NOT ACCOMPLISHED)
Participate in annual clean-up and other beautification programs	2018-2022	City	N/A	N/A	Underway. Projected completion date 2027.
General Planning		I			
Resurface streets within residential areas	2018-2022	City	\$200,000	Local, DOT	Underway. Projected completion date 2027.
Continue to support Berlin VFD with gas, oil and vehicle maintenance costs	2018-2022	City	\$6,000	Local	Underway. Projected completion date 2027.
Make upgrades to Rorey Davis Memorial Park.	2018-2022	City	\$150,000	Local	Underway. Projected completion date 2027.
Improve/Establish Broadband capabilities in unserved or underserved areas	2020-2022	City	\$1,000	Grants/Ge neral Fund	Not Accomplished and will no longer be undertaken due to budget constraints.
City of Berlin Community Work Program 2023-2027

Community Work Program 2023-2027				
Economic Development				
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source
Participate in annual clean-up and other beautification programs	2023-2027	City	N/A	General Fund. Local and solid waste
General Planning				
Resurface streets within residential areas	2023-2027	City	\$200,000	Grants, TSPLOST GDOT and General
Continue to support Berlin Variable Frequency Drive with gas, oil, and vehicle maintenance costs	2023-2027	City	\$6,000	Local
Rehabilitate/ upgrades the Roy Davis Memorial Park.	2023-2027	City	\$150,000	Grants/ Local
Partner with Southwest Georgia Regional Commission to develop Age Friendly activities that support the Age-Friendly designation.	2023-2027	Southwest Regional Commission / County	RC Staff- Time	Grants
Participate in the development and updating Pre-Hazard Mitigation Plan.	2023-2027	City	\$25000	GEMA, FEMA, Grants
Participate in the development and updating the Joint Comprehensive Plan	2023-2027	City	Staff-Time	General Fund
Housing		I	J.	
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source
Pursue grants and loans for the rehabilitation of substandard houses for homeowners	2023-	City	\$400,000.	Grants
Broadband Element			I -	
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source
Amend the land-use ordinance when necessary to accommodate broadband installation.	2023-2027	City	\$2500	Grants/ General Fund
Collaborate with the broadband providers to extend Broadband capabilities in unserved or underserved areas	2023-2027	City	\$Im	Grants/ General Fund

Adoption Resolution

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE COLQU	JITT COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
WHEREAS, the City Council of Berlin, Georgia comprehensive plan as part of the requirements to m	, , .
WHEREAS, the City Council held public meeti the Comprehensive Plan and gathered citizens input;	ings and hearings to allow private citizens to review
WHEREAS, in the development of the compre- evaluated, and where applicable, incorporated consid Water Development and Conservation Plan and the E O.C.G.A. 12-2-8, and;	derations of both the Flint River Basin Regional
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Cou shall be adopted, hereby certifying that adequate citi	ancil of Berlin, Georgia that the Comprehensive Plan izen participation requirements have been met.
Adopted on the <u>30</u> day of <u>TUM-C</u>	2022.
	Mayor
Witness	Mon L. Bridwell Mark Bridwell
Autumn Roberts, City Clerk	

Ellenton

Community Profile



Source: U.S Census Bureau 2020

City of Ellenton Demographics (Cont'd)

	Ellenton	Prepared by SWG
	Area: 0.79 square miles	
Population		
2000 Population		267
2010 Population		281
2016 Population		291
2021 Population		297
2000-2010 Annual Rate		0.51%
2010-2016 Annual Rate		0.56%
2016-2021 Annual Rate		0.41%
2016 Male Population		51.9%
2016 Female Population		48.5%
2016 Median Age		34.7
was 0.56% annually. The five 2021. Currently, the populat	rrent year population is 291. In 2010, the Census count in the area was 281. The rate of ch e-year projection for the population in the area is 297 representing a change of 0.41% annu- ion is 51.9% male and 48.5% female.	
Median Age		
The median age in this area	is 34.7, compared to U.S. median age of 38.0.	
Race and Ethnicity		
2016 White Alone		75.6%
2016 Black Alone		3.4%
2016 American Indian/Ala	ska Native Alone	0.3%
2016 Asian Alone		1.7%
2016 Pacific Islander Alone	e	0.0%
2016 Other Race		17.9%
2016 Two or More Races		1.0%
2016 Hispanic Origin (Any	Race)	33.3%
Hispanic Origin may be of an	present 33.3% of the population in the identified area compared to 17.9% of the U.S. popula by race. The Diversity Index, which measures the probability that two people from the same is 68.2 in the identified area, compared to 63.5 for the U.S. as a whole.	
Households		
2000 Households		97
2010 Households		107
2016 Total Households		111
2021 Total Households		113
2000-2010 Annual Rate		0.99%
2010-2016 Annual Rate		0.59%
2016-2021 Annual Rate		0.36%
2016 Average Household	Size	2.38
projection of households is 1	area has changed from 107 in 2010 to 111 in the current year, a change of 0.59% annually. 13, a change of 0.36% annually from the current year total. Average household size is curre r 2010. The number of families in the current year is 83 in the specified area.	

	Ellenton Area: 0.79 square miles	Prepared b
Median Household Inc		
2016 Median Househo		
2021 Median Househo		
2016-2021 Annual Rat Average Household In		
2016 Average Househ 2021 Average Househ		
2016-2021 Average Housen		
Per Capita Income	-	
2016 Per Capita Incom	e	2
2021 Per Capita Incom		
2016-2021 Annual Rat		
Households by Income		
	ld income is \$50,000 in the area, compared to \$54,149 for all L in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households	J.S. households. Median household income is
	ld income is \$59,423 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for all l n five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households	J.S. households. Average household income
	e is \$20,120 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita incom compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households	e of \$29,472. The per capita income is proje
Housing		
2000 Total Housing Ur	ts	
2000 Owner Occupi		
2000 Renter Occupi		
2000 Vacant Housin		
2010 Total Housing Ur		
2010 Owner Occupi	-	
2010 Renter Occupi 2010 Vacant Housin		
2016 Total Housing Ur		
2016 Owner Occupi		
2016 Renter Occupi	-	
2016 Vacant Housin	J Units	
2021 Total Housing Ur	its	
2021 Owner Occupi	d Housing Units	
2021 Renter Occupi		
2021 Vacant Housin		procupied: and 10 5% are vacant. Currently
U.S., 55.4% of the housi 120 housing units in the units since 2010 is 1.479	.24 housing units in the area are owner occupied; 23.4%, rente ng units in the area are owner occupied; 32.9% are renter occu area - 68.3% owner occupied, 20.8% renter occupied, and 10.8 b. Median home value in the area is \$83,824, compared to a me ojected to change by 4.32% annually to \$103,571.	pied; and 11.7% are vacant. In 2010, there 3% vacant. The annual rate of change in hou

Data Note: Income is expressed in current dollars Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021. Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (SWOT)

Strengths

- Small town feel
- Low crime rate
- Low tax rate
- Excellent local fire department
- Lack of competition for business
- Newly renovated water system with extra capacity
- Ellenton is debt free
- Local health clinic
- Early warning system
- Good working relationship with neighboring local governments

Weaknesses

- Apathy amongst citizens
- Lack of sanitary sewer
- No local police department
- Lack of commercial development
- Poor housing stock
- Little available (purchasable) land
- No sidewalks for pedestrians
- Technology (improve broadband)

Opportunities

- Room for growth
- Room for and market for public housing
- Community center

Threats

- Natural and Man-made disasters (trainwrecks)
- Costs associated with state mandated advertising are expensive
- Existing codes are not well enforced

Needs and Opportunities

Needs

- More commercial development is needed.
- Sidewalks are important for pedestrian travel and do not exist in Ellenton.
- Ellenton needs a sewer system top help attract commercial development.
- New housing stock is needed, and rehabilitation is needed throughout town.
- Public apathy needs to be addressed by involving the public as much as possible through a variety of means (citizens' academy on local government?). Whether the public chooses to participate or not the opportunities need to be offered.
- A beautification program is needed.
- A tree-planting program is desired.

Opportunities

- Market the strengths of the small town (sense of community, local health clinic, low crime, local fire protection, cheap utilities, etc.) to bring residents and commercial development.
- There is a market for more public housing in Ellenton but getting the housing authority to build it is difficult due to budget constraints.
- There is a land that could be available for new development within the city limits and near existing water lines.
- Constructing a community center would help in a couple of ways-rental fees provide income and having a place for the community to gather would help bring the community together.
- The city recently partnered with UGA to develop gateway signage.

Goals and Policies

Goal: Economic Prosperity

Encourage development or expansion of businesses and industries that are suitable for the community. Factors to consider when determining suitability include job skills required; long-term sustainability; linkages to other economic activities in the region; impact on the resources of the area; or

prospects for creating job opportunities that meet the needs of a diverse local workforce.

Policies:

- We will support programs for retention, expansion and creation of businesses that are a good fit for our community's economy in terms of job skill requirements and linkages to existing businesses.
- We will carefully consider costs as well as benefits in making decisions on proposed economic development projects.

Goal: Local Preparedness

Identify and put in place the prerequisites for the type of future the community seeks to achieve. These prerequisites might include infrastructure (roads, water and sewer) to support or direct new growth; ordinances and regulations to manage growth as desired; leadership and staff capable of responding to opportunities and managing new challenges; or undertaking an all-hazards approach to disaster preparedness and response.

Policies:

• We will consider impacts on infrastructure and natural resources in our decision making on economic development projects.

Goal: Housing Options

Promote an adequate range of safe, affordable, inclusive, and resource efficient housing in the community. This may be achieved by encouraging development of a variety of housing types, sizes, costs, and densities in each neighborhood; instituting programs to provide housing for residents of all socio-economic backgrounds; or coordinating with local economic development programs to ensure availability of adequate workforce housing in the community.

Policies:

- We will eliminate substandard or dilapidated housing in our community.
- We will create affordable housing opportunities to ensure that all those who work in the community have a viable option to live in the community.
- We will increase opportunities for low-to-moderate income families to move into affordable owner-occupied housing.

Goal: Broadband Options

Make Ellenton town a broadband ready community and accessibility to a high-speed internet service to improve the economy, education, agriculture, address the needs, and improve the well-being of the community residents.

Policies:

- We will be a broadband certified community.
- We will develop a broadband ordinance and adopt it to regulate broadband installation.
- We will collaborate with broadband service providers to extend a high-speed internet service to unserved and underserved areas.
- We will amend the land-use ordinance when necessary to accommodate broadband installation.



Economic Development

The Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) as developed by the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission under a grant from the US Department of Commerce Economic Development Administration is hereby incorporated by reference into this Comprehensive Plan to serve as the Economic Development Element for Colquitt County and the Cities of Moultrie, Doerun, Norman Park, Ellenton, Berlin and Funston.

The Southwest Georgia Regional Commission's (SWGRC) Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) was designed to bring together the public and private sectors in the creation of an economic roadmap to diversify and strengthen the regional economy. The SWGRC CEDS analyzed the regional economy and serves as a guide for establishing regional goals and objectives, a regional plan of action, and the investment priorities and funding sources.

As a performance-based plan, this CEDS plays a critical role in adapting to global economic conditions by fully utilizing the region's unique advantages to maximize economic opportunity for its residents by attracting the private investment that creates jobs. The SWGRC CEDS is a regionally owned strategy that is the result of a continuing economic development planning process developed with regional public and private sector participation. This plan sets forth the goals and objectives necessary to solve the economic development problems of the Southwest Georgia region and clearly defines the measures of success.

The Southwest Georgia CEDS gives an overview of the region briefly describing geography, population, economy, labor, and workforce development and use, education, transportation access, environment, and regional resources. It reviews the state of the Regional Economy and provides a list of achievable Goals and Objectives for the region, a Plan of Action to ensure success, and Performance Measures used to evaluate the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission's successful development and implementation of the 2012-2017 CEDS. Implementation of the goals identified in this plan is significant to the economic future of the SWGRC District.

Policies, issues and opportunities, and Short-Term Work Program implementation strategies located in the current Comprehensive Plans for each of our 14-county region were used extensively to develop the CEDS Goals and Objectives, Vital Projects and Problems and Opportunities.

Included below are goals and objectives from the CEDS which are aligned with the current economic development goals of Colquitt County and the Cities of Moultrie, Doerun, Norman Park, Ellenton, Berlin and Funston.

Goal: Encourage and increase regional collaboration among cities and counties.

Objective: To increase the likelihood of large-scale economic development projects resulting in jobs and private investment.

Goal: Expand existing industries.

Objective: To increase the potential that existing industries will expand in the region.

Goal: Improve infrastructure of water, sewer roads and technology.

Objective: To increase the likelihood that businesses will be started or moved to the region.

Goal: Support technical colleges within the region.

Objective: To increase the level of education of the region's workforce.

Goal: Increase tourism in the region.

Objective: Increase the region's tax base and local government's ability to provide services and recreational opportunities.

Goal: Recruit retirees to the region.

Objective: Support communities in the region and increase the tax base by recruiting retirees.

Goal: Increase access to capital for small businesses in the region.

Objective: To increase availability and likelihood to access low-interest financing for businesses creating jobs and making private investments.

Goal: Create a diverse economy resistant to economic recession.

Objective: To promote the development of diverse employment opportunities at various skill levels.

Goal: Improve and upgrade the educational attainment levels of the labor workforce skills within the region.

Objective: Develop and support community-based efforts to address improved education levels and labor force skills. Support the continued improvement of the education system in addressing education issues and education skill improvement for the region.

Goal: Provide a well-trained workforce, professional, technical and skilled, capable of accommodating new industry and maintaining existing industry.

Objective: Improved education attainment by reducing high school drop-out rate.

Colquitt County and its municipalities according to the CEDS...

The population of Colquitt County (including cities) is 45,898 which is a population increase of 400 from the 2010 Census. The poverty rate has grown from 26.7% to 27.5% from 2013-2022. The median household income is \$40,625. Sixty-five (65.9%) of the population does not have a high school diploma. With its long growing season and varied types of soils, the county has traditionally been a state leader in agricultural production. Colquitt County currently has the largest farm gate in Georgia. Despite the county's agricultural strength, manufacturing has replaced farming as the largest employment sector in the county. There are six cities in Colquitt County: Berlin, Doerun, Ellenton, Funston, Moultrie and Norman Park. Berlin is a small town in Colquitt County, named after a German city, and is considered to be a speed trap. The City of Doerun is home to the GA Annual May Day Festival and is sponsored by the Doerun Booster Association. Ellenton, Funston, and Riverside are small towns located within Colquitt County. The City of Norman Park is home to the Georgia Baptist Conference Center.

Colquitt County is located within the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission area, a very rural and agriculturally oriented portion of Georgia. Agribusiness and textile manufacturing remain the most significant contributors to the region's economy. Colquitt County is ranked as the 40th most populous county in the state and is the region's third most populous county, following Dougherty and Thomas Counties. Moultrie is a city of 14,638 in a county of 45,898 people covering 544.15 square miles. Colquitt County also has one of the largest concentrations of Hispanic or migrant workers in Georgia, an important asset to the local farmers. It is estimated the county has between 2,000 to 5,000 migrant workers, depending on the season. The majority of these workers are available on a temporary work permit and after five years some become regular U.S. citizens. Migrant farm workers are important to the local economy and are generally undercounted during the census. It is expected that the historical growth trend of the minority population in the county will continue. In contrast, the unincorporated portion of the county has experienced a reverse trend.

The Annual Sunbelt Agricultural Expo is Colquitt County's largest attraction and adds millions of dollars to the local economy. The Expo, held annually in October, draws over 300,000 visitors annually and is the largest outdoor farm show in North America with field demonstrations, and more than 1,000 corporate and private exhibitors in the Annual event. This event has evolved into an incredible economic development opportunity for the City of Moultrie and Colquitt County.

The Sanderson Farms project brought in 1, 500 jobs for the county, exceeding expectations of all involved. That impact has translated into \$90 million of investment from Sanderson farms, more than \$50 million investment from producers in the region, a 30-percent increase in sales tax collections over the past two years and a 7.3 percent growth in the tax digest.

Educational attainment has grown in Colquitt County. A comprehensive effort by the entire community, to include the business community, is significantly improving workforce education and readiness. Results certified by the Georgia Board of Education gave Colquitt County High School (CCHS) a 93% graduation rate for 2015, making CCHS a state leader in that category. The number of adults without elementary education has dropped, as the number of adults with some college or college degrees has grown. However, educational attainment is growing faster at the state level than in Colquitt County. The city of Moultrie is catching up to the state level of adults with college degrees somewhat faster than the county as a whole. Colquitt County is home to Southern Regional Technical College that has over 2,000 students. Brewton-Parker has a 2-year extension degree program, and also Abraham Baldwin Agricultural College which is located on the square in downtown Moultrie.

Supplementary Economic Statistics/Data (See Appendix)

Tapestry Segments Explained

Tapestry segmentation provides an accurate, detailed description of America's neighborhoods—U.S. residential areas are divided into 67 distinctive segments based on their socioeconomic and demographic composition. The top three tapestry segments in Ellenton are: Southern Satellites, Top Tier and Professional Pride.

10A Southern Satellites Svcs/Prof/Admin **HS Diploma Only** White Housing Household Go hunting, fishing **Married** Couples Single Family; Shop at Walmart **Mobile Homes** 40.1 Own a pet dog Listen to country music: \$45k watch CMT Own, maintain truck Households: 3,818,057 6 **Top Tier 1**A **Prof/Mgmt College Degree** White Household Housing Own lavish vacation homes **Married Couples** Single Family Hire financial advisers 46.7 Shop at high-end retailers/chains \$166k Access radio and newspapers online Purchase/Lease fully equipped Households: 2,073,878 luxury cars **Professional Pride** 1B **Prof/Mgmt College Degree** White Household Housing Upgrade picture-perfect homes **Married Couples Single Family** Hold 401(k) and IRA plans/securities 40.8 Own latest tablets, smartphones, and laptops \$132k Read epicurean, sports, home service magazines Households: 1,926,841 Own 2-3 vehicles Λ

Transportation

An integrated transportation system should contribute to a high quality of life for residents and a desirable climate for business. While the automobile is the dominant mode of transportation, the City wants to provide a balanced and coordinated "multi-modal" transportation system to accommodate ongoing growth and development. Comprehensive improvements to all modes of travel can help improve the operation and capacity of the road system.

Road Network

Ellenton lies just one mile off the beaten path of GA Hwy 37 approximately halfway between Moultrie to the west and Adel to the east. Baker Street is the main thoroughfare in Ellenton and is by far the busiest route in town. Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) traffic counts indicate approximately 2,060 Annual Average Daily Trips (AADT) through Ellenton. Nearby GA Hwy 37 has about 2,700 AADT.



Alternative Modes

The road network in Ellenton is largely a simple grid pattern. Sidewalks are not present anywhere in town. There are no dedicated bicycle lanes in Ellenton, but residents find that most city streets have very low traffic and can provide a fairly safe avenue for cycling.

Colquitt County is a member of the Southwest Georgia Regional Rural Transit System. Transit buses are available for all residents of Colquitt County, Doerun, Norman Park, Ellenton, Moultrie, Berlin and Funston. The transit system provides transport to anywhere in the region for a fee based on mileage. Users must call to schedule a pickup by 3 pm the day before their scheduled trip. This service has proven to be very beneficial for those that do not drive. Typically, elderly or those that do not have a license have utilized the service for daily life activities including grocery shopping and doctor's appointments in particular.

Parking

Off street parking is the only method available in Ellenton and since Ellenton lacks any traditional downtown, the current parking method is adequate at this time.

Railroad

Ellenton is serviced by the Norfolk Southern rail line that comes from Sparks (just North of Adel) through Ellenton, just north of Moultrie and finally through Doerun on its way through Worth and Dougherty Counties to the City of Albany. The rail line provides critical freight transport for a number of industries in Colquitt County and the Cities of Ellenton and Doerun.

Land Use

The City of Ellenton is not required to have a Land Use Element because they do not have a zoning ordinance.

City of Ellenton Report of Accomplishment 2018-2022

City of Ellenton Report of Accomplishment 2018-2022

Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source	STATUS UPD
Street repairs and improvements (resurfacing and drainage improvements) to city streets (Colquitt St, Cleveland St, Peachtree St,	2018- 2022	City, DOT	\$600,000	DOT, LMIG Program, General Funds, SPLOST,	Underway. Est 2024
Work with the county to address animal control problem	2018- 2022	City & County	\$2,000	General Funds	Not accomplis
Build a new City Facility/Community Center	2018-	City	\$400,000	CDBG	Underway. Est
Work with the county to obtain more assistance with repair/maintenance of	2018- 2022	City & County	\$600,000	DOT, LMIG Program, General Eurode SPLOST	Underway. Est 2027
Apply for CDBG & CHIP for housing rehabilitation	2018- 2022	City	\$500,000	General Funds	Underway. Th
Pursue grants and loans for rehabilitation and new housing for the elderly	2018- 2022	City	\$500,000	CDBG, USDA	Underway. Th grant funding,
Develop public housing	2018- 2022	City/County Housing	\$500,000	County Housing Authority	Underway. Est 2025
Annexation of additional land into City of	2018-	State	\$2,000	New City Taxes,	Underway. Est
Ellenton	2022	Legislature		City General	2025.
New municipal water well system	2018- 2022	City	\$300,000	CDBG, USDA & City funds	Underway. Th grant funding,
Recreation facility and upgrades	2018- 2022	City	\$300,000	CDBG, BOR, City funds	Underway. Th grant funding,
Improve/ Establish Broadband capabilities in unserved or underserved areas.	2020- 2022	City	\$1,000	Grants/General Fund	Underway. The grant funding,

Community Work Program

Activity	Years	Responsible	Cost	Funding Source
		Party	Estimate	
Provide funds for street repairs and				DOT, Low-Moderate
improvements (resurfacing and drainage				Income Grant Programs,
improvements) to city streets (Colquitt St,				General Funds, SPLOST,
Cleveland St, Peachtree St, Central Ave,	2023-2027	City, DOT	\$600,000	CDBG
Berrien St)	2025-2027		φ000,000	
Build a new City Facility/Community	2023-2027	City	\$400,000	CDBG
				DOT, Low-Moderate
				Income Grant Programs,
Work with the county to obtain more	2023-2027	City & County	\$600,000	General Funds, SPLOST,
assistance with repair/maintenance of				CDBG
roads/streets				
Apply for CDBG & CHIP for housing	2023-2027	City	\$500,000	General Funds
Pursue grants and loans for rehabilitation	2023-2027	City	\$500,000	CDBG, USDA
and new housing for the elderly				
		City/County		County Housing Authority
		Housing		
Develop public housing	2023-2027	Authority	\$500,000	
Annexation of additional land into City of	2023-2027	State	\$2,000	New City Taxes, City
Ellenton		Legislature		General Funds
New municipal water well system	2023-2027	City	\$300,000	CDBG, USDA & City fund
Recreation facility and upgrades	2023-2027	City	\$300,000	CDBG, BOR, City funds
Collaborate with broadband providers to				
establish broadband capabilities in	2022 2027		¢.	
unserved or underserved areas.	2023-2027	City	\$lm	Grants/ General fund
Amend the land-use ordinance when				
necessary to accommodate broadband	2022 2027	City	¢2500	Grants/ General fund
installation.	2023-2027	City	\$2500	Grants/ General fund
Partner with Southwest Georgia Regional		Southwest		
Commission to develop Age Friendly	2022 2027	Regional		Cranta
activities that support the Age-Friendly	2023-2027	Commission/	RC Staff-	Grants
designation.		County	Time	
Participate in the development and	2023-2027	City	\$25000	GEMA, FEMA, Grants
updating Pre-Hazard Mitigation Plan				
Participate in the development and	2023-2027	City	Staff-Time	General fund, Grants
updating the Joint Comprehensive Plan				

Adoption Resolution

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE COLQUITT COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

WHEREAS, the City Council of Ellenton, Georgia found it necessary to update their joint comprehensive plan as part of the requirements to maintain its Qualified Local Government Status;

WHEREAS, the City Council held public meetings and hearings to allow private citizens to review the Comprehensive Plan and gathered citizens input;

WHEREAS, in the development of the comprehensive plan, The City of Ellenton examined, evaluated, and where applicable, incorporated considerations of both the Flint River Basin Regional Water Development and Conservation Plan and the Environmental Planning Criteria pursuant to O.C.G.A. 12-2-8, and;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Ellenton, Georgia that the Comprehensive Plan shall be adopted, hereby certifying that adequate citizen participation requirements have been met.

Adopted on the 30th day of June 2022.

Mayor

James Com

Witness

Vicki Bunn, City Clerk

Doerun

Community Profile



Source: U.S Census Bureau 2020

City of Ellenton Demographics (Cont'd)

	Executive Summary Doerun Area: 1.27 square miles	Prepared by S
Population		
2000 Population		
2010 Population		
2016 Population		
2021 Population		
2000-2010 Annual Rate		0.
2010-2016 Annual Rate		0.
2016-2021 Annual Rate		0.
2016 Male Population		48
2016 Female Population		52
2016 Median Age		
was 0.69% annually. The fi	urrent year population is 808. In 2010, the Census count in the re-year projection for the population in the area is 825 represer tion is 48.0% male and 52.0% female.	
Median Age		
The median age in this area	is 39.0, compared to U.S. median age of 38.0.	
Race and Ethnicity		
2016 White Alone		73
2016 Black Alone		22
2016 American Indian/Al	aska Native Alone	(
2016 Asian Alone		C
2016 Pacific Islander Alo	ie de la constant de	0
2016 Other Race		2
2016 Two or More Races		2
2016 Hispanic Origin (An	(Pace)	4
Persons of Hispanic origin r Hispanic Origin may be of a	present 4.0% of the population in the identified area compared ny race. The Diversity Index, which measures the probability th , is 46.2 in the identified area, compared to 63.5 for the U.S. as	t to 17.9% of the U.S. population. Persons of at two people from the same area will be from
Households		
2000 Households		
2010 Households		
2016 Total Households		
2021 Total Households		
2000-2010 Annual Rate		-0.
2010-2016 Annual Rate		0.
2016-2021 Annual Rate		0.
2016 Average Household	Size	
projection of households is	area has changed from 305 in 2010 to 316 in the current year, 322 , a change of 0.38% annually from the current year total. A r 2010. The number of families in the current year is 230 in the	Average household size is currently 2.56,

City of Ellenton Demographics (Cont'd)

Executive Summary	
Doerun Area: 1.27 square miles	Prepared by SWG
Median Household Income	
2016 Median Household Income	\$34,389
2021 Median Household Income	\$39,859
2016-2021 Annual Rate	3.00%
Average Household Income	
2016 Average Household Income	\$44,06
2021 Average Household Income	\$49,01
2016-2021 Annual Rate	2.15%
Per Capita Income	
2016 Per Capita Income	\$17,05
2021 Per Capita Income	\$18,93
2016-2021 Annual Rate	2.119
Households by Income	
Current median household income is \$34,389 in the area, compared to \$54,149 for a projected to be \$39,859 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households Current average household income is \$44,069 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for projected to be \$49,011 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households Current per capita income is \$17,058 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita income is \$17,058 in the area.	all U.S. households. Average household income is
projected to be \$39,859 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households Current average household income is \$44,069 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for	all U.S. households. Average household income is
projected to be \$39,859 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households Current average household income is \$44,069 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for projected to be \$49,011 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households Current per capita income is \$17,058 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita inc	all U.S. households. Average household income is
projected to be \$39,859 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households Current average household income is \$44,069 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for projected to be \$49,011 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households Current per capita income is \$17,058 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita income is \$18,931 in five years, compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households Housing 2000 Total Housing Units	all U.S. households. Average household income is come of \$29,472. The per capita income is projected to 361
projected to be \$39,859 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households Current average household income is \$44,069 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for projected to be \$49,011 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households Current per capita income is \$17,058 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita income is \$18,931 in five years, compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households Housing 2000 Total Housing Units 2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units	all U.S. households. Average household income is come of \$29,472. The per capita income is projected to 361 232
projected to be \$39,859 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households Current average household income is \$44,069 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for projected to be \$49,011 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households Current per capita income is \$17,058 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita income is \$18,931 in five years, compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households Housing 2000 Total Housing Units 2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Renter Occupied Housing Units	all U.S. households. Average household income is come of \$29,472. The per capita income is projected to 361 233 79
projected to be \$39,859 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households Current average household income is \$44,069 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for projected to be \$49,011 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households Current per capita income is \$17,058 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita income is \$18,931 in five years, compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households Housing 2000 Total Housing Units 2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2000 Vacant Housing Units	all U.S. households. Average household income is come of \$29,472. The per capita income is projected to 361 233 75 55
projected to be \$39,859 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households Current average household income is \$44,069 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for projected to be \$49,011 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households Current per capita income is \$17,058 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita income be \$18,931 in five years, compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households Housing 2000 Total Housing Units 2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2000 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units	all U.S. households. Average household income is come of \$29,472. The per capita income is projected to 361 231 79 51 368
projected to be \$39,859 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households Current average household income is \$44,069 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for projected to be \$49,011 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households Current per capita income is \$17,058 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita income is \$18,931 in five years, compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households Housing 2000 Total Housing Units 2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units	all U.S. households. Average household income is come of \$29,472. The per capita income is projected to 360 233 79 51 368 220
projected to be \$39,859 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households Current average household income is \$44,069 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for projected to be \$49,011 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households Current per capita income is \$17,058 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita income is \$18,931 in five years, compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households Housing 2000 Total Housing Units 2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units	all U.S. households. Average household income is come of \$29,472. The per capita income is projected to 361 231 79 51 366 220 85
projected to be \$39,859 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households Current average household income is \$44,069 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for projected to be \$49,011 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households Current per capita income is \$17,058 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita income be \$18,931 in five years, compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households Housing 2000 Total Housing Units 2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units	all U.S. households. Average household income is come of \$29,472. The per capita income is projected to 361 231 75 51 366 220 85 63
projected to be \$39,859 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households Current average household income is \$44,069 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for projected to be \$49,011 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households Current per capita income is \$17,058 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita income be \$18,931 in five years, compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households Housing 2000 Total Housing Units 2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units	all U.S. households. Average household income is come of \$29,472. The per capita income is projected to 361 231 79 51 366 222 88 63 378
projected to be \$39,859 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households Current average household income is \$44,069 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for projected to be \$49,011 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households Current per capita income is \$17,058 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita income be \$18,931 in five years, compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households Housing 2000 Total Housing Units 2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units	all U.S. households. Average household income is come of \$29,472. The per capita income is projected to 361 231 79 51 366 220 85 63 376 216
projected to be \$39,859 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households Current average household income is \$44,069 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for projected to be \$49,011 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households Current per capita income is \$17,058 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita income be \$18,931 in five years, compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households Housing 2000 Total Housing Units 2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units	all U.S. households. Average household income is come of \$29,472. The per capita income is projected to 361 231 75 51 366 220 51 366 63 376 63 376 61 00
projected to be \$39,859 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households Current average household income is \$44,069 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for projected to be \$49,011 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households Current per capita income is \$17,058 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita income be \$18,931 in five years, compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households Housing 2000 Total Housing Units 2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2016 Vacant Housing Units 2016 Vacant Housing Units	all U.S. households. Average household income is come of \$29,472. The per capita income is projected to 361 231 75 51 362 220 85 362 220 85 378 378 378 378 378 378 378 378 378 378
projected to be \$39,859 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households Current average household income is \$44,069 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for projected to be \$49,011 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households Current per capita income is \$17,058 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita in be \$18,931 in five years, compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households Housing 2000 Total Housing Units 2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2016 Vacant Housing Units	all U.S. households. Average household income is come of \$29,472. The per capita income is projected to 361 231 75 51 366 220 85 63 375 53 375 53 375 53 375 53 375 53 375 53 375 53 375 53 375 53 375 53 375 53 375 53 375 53 375 375
projected to be \$39,859 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households Current average household income is \$44,069 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for projected to be \$49,011 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households Current per capita income is \$17,058 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita income be \$18,931 in five years, compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households Housing 2000 Total Housing Units 2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Ovacant Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2016 Vacant Housing Units 2016 Vacant Housing Units 2016 Vacant Housing Units 2017 Total Housing Units 2018 Quere Occupied Housing Units 2019 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2021 Total Housing Units	all U.S. households. Average household income is come of \$29,472. The per capita income is projected to 361 231 79 51 368 220 85 63 378 63 64 64 64 64 64 64 64 64 64 64 64 64 64
projected to be \$39,859 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households Current average household income is \$44,069 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for projected to be \$49,011 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households Current per capita income is \$17,058 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita income be \$18,931 in five years, compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households Housing 2000 Total Housing Units 2000 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2000 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Owner Occupied Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Renter Occupied Housing Units 2010 Vacant Housing Units 2010 Total Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Total Housing Units 2016 Avernated Housing Units 2016 Vacant Housing Units	all U.S. households. Average household income is come of \$29,472. The per capita income is projected to 36 23 7 5 36 22 8 6 6 37 37 37 37 37 37 37 37 37 37 37 37 37

years, median value is projected to change by 3.86% annually to \$126,056.

Data Note: Income is expressed in current dollars Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021. Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (SWOT)

Strengths

- Great place to raise a family
- Fairly low crime rate
- Services comparable to larger cities
- Good police protection
- Good local festivals (May Day, Alumni Day, Christmas in the Park)
- Rail line

Weaknesses

- Sense of community has decreased from the past
- Economic development. Need to go out and get it!
- Community involvement
- Lack of recreational opportunities
- Technology (Improve the Broadband)

Opportunities

- New development potential along Hwy 133 after bypass created
- Medical clinic
- Downtown beautification
- Grant opportunities

Threats

- Hwy 133 bypass
- Unemployable population growth

Needs and Opportunities

Needs

- We need to get the community back together and increase community involvement.
- More economic development efforts need to happen throughout town. Since the Moultrie-Colquitt County Development Authority does not seem to help, perhaps creating a local one would meet the needs of Doerun.
- Doerun needs more recreational opportunities. Baseball facilities are there but there is no organized program.

Opportunities

- With the coming of the Hwy 133 bypass in the next few years it is too early to tell whether it will help or hurt Doerun. The city would like to begin planning for development near the bypass but at the same time trying not to steer development away from the downtown area.
- Opportunity exists for a medical clinic to by developed in Doerun even if it is only open a few days per week.
- Downtown Doerun is in need of some beautification in order to help attract businesses. Streetscape improvements and lighting would help immensely.
- Although there is not as many grants available as there used to be, they are still available and are still worth pursuing to assist with various projects around town.

Goals and Policies

Goal: Economic Prosperity

Encourage development or expansion of businesses and industries that are suitable for the community. Factors to consider when determining suitability include job skills required; long-term sustainability; linkages to other economic activities in the region; impact on the resources of the area; or prospects for creating job opportunities that meet the needs of a diverse local workforce.

Policies:

• We will support programs for retention, expansion and creation of businesses that are a good fit for our community's economy in terms of job skill requirements and linkages to existing businesses.

• We will take into account impacts on infrastructure and natural resources in our decision making on economic development projects.

Goal: Resource Management

Promote the efficient use of natural resources and identify and protect environmentally sensitive areas of the community. This may be achieved by promoting energy efficiency and renewable energy generation; encouraging green building construction and renovation; utilizing appropriate waste management techniques; fostering water conservation and reuse; or setting environmentally sensitive areas aside as green space or conservation reserves.

Policies:

- Infrastructure networks will be developed to steer new development away from sensitive natural resource areas.
- We will ensure safe and adequate supplies of water through protection of ground and surface water sources.

Goal: Efficient Land Use

Maximize the use of existing infrastructure and minimize the costly conversion of undeveloped land at the periphery of the community. This may be achieved by encouraging development or redevelopment of sites closer to the traditional core of the community; designing new development to minimize the amount of land consumed; carefully planning expansion of public infrastructure; or maintaining open space in agricultural, forestry, or conservation uses.

Policies:

• We are open to land planning and development concepts that may be new to our area but have been tried successfully in other places.

Goal: Local Preparedness

Identify and put in place the prerequisites for the type of future the community seeks to achieve. These prerequisites might include infrastructure (roads, water, sewer) to support or direct new growth; ordinances and regulations to manage growth as desired; leadership and staff capable of responding to opportunities and managing new challenges; or undertaking an all-hazards approach to disaster preparedness and response.

Policies:

- Our community will make efficient use of existing infrastructure and public facilities in order to minimize the need for costly new/expanded facilities and services.
- We will protect existing infrastructure investments (i.e., already paid for) by encouraging infill redevelopment, and compact development patterns.

Goal: Sense of Place

Protect and enhance the community's unique qualities. Maintain the downtown as a focal point of the community; fostering compact, walkable, mixed-use development; protecting and revitalizing historic areas of the community; encouraging new development that is compatible with the traditional features of the community; or protecting scenic and natural features that are important to defining the community's character.

Policies:

• We are committed to providing pleasant, accessible public gathering places and parks throughout the community.

Goal: Regional Cooperation

Cooperate with neighboring jurisdictions to address shared needs. This may be achieved by actively participating in regional organizations; identifying joint projects that will result in greater efficiency and less cost to the taxpayer; or developing collaborative solutions for regional issues such as protection of shared natural resources, development of the transportation network, or creation of a tourism plan.

Policies:

- We will work jointly with neighboring jurisdictions on developing solutions for shared regional issues (such as growth management, watershed protection)
- We will consult other public entities in our area when making decisions that are likely to impact them.

Goal: Housing Options

Promote an adequate range of safe, affordable, inclusive, and resource efficient housing in the community. This may be achieved by encouraging development of a variety of housing types, sizes, costs, and densities in each neighborhood; instituting programs to provide housing for residents of all socio-economic backgrounds; or coordinating with local economic development programs to ensure availability of adequate workforce housing in the community.

Policies:

• We will eliminate substandard or dilapidated housing in our community.

Goal: Educational Opportunities

Make educational and training opportunities readily available to enable all community residents to improve their job skills, adapt to technological advances, or pursue life ambitions. This can be achieved by expanding and improving local educational institutions or programs; providing access to other institutions in the region; or coordinating with local economic development programs to ensure an adequately trained and skilled workforce.

Policies:

• We will promote and encourage the development of advanced educational programs for all residents in Doerun to meet the needs of existing and future industry and for the betterment of our residents.

Goal: Broadband Options

Make Ellenton town a broadband ready community and accessibility to a high-speed internet service to improve the economy, education, agriculture, address the needs, and improve the well-being of the community residents.

Policies:

- We will be a broadband certified community.
- We will develop a broadband ordinance and adopt it to regulate broadband installation.
- We will collaborate with broadband service providers to extend a high-speed internet service to unserved and underserved areas.
- We will amend the land-use ordinance when necessary to accommodate broadband installation.



Economic Development

The Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) as developed by the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission under a grant from the US Department of Commerce Economic Development Administration is hereby incorporated by reference into this Comprehensive Plan to serve as the Economic Development Element for Colquitt County and the Cities of Moultrie, Doerun, Norman Park, Ellenton, Berlin and Funston.

The Southwest Georgia Regional Commission's (SWGRC) Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) was designed to bring together the public and private sectors in the creation of an economic roadmap to diversify and strengthen the regional economy. The SWGRC CEDS analyzed the regional economy and serves as a guide for establishing regional goals and objectives, a regional plan of action, and the investment priorities and funding sources.

As a performance-based plan, this CEDS plays a critical role in adapting to global economic conditions by fully utilizing the region's unique advantages to maximize economic opportunity for its residents by attracting the private investment that creates jobs. The SWGRC CEDS is a regionally owned strategy that is the result of a continuing economic development planning process developed with regional public and private sector participation. This plan sets forth the goals and objectives necessary to solve the economic development problems of the Southwest Georgia region and clearly defines the measures of success.

The Southwest Georgia CEDS gives an overview of the region briefly describing geography, population, economy, labor, and workforce development and use, education, transportation access, environment, and regional resources. It reviews the state of the Regional Economy and provides a list of achievable Goals and Objectives for the region, a Plan of Action to ensure success, and Performance Measures used to evaluate the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission's successful development and implementation of the 2012-2017 CEDS. Implementation of the goals identified in this plan is significant to the economic future of the SWGRC District.

Policies, issues and opportunities, and Short-Term Work Program implementation strategies located in the current Comprehensive Plans for each of our 14-county region were used extensively to develop the CEDS Goals and Objectives, Vital Projects and Problems and Opportunities.

Included below are goals and objectives from the CEDS which are aligned with the current economic development goals of Colquitt County and the Cities of Moultrie, Doerun, Norman Park, Ellenton, Berlin and Funston.

Goal: Encourage and increase regional collaboration among cities and counties.

Objective: To increase the likelihood of large-scale economic development projects resulting in jobs and private investment.

Goal: Expand existing industries.

Objective: To increase the potential that existing industries will expand in the region.

Goal: Improve infrastructure of water, sewer roads and technology.

Objective: To increase the likelihood that businesses will be started or moved to the region.

Goal: Support technical colleges within the region.

Objective: To increase the level of education of the region's workforce.

Goal: Increase tourism in the region.

Objective: Increase the region's tax base and local government's ability to provide services and recreational opportunities.

Goal: Recruit retirees to the region.

Objective: Support communities in the region and increase the tax base by recruiting retirees.

Goal: Increase access to capital for small businesses in the region.

Objective: To increase availability and likelihood to access low-interest financing for businesses creating jobs and making private investments.

Goal: Create a diverse economy resistant to economic recession.

Objective: To promote the development of diverse employment opportunities at various skill levels.

Goal: Improve and upgrade the educational attainment levels of the labor workforce skills within the region.

Objective: Develop and support community-based efforts to address improved education levels and labor force skills. Support the continued improvement of the education system in addressing education issues and education skill improvement for the region.

Goal: Provide a well-trained workforce, professional, technical, and skilled, capable of accommodating new industry and maintaining existing industry.

Objective: Improved education attainment by reducing high school drop-out rate.

Colquitt County and its municipalities according to the CEDS...

The population of Colquitt County (including cities) is 45,898, which is a population increase of 400 from the 2010 Census. The poverty rate has decreased from 26.7% to 21.5% from 2013-2020. The median household income also decreased from \$32,484 to \$28,750. Fifty-seven percent (57.3%) of the population does not have a high school diploma. With its long growing season and varied types of soils, the county has traditionally been a state leader in agricultural production. Colquitt County currently has the largest farm gate in Georgia. Despite the county's agricultural strength, manufacturing has replaced farming as the largest employment sector in the county. There are six cities in Colquitt County: Berlin, Doerun, Ellenton, Funston, Moultrie and Norman Park. Berlin is a small town in Colquitt County, named after a German city, and is considered to be a speed trap. The City of Doerun is home to the GA Annual May Day Festival and is sponsored by the Doerun Booster Association. Ellenton, Funston, and Riverside are small towns located within Colquitt County. The City of Norman Park is home to the Georgia Baptist Conference Center.

Colquitt County is located within the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission area, a very rural and agriculturally oriented portion of Georgia. Agribusiness and textile manufacturing remain the most significant contributors to the region's economy. Colquitt County is ranked as the 40th most populous county in the state and is the region's third most populous county, following Dougherty and Thomas Counties. Moultrie is a city of 14,638 in a county of 45,989 people covering 544.5 square miles. Colquitt County also has one of the largest concentrations of Hispanic or migrant workers in Georgia, an important asset to the local farmers. It is estimated the county has between 2,000 to 5,000 migrant workers, depending on the season. The majority of these workers are available on a temporary work permit and after five years some become regular U.S. citizens. Migrant farm workers are important to the local economy and are generally undercounted during the census. It is expected that the historical growth trend of the minority population in the county will continue. In contrast, the unincorporated portion of the county has experienced a reverse trend.

The Annual Sunbelt Agricultural Expo is Colquitt County's largest attraction and adds millions of dollars to the local economy. The Expo, held annually in October, draws over 300,000 visitors annually and is the largest outdoor farm show in North America with field demonstrations, and more than 1,000 corporate and private exhibitors attend the annual event. This event has evolved into an incredible economic development opportunity for the City of Moultrie and Colquitt County.

The Sanderson Farms project brought in 1, 500 jobs for the county, exceeding expectations of all involved. That impact has translated into \$90 million of investment from Sanderson farms, more than \$50 million investment from producers in the region, a 30-percent increase in sales tax collections over the past two years and a 7.3 percent growth in the tax digest.

Educational attainment has grown in Colquitt County. A comprehensive effort by the entire community, to include the business community, is significantly improving workforce education and readiness. Results certified by the Georgia Board of Education gave Colquitt County High School (CCHS) a 93% graduation rate for 2015, making CCHS a state leader in that category. The number of adults without elementary education has dropped, as the number of adults with some college or college degrees has grown. However, educational attainment is growing faster at the state level than in Colquitt County. The city of Moultrie is catching up to the state level of adults with college degrees somewhat faster than the county as a whole. Colquitt County is home to Southern Regional Technical College that has over 2,000 students. Brewton-Parker has a 2-year extension degree program, and also Abraham Baldwin Agricultural College which is located on the square in downtown Moultrie.

Supplementary Economic Statistics/Data (See Appendix)



Tapestry Segments Explained

Tapestry segmentation provides an accurate, detailed description of America's neighborhoods—U.S. residential areas are divided into 67 distinctive segments based on their socioeconomic and demographic composition. The top three tapestry segments in Doerun are: Heartland Communities, Southern Satellites and Top Tier.



Transportation

An integrated transportation system should contribute to a high quality of life for residents and a desirable climate for business. While the automobile is the dominant mode of transportation, the City wants to provide a balanced and coordinated "multi-modal" transportation system to accommodate ongoing growth and development. Comprehensive improvements to all modes of travel can help improve the operation and capacity of the road system.

Road Network

Doerun lies just south of the Worth County line along GA Hwy 133 and GA Hwy 270. Broad Street (Hwy 133) is the main thoroughfare in Doerun and is the busiest route in town. Bay Street (Hwy 270) is second. Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) traffic counts indicate approximately 3,900 Annual Average Daily Trips (AADT) through Doerun on Hwy 133. Nearby GA Hwy 270 has about 1,100 AADT.



Significant changes lay in store in the near future for Doerun as the GA Hwy 133 bypass has been planned. The proposed route will take traffic around Doerun on the east and north sides of town. On the plus side this will alleviate traffic downtown but, on the downside, downtown revival will be difficult without that traffic. Opportunities may exist for development along the bypass but that still does not necessarily help the downtown in any revival efforts. The Google earth image below shows Doerun with the approximate position of the new bypass in red.


Alternative Modes

The road network in Doerun is largely a simple grid pattern. Sidewalks are present along Broad Street in the downtown area and a small stretch is located on Peachtree Street near the Elementary School. There are no dedicated bicycle lanes in Doerun, but residents find that most city streets have very low traffic and can provide a fairly safe avenue for cycling.

Colquitt County is a member of the Southwest Georgia Regional Rural Transit System. Transit buses are available for all residents of Colquitt County, Doerun, Norman Park, Ellenton, Moultrie, Berlin and Funston. The transit system provides transport to anywhere in the region for a fee based on mileage. Users must call to schedule a pickup by 3 pm the day before their scheduled trip. This service has proven to be very beneficial for those that do not drive. Typically, elderly or those that do not have a license

have utilized the service for daily life activities including grocery shopping and doctor's appointments in particular.

Parking

Doerun has a mix of both on and off-street parking in town. The current parking method seems to be adequate at this time.

Railroad

Doerun is serviced by the Norfolk Southern rail line that comes from Moultrie through Doerun on its way through Worth and Dougherty Counties to the City of Albany. The rail line provides critical freight transport for a number of industries in Colquitt County and the Cities of Ellenton and Doerun.

Land Use

The Future Land Use Map is a required component for all communities that have zoning. It is intended to be an expression of the community's vision for the future, and a guide to its future development patterns citywide. It is based off of previous Future land use maps with updates added to fully meet the trends of development in Doerun and was refined with the help of the public during the public outreach portion of the plan's development. It is intended to be representation of the community's vision for the future. Below are descriptions of categories which are utilized on the Future Land Use Map.

Residential

This residential category is intended to correspond primarily to existing urban neighborhoods but is also proposed for undeveloped areas adjacent to existing urban neighborhoods. Residential means residential development ranging from approximately three to five (3-6) units per acre (i.e., lot sizes minimum of approximately 7,000 square feet to 12,000 square feet). The primary housing type is detached, single-family residential, though other housing types such as duplexes and manufactured homes may be allowed by applicable zoning regulations under certain circumstances. This future land use category is implemented with one or more residential zoning districts. Regulations may differ according to zoning district; for instance, manufactured homes may be permitted in one residential category but not in another. Furthermore, different lot sizes may be established as may be necessary.

Commercial

This category is for land dedicated to non-industrial business uses, including retail sales, services, and entertainment facilities. Commercial uses may be located as a single use in one building or grouped together in a shopping center.

Given the small rural nature of Doerun, one category can fulfill the needs of encompassing both highway and downtown commercial uses. The Berlin zoning ordinance has four different zoning classifications for commercial and a commercial planned unit development district that will place development in the appropriate locations.

Industrial

This category corresponds to industrial operations which may or may not be objectionable due to the emission of noise, vibration, smoke, dust, gas, fumes, odors, or radiation and that may create fire or explosion hazards or other objectionable conditions. Uses within this district may require substantial quantities of water for manufacturing operations and may require rail, air, or water transportation.

Agricultural

The agricultural land use designation in Doerun is intended for those areas outside of the urban service areas which are associated with agricultural farm operations and associated activities, forestry, natural resource conservation, groundwater recharge areas, and low-density residential development that may or may not be accessory to agricultural or farm operation of varying sizes.



City of Doerun Report of Accomplishment

In this section, the projects listed within the ROA are evaluated by the municipalities and assessed. The status of each project was assessed and classified. Four classification responses were used to determine the project's status. These classifications are:

- Completed
- Currently Underway (Include a projected completion date)
- Postponed (Include an explanation of the reason)
- Not Accomplished and will no longer be undertaken or pursued by the local government (Include an explanation for the reason)

Any projects that are not completed and active are moved to the new community work program (2023-2027

City of Doerun Report of Accomplishment 2018-2022							
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source	STATUS UPDATE		
Upgrade wastewater collection system to combat infiltration problems	2018	City	\$300,000	City, Grants	Completed		
Construct new city well	2018-2020	City	\$500,000	City, Grants	Underway, completed projection date 10/1/2025		
Develop tennis courts	2018-2021	City	\$100,000	Grants/SPLOST	Underway, completed projection date 10/1/2026		
Downtown Development Plan	2018-2022	City	\$10,000	City	Underway, completed projection date 10/1/2026		
Apply for CHIP to rehabilitate housing properties within the city with special consideration for the elderly	2018-2022	City	\$300,000	СНІР	Completed		

Update the Zoning Ordinance/Map	2018-2022	City	\$5,000	City	Underway, we will review it in 2023 upon completion of 4 Lane Highway.
Comprehensive Annexation Plan	2018-2022	City	\$5,000	City	Underway, completed projection date 10/1/2026
Will create a historic preservation committee and research the development of a Downtown Historic District	2018-2022	City	\$10,000	City	Underway, completed projection date 10/1/2026
Improve/ Establish Broadband capabilities in unserved or underserved areas.	2020-2022	City	\$1,000	Grants/General Fund	Underway, completed projection date 10/1/2026

City of Doerun Community Work Program

City of Doerun Community Work Program 2023-2027								
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source				
Construct new city well	2023-2027	City	\$500,000	City, Grants				
Develop tennis courts	2023-2026	City	\$100,000	Grants/SPLOST				
Downtown Development Plan	2023-2027	City	\$10,000	City				
Apply for CHIP to rehabilitate housing properties within the city with special consideration for the elderly	2023-2027	City	\$300,000	CHIP				
Update the Zoning Ordinance/Map	2023-2027	City	\$5,000	City				
Comprehensive Annexation Plan	2023-2027	City	\$5,000	City				

Will create a historic preservation committee and research the development of a Downtown Historic District	2023-2027	City	\$10,000	City
Establish and Improve Broadband capabilities in unserved or underserved areas.	2023-2027	City	\$1,000	Grants/General Fund
Collaborate with broadband providers to establish broadband capabilities in unserved or underserved areas.	2023-2027	City	\$Im	Grants/ General fund
Amend the land-use ordinance when necessary to accommodate broadband installation.	2023-2027	City	\$2500	Grants/ General fund
Partner with Southwest Georgia Regional Commission to develop Age Friendly activities that support the Age-Friendly designation.	2023-2027	Southwest Regional Commission/ County	RC Staff- Time	Grants
Participate in the development and updating Pre-Hazard Mitigation Plan	2023-2027	City	\$25000	GEMA, FEMA, Grants
Participate in the development and updating Joint Comprehensive Plan	2023-2027	City	Staff-Time	General Fund

Adoption Resolution

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE COLQUITT COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
WHEREAS, the City Council of Doerun, Georgia found it necessary to update their joint comprehensive plan as part of the requirements to maintain its Qualified Local Government Status;
WHEREAS, the City Council held public meetings and hearings to allow private citizens to review the Comprehensive Plan and gathered citizens input;
WHEREAS, in the development of the comprehensive plan, The City of Doerun examined, evaluated, and where applicable, incorporated considerations of both the Flint River Basin Regional Water Development and Conservation Plan and the Environmental Planning Criteria pursuant to O.C.G.A. 12-2-8, and;
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Doerun, Georgia that the Comprehensive Plan shall be adopted, hereby certifying that adequate citizen participation requirements have been met.
Adopted on the <u>30</u> day of <u>June</u> 2022.
Mayor Mike Campbell
Simbuly Juy Sou Kimberly Taylor, City Clerk

Funston

Community Profile



Source: U.S Census Bureau 2020

City of Funston Demographics (Cont'd)

	Funston Area: 1.17 square miles	Prepared by SW
Population		
2000 Population		33
2010 Population		44
2016 Population		46
2021 Population		46
2000-2010 Annual Rate		1.74
2010-2016 Annual Rate		0.49
2016-2021 Annual Rate		0.17
2016 Male Population		50.3
2016 Female Population		49.7
2016 Median Age		33
was 0.49% annually. The fi	urrent year population is 463. In 2010, the Census count i re-year projection for the population in the area is 467 rep cion is 50.3% male and 49.7% female.	
Median Age		
The median age in this area	is 33.1, compared to U.S. median age of 38.0.	
Race and Ethnicity		
2016 White Alone		68.3
2016 Black Alone		6.7
2016 American Indian/Al	aska Native Alone	0.2
2016 Asian Alone		0.0
2016 Pacific Islander Alor	e	0.0
2016 Other Race		23.5
2016 Two or More Races		1.3
2016 Hispanic Origin (An	/ Race)	32.8
Hispanic Origin may be of a	present 32.8% of the population in the identified area cor ny race. The Diversity Index, which measures the probabil , is 73.7 in the identified area, compared to 63.5 for the U	ity that two people from the same area will be from
Households		
2000 Households		11
2010 Households		1!
2016 Total Households		1!
2021 Total Households		1!
2000-2010 Annual Rate		1.18
2010-2016 Annual Rate		0.31
2016-2021 Annual Rate		0.13
2016 Average Household	Size	2.9
projection of households is	area has changed from 154 in 2010 to 157 in the current 158, a change of 0.13% annually from the current year to r 2010. The number of families in the current year is 122	tal. Average household size is currently 2.95,

City of Funston Demographics (Cont'd)



Executive Summary

Funston Area: 1.17 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

Median Household Income	
2016 Median Household Income	\$46,653
2021 Median Household Income	\$52,920
2016-2021 Annual Rate	2.55%
Average Household Income	
2016 Average Household Income	\$58,855
2021 Average Household Income	\$64,633
2016-2021 Annual Rate	1.89%
Per Capita Income	
2016 Per Capita Income	\$19,469
2021 Per Capita Income	\$21,416
2016-2021 Annual Rate	1.92%
Households by Income	

Households by Income

Current median household income is \$46,653 in the area, compared to \$54,149 for all U.S. households. Median household income is projected to be \$52,920 in five years, compared to \$59,476 for all U.S. households

Current average household income is \$58,855 in this area, compared to \$77,008 for all U.S. households. Average household income is projected to be \$64,633 in five years, compared to \$84,021 for all U.S. households

Current per capita income is \$19,469 in the area, compared to the U.S. per capita income of \$29,472. The per capita income is projected to be \$21,416 in five years, compared to \$32,025 for all U.S. households

152 107 30
30
4.5
15
168
109
45
14
169
105
52
12
171
106
52
13

Currently, 62.1% of the 169 housing units in the area are owner occupied; 30.8%, renter occupied; and 7.1% are vacant. Currently, in the U.S., 55.4% of the housing units in the area are owner occupied; 32.9% are renter occupied; and 11.7% are vacant. In 2010, there were 168 housing units in the area - 64.9% owner occupied, 26.8% renter occupied, and 8.3% vacant. The annual rate of change in housing units since 2010 is 0.26%. Median home value in the area is \$87,121, compared to a median home value of \$198,891 for the U.S. In five years, median value is projected to change by 5.15% annually to \$112,000.

Data Note: Income is expressed in current dollars Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021. Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (SWOT)

Strengths

- Well managed city
- Cheapest water in Colquitt County
- Cheapest garbage rates in Colquitt County
- Good water infrastructure
- Civic pride
- Small town feel
- Good city park with tennis and basketball courts
- Local school
- No city taxes
- Excellent volunteer fire department
- Proximity to Moultrie

Weaknesses

- Lack of manpower for maintenance in town
- Need better code enforcement
- Technology (Improve the Broadband)

Opportunities

- More additions to the city park
- Growth opportunities
- Street & drainage improvements (Peachtree St and Circle, Manning St)
- Mulberry Street (Hwy 37) beautification

Threats

• Natural disasters

Needs and Opportunities

Needs

- Funston needs more code enforcement.
- Street and drainage improvements are needed along Manning St, Peachtree St and Peachtree Circle, and Daniel St.
- Funston lacks the manpower to complete a lot of the general maintenance type work in town. County prisoners are a big help when they are available.
- Water system improvements at the end of Spivey Dr. to loop the water line around to connect to the main line at Hwy 37.

Opportunities

- Opportunities exist for improvements and expansion to the city park(s)
- Lots of opportunities for growth in the residential and commercial sectors.
- Mulberry Street (Hwy 37) beautification. The "Main Street" of Funston needs an identity.
- Promotion of the town's strengths (no city taxes, cheap water/garbage rates, local school, responsive city leadership, small town feel and proximity to Moultrie) could attract residents and businesses.

Goals and Policies

Goal: Economic Prosperity

Encourage development or expansion of businesses and industries that are suitable for the community. Factors to consider when determining suitability include job skills required; long-term sustainability; linkages to other economic activities in the region; impact on the resources of the area; or prospects for creating job opportunities that meet the needs of a diverse local workforce.

Policies:

- We will support programs for retention, expansion and creation of businesses that are a good fit for our community's economy in terms of job skill requirements and linkages to existing businesses.
- We will take into account impacts on infrastructure and natural resources in our decision making on economic development projects.
- We will carefully consider costs as well as benefits in making decisions on proposed economic development projects.

Goal: Local Preparedness

Identify and put in place the prerequisites for the type of future the community seeks to achieve. These prerequisites might include infrastructure (roads, water, sewer) to support or direct new growth; ordinances and regulations to manage growth as desired; leadership and staff capable of responding to opportunities and managing new challenges; or undertaking an all-hazards approach to disaster preparedness and response.

Policies:

- Our community will make efficient use of existing infrastructure and public facilities to minimize the need for costly new/expanded facilities and services.
- We will ensure that capital improvements needed to accommodate future development are provided concurrent with new development.
- We will work with the local school board to encourage school location decisions that support the community's overall growth and development plans.

Goal: Sense of Place

Protect and enhance the community's unique qualities. Maintain the downtown as a focal point of the community; fostering compact, walkable, mixed-use development; protecting and revitalizing historic areas of the community; encouraging new development that is compatible with the traditional features of the community; or protecting scenic and natural features that are important to defining the community's character.

Policies:

- We will encourage the development of downtown as a vibrant center of the community in order to improve overall attractiveness and local quality of life.
- We are committed to creating walkable, safe, and attractive neighborhoods throughout the community, where people have easy access to schools, parks, and necessary services (grocery store, drug store) without having to travel by car.
- We are committed to providing pleasant, accessible public gathering places and parks throughout the community.

Goal: Broadband Options

Make the City of Funston a broadband ready community and accessibility to a high-speed internet service to improve the economy, education, agriculture, address the needs, and improve the well-being of the community residents.

Policies:

- We will be a broadband certified community.
- We will develop a broadband ordinance and adopt it to regulate broadband installation.
- We will collaborate with broadband service providers to extend a high-speed internet service to unserved and underserved areas.
- We will amend the land-use ordinance when necessary to accommodate broadband installation.



Economic Development

The Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) as developed by the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission under a grant from the US Department of Commerce Economic Development Administration is hereby incorporated by reference into this Comprehensive Plan to serve as the Economic Development Element for Colquitt County and the Cities of Moultrie, Doerun, Norman Park, Ellenton, Berlin and Funston.

The Southwest Georgia Regional Commission's (SWGRC) Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) was designed to bring together the public and private sectors in the creation of an economic roadmap to diversify and strengthen the regional economy. The SWGRC CEDS analyzed the regional economy and serves as a guide for establishing regional goals and objectives, a regional plan of action, and the investment priorities and funding sources.

As a performance-based plan, this CEDS plays a critical role in adapting to global economic conditions by fully utilizing the region's unique advantages to maximize economic opportunity for its residents by attracting the private investment that creates jobs. The SWGRC CEDS is a regionally owned strategy that is the result of a continuing economic development planning process developed with regional public and private sector participation. This plan sets forth the goals and objectives necessary to solve the economic development problems of the Southwest Georgia region and clearly defines the measures of success.

The Southwest Georgia CEDS gives an overview of the region briefly describing geography, population, economy, labor, and workforce development and use, education, transportation access, environment, and regional resources. It reviews the state of the Regional Economy and provides a list of achievable Goals and Objectives for the region, a Plan of Action to ensure success, and Performance Measures used to evaluate the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission's successful development and implementation of the 2012-2017 CEDS. Implementation of the goals identified in this plan is significant to the economic future of the SWGRC District.

Policies, issues and opportunities, and Short-Term Work Program implementation strategies located in the current Comprehensive Plans for each of our 14-county region were used extensively to develop the CEDS Goals and Objectives, Vital Projects and Problems and Opportunities.

Included below are goals and objectives from the CEDS which are aligned with the current economic development goals of Colquitt County and the Cities of Moultrie, Doerun, Norman Park, Ellenton, Berlin and Funston.

Goal: Encourage and increase regional collaboration among cities and counties.

Objective: To increase the likelihood of large-scale economic development projects resulting in jobs and private investment.

Goal: Expand existing industries.

Objective: To increase the potential that existing industries will expand in the region.

Goal: Improve infrastructure of water, sewer roads and technology.

Objective: To increase the likelihood that businesses will be started or moved to the region.

Goal: Support technical colleges within the region.

Objective: To increase the level of education of the region's workforce.

Goal: Increase tourism in the region.

Objective: Increase the region's tax base and local government's ability to provide services and recreational opportunities.

Goal: Recruit retirees to the region.

Objective: Support communities in the region and increase the tax base by recruiting retirees.

Goal: Increase access to capital for small businesses in the region.

Objective: To increase availability and likelihood to access low-interest financing for businesses creating jobs and making private investments.

Goal: Create a diverse economy resistant to economic recession.

Objective: To promote the development of diverse employment opportunities at various skill levels.

Goal: Improve and upgrade the educational attainment levels of the labor workforce skills within the region.

Objective: Develop and support community-based efforts to address improved education levels and labor force skills. Support the continued improvement of the education system in addressing education issues and education skill improvement for the region.

Goal: Provide a well-trained workforce, professional, technical, and skilled, capable of accommodating new industry and maintaining existing industry.

Objective: Improved education attainment by reducing high school drop-out rate.

Colquitt County and its municipalities according to the CEDS...

The population of Colquitt County (including cities) is 45,898, which is a population increase of 400 from the 2010 Census. The poverty rate has increased from 26.7% to 27.3% from 2013-2020. Per capita income (Mean income) is above forty-seven thousand (\$47.462) based on U.S Census 2020.

Forty-nine percent (49.6%) of the population does not have a high school diploma. With its long growing season and varied types of soils, the county has traditionally been a state leader in agricultural production. Colquitt County currently has the largest farm gate in Georgia. Despite the county's agricultural strength, manufacturing has replaced farming as the largest employment sector in the county. There are six cities in Colquitt County: Berlin, Doerun, Ellenton, Funston, Moultrie and Norman Park. Berlin is a small town in Colquitt County, named after a German city, and is considered to be a speed trap. The City of Doerun is home to the GA Annual May Day Festival and is sponsored by the Doerun Booster Association. Ellenton, Funston, and Riverside are small towns located within Colquitt County. The City of Norman Park is home to the Georgia Baptist Conference Center.

Colquitt County is located within the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission area, a very rural and agriculturally oriented portion of Georgia. Agribusiness and textile manufacturing remain the most significant contributors to the region's economy. Colquitt County is ranked as the 40th most populous county in the state and is the region's third most populous county, following Dougherty and Thomas Counties Moultrie is a city of 14,638 in a county of 45,989 people covering 544.5 square miles. Colquitt County also has one of the largest concentrations of Hispanic or migrant workers in Georgia, an important asset to the local farmers. It is estimated the county has between 2,000 to 5,000 migrant workers, depending on the season. The majority of these workers are available on a temporary work permit and after five years some become regular U.S. citizens. Migrant farm workers are important to the local economy and are generally undercounted during the census. It is expected that the historical growth trend of the minority population in the county will continue. In contrast, the unincorporated portion of the county has experienced a reverse trend.

The Annual Sunbelt Agricultural Expo is Colquitt County's largest attraction and adds millions of dollars to the local economy. The Expo, held annually in October, draws over 300,000 visitors annually and is the largest outdoor farm show in North America with field demonstrations, and more than 1,000 corporate and private exhibitors attend the annual event. This event has evolved into an incredible economic development opportunity for the City of Moultrie and Colquitt County.

The Sanderson Farms project brought in 1, 500 jobs for the county, exceeding expectations of all involved. That impact has translated into \$90 million of investment from Sanderson farms, more than \$50 million investment from producers in the region, a 30-percent increase in sales tax collections over the past two years and a 7.3 percent growth in the tax digest.

Educational attainment has grown in Colquitt County. A comprehensive effort by the entire community, to include the business community, is significantly improving workforce education and readiness. Results certified by the Georgia Board of Education gave Colquitt County High School (CCHS) a 93% graduation rate for 2015, making CCHS a state leader in that category. The number of adults without elementary education has dropped, as the number of adults with some college or college degrees has grown. However, educational attainment is growing faster at the state level than in Colquitt County. The city of Moultrie is catching up to the state level of adults with college degrees somewhat faster than the county as a whole. Colquitt County is home to Southern Regional Technical College that has over 2,000 students. Brewton-Parker has a 2-year extension degree program, and also Abraham Baldwin Agricultural College which is located on the square in downtown Moultrie.

Supplementary Economic Statistics/Data (See Appendix)

Tapestry Segments Explained

Tapestry segmentation provides an accurate, detailed description of America's neighborhoods—U.S. residential areas are divided into 67 distinctive segments based on their socioeconomic and demographic composition. The top three tapestry segments in Funston are: Middleburg, Down the Road and Top Tier.



Transportation

An integrated transportation system should contribute to a high quality of life for residents and a desirable climate for business. While the automobile is the dominant mode of transportation, the City wants to provide a balanced and coordinated "multi-modal" transportation system to accommodate ongoing growth and development. Comprehensive improvements to all modes of travel



can help improve the operation and capacity of the road system.

Road Network

Funston lies just east of the City of Moultrie along GA Hwy 37. Mulberry Street (Hwy 37) is the main thoroughfare in Funston and is the busiest route in town. Church Street is second. Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) traffic counts indicate approximately 3,700 Annual Average Daily Trips (AADT) through Funston on Hwy 37. No counts have been done within the city limits of Funston so a lack of data hampers transportation planning efforts.



Alternative Modes

The road network in Funston is largely a simple grid pattern. There are no sidewalks in the City of Funston. There are no dedicated bicycle lanes in Funston, but residents find that most city streets have very low traffic and can provide a safe avenue for cycling.

Colquitt County is a member of the Southwest Georgia Regional Rural Transit System. Transit buses are available for all residents of Colquitt County, Doerun, Norman Park, Ellenton, Moultrie, Berlin and Funston. The transit system provides transport to anywhere in the region for a fee based on mileage. Users must call to schedule a pickup by 3 pm the day before their scheduled trip. This service has proven to be very beneficial for those that do not drive. Typically, elderly or those that do not have a license have utilized the service for daily life activities including grocery shopping and doctor's appointments.

Parking

Funston has a mix of both on and off-street parking in town. The current parking method seems to be adequate currently.

Railroad

Funston is not serviced by a rail line.

Land Use

The Future Land Use Map is a required component for all communities that have zoning. It is intended to be an expression of the community's vision for the future, and a guide to its future development patterns citywide. It is based on previous Future land use maps with updates added to fully meet the trends of development in Funston and was refined with the help of the public during the public outreach portion of the plan's development. It is intended to be representation of the community's vision for the future. Below are descriptions of categories which are utilized on the Future Land Use Map.

Residential

This residential category is intended to correspond primarily to existing urban neighborhoods but is also proposed for undeveloped areas adjacent to existing urban neighborhoods. Residential means residential development ranging from approximately three to five (3-6) units per acre (i.e., lot sizes minimum of approximately 7,000 square feet to 12,000 square feet). The primary housing type is detached, single-family residential, though other housing types such as duplexes and manufactured homes may be allowed by applicable zoning regulations under certain circumstances. This future land use category is implemented with one or more residential zoning districts. Regulations may differ according to zoning district; for instance, manufactured homes may be permitted in one residential category but not in another. Furthermore, different lot sizes may be established as may be necessary.

Commercial

This category is for land dedicated to non-industrial business uses, including retail sales, services, and entertainment facilities. Commercial uses may be located as a single use in one building or grouped together in a shopping center.

Given the small rural nature of Funston, one category can fulfill the needs of encompassing both highway and downtown commercial uses.

Industrial

This category corresponds to industrial operations which may or may not be objectionable due to the emission of noise, vibration, smoke, dust, gas, fumes, odors, or radiation and that may create fire or explosion hazards or other objectionable conditions. Uses within this district may require substantial quantities of water for manufacturing operations and may require rail, air, or water transportation.

Agricultural

The agricultural land use designation in Funston is intended for those areas outside of the urban service areas which are associated with agricultural farm operations and associated activities, forestry, natural resource conservation, groundwater recharge areas, and low-density residential development that may or may not be accessory to agricultural or farm operation of varying sizes.



City of Funston Report of Accomplishment

In this section, the projects listed within the ROA are evaluated by the municipalities and assessed. The status of each project was assessed and classified. Four classification responses were used to determine the project's status. These classifications are:

- Completed
- Currently Underway (Include a projected completion date)
- Postponed (Include an explanation of the reason)

City of Funston Report of Accomplishment 2018-2022

• Not Accomplished and will no longer be undertaken or pursued by the local government (Include an explanation for the reason)

Any projects that are not completed and active are moved to the new community work program (2023-2027

Activity	Years	Responsible	Cost Estimate	Funding Source	STATUS UPDATE
Make curb and gutter improvements to South Manning, Spivey Drive, and Foy Street, Peachtree Circle, Peachtree Street, Anderson Street, Pitchford	2018- 2022	Party City	\$200,000	General Funds/SPLOST, CDBG	Underway - Completion Date of 2026
Develop museum on the second floor of City Hall	2018- 2019	City	\$10,000	GA Humanities, GA Arts Council, Local Foundations	Underway - Completion Date of 2026
The addition of sidewalks in neighborhoods and downtown	2018- 2019	City	\$250,000	TE Grants/General Funds	Underway - Completion Date of 2026
Develop small town event such as `Funston Day`	2018- 2019	City	\$5,000	Grants, General Funds	Postponed due to lack of participation
Explore grant for downtown businesses	2018- 2019	City	N/A	N/A	No longer being considered due to staffing
Work with local businesses to increase the appearance and attractiveness of commercial and industrial areas.	2018- 2022	City	N/A	N/A	Underway - Completion date of 2024

Develop a plan to attract businesses	2018- 2022	City	\$1,000	General Funds/Grants	No longer being considered due to lack of participation
Acquire Park signs for City Park and directional signs	2018- 2019	City	\$5,000	General Funds	Completed
Purchase playground equipment for Pineridge subdivision	2018- 2022	City	\$18,000	General Funds/SPLOST	Completed
Construct fence at Pine Ridge Park to enclose playground areas	2018- 2019	City	\$6,000	Grants, General Funds	Underway - Completion date of 2024
Connect main water line from Pivey Dr to N. Church St.	2018- 2022	City	\$26,000	Grants, General Funds	Completed
Improve/ Establish Broadband capabilities in unserved or underserved areas.	2020- 2022	City	\$1,000	Grants/General Fund	Postponed due to funding

City of Funston Community Work Program

City of Funston Community Work Program	2023-2027			
Activity	Years	Responsible Party	Cost Estimate	Funding Source
Make curb and gutter improvements to South Manning, Spivey Drive, and Foy Street, Peachtree Circle, Peachtree Street, Anderson Street, Pitchford	2023-2027	City	\$200,000	General Funds/SPLOST, CDBG
Develop museum on the second floor of City Hall	2023-2024	City	\$10,000	GA Humanities, GA Arts Council, Local Foundations
The addition of sidewalks in neighborhoods and downtown	2023-2024	City	\$250,000	TE Grants/General Funds
Develop small town event such as `Funston Day`	2023-2024	City	\$5,000	Grants, General Funds
Work with local businesses to increase the appearance and attractiveness of commercial and industrial areas.	2023-2027	City	N/A	Grants
Construct fence at Pine Ridge Park to enclose playground areas	2023-2024	City	\$6,000	Grants, General Funds
Establish and Improve Broadband capabilities in unserved or underserved areas.	2023-2025	City	\$1,000	Grants/General Fund

Collaborate with broadband providers to establish broadband capabilities in unserved or underserved areas.	2023-2027	City	\$Im	Grants/ General fund
Amend the land-use ordinance when necessary to accommodate broadband installation.	2023-2027	City	\$2500	Grants/ General fund
Partner with Southwest Georgia Regional Commission to develop Age Friendly activities that support the Age-Friendly designation.	2023-2027	Southwest Regional Commission/ County	RC Staff- Time	Grants
Participate in the development and updating Pre-Hazard Mitigation Plan	2023-2027	City	\$25000	GEMA, FEMA, Grants
Participate in the development and updating the Joint Comprehensive Plan	2023-2027	City	Staff-Time	General Fund

Adoption Resolution

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE COLQUITT COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

WHEREAS, the City Council of Funston, Georgia found it necessary to update their joint comprehensive plan as part of the requirements to maintain its Qualified Local Government Status;

WHEREAS, the City Council held public meetings and hearings to allow private citizens to review the Comprehensive Plan and gathered citizens input;

WHEREAS, in the development of the comprehensive plan, The City of Funston examined, evaluated, and where applicable, incorporated considerations of both the Flint River Basin Regional Water Development and Conservation Plan and the Environmental Planning Criteria pursuant to O.C.G.A. 12-2-8, and;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Funston, Georgia that the Comprehensive Plan shall be adopted, hereby certifying that adequate citizen participation requirements have been met.

day of TUNE 2022. Adopted on the



Liz Chapman, City ¢lerk

Witness

Mayor

se th

Ferrell Ruis

Meeting Advertisements



Public Hearing Notice

Colquitt County and the City of Berlin, Doerun, Ellenton, Funston, Moultrie and Norman Park are conducting a Joint Public Hearing to begin the Colquitt County 5 Year Comprehensive Plan Update on Wednesday, June 9th, 2021 at 6:00 pm at the Colquitt County Courthouse Annex Building, 101 East Central Avenue, 2nd Floor, Room 261-C. The current plan will expire on June 30, 2022. In accordance with the Georgia Minimum Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning (O.C.G.A. Chapter 110-12-1), each community mustconduct a public hearing prior to the start of the planning process.

The purpose of this hearing is to brief the community on the process to be used to develop the plan, opportunities for public participation in development of the plan, and to obtain input on the proposed planning process. Once public comments have been addressed, the community may begin the process of developing the plan.

Copies of the current Comprehensive Plan are available at: http://www.swgrcplanning.org/comprehensive-plans.html

Questions should be directed to:

City of Doerun 233 W. Broad Street Doerun, Georgia 31744 229.782.5009 City of Berlin 283 Langford Street Berlin, Georgia 31722 229.324.2444

City of Funston 115 West Mullberry Street Funston, Georgia 31753 229,941.2770 City of Ellenton 103 N. Baker Street Ellenton, Georgia 31747 229.324.2900

Or, alternatively call Kimberly Brooks, Southwest Georgia Regional Commission, 229-522-3552 ext.110.

8A

1,

ŀ

l

ł



Public Hearing Notice

Colquitt County and the Cities of Berlin, Doerun, Ellenton, Funston, Moultrie, and Norman Park are conducting a Public Hearing to present a draft of the Colquitt County Joint Comprehensive Plan on Thursday, April 21, at 5:00 p.m. at the Colquitt County Courthouse Annex, 2nd Floor, Room 261-C, 101 East Central Avenue, Moultrie, Georgia, 31768. The current plan will expire on June 30, 2022. In accordance with the Georgia Minimum Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning (Chapter 110-12-1), each community must conduct a public hearing once an update of the plan is drafted and made available for public review, but before transmittal to the Regional Commission for review.

The purpose of this hearing is to brief the community on the contents of the plan, provide an opportunity for residents to make final suggestions, additions, or revisions, and notify the community of when the plan is submitted to the Georgia Department of Community Affairs for review.

Copies of the draft Comprehensive Plan are available for viewing and downloading at https://www.swgrcplanning.org/comprehensive-plans.html

Questions should be directed to the Cities of Berlin, Doerun, Ellenton, Funston, Moultrie, Norman Park, and Colquitt County Offices or to Shane Kelsey or Barbara Reddick, Southwest Georgia Regional Commission, 229.522.3552.

Wednesday, 04/13/2022 Page . A008

Copyright (c)2022 The Moultrie Observer, Edition 4/13/202

Wednesday, May 4, 2022

2 people charged box:

By Jack R. Jordan

MOULTRIE, Ga - Two arrests were made in a methamphetamine trafficking case after a resident in Norman Park video taped the suspects trying to bury the drugs.

Karrie Rlizabeth English, 31 and Claude Cowart, 47, both of Moultrie, were identified by an investigator with the Moultrie Police Department-Colquitt County Sheriff's Office Drug Enforcement Team as the suspects in the trafficking case

A resident of Norman Park happened to be look ing out their window late Monday morning when a vehicle pulled up and two individuals got out. The resident captured the two individuals on video as they walked towards a treeline on the resident's property. Cowart and English

were seen on the video

to be walking towards the tree line where they somewhat buried what was later confirmed to be a blue box containing 55 grams of meth," DBT investigator Channing McDowell said in an inter-view Wednesday. The responding officer of the Norman Park Police

Department was able to find the box, which was then turned over to DET. After seeing the video, After seeing the video, McDowell recognized English from a previous possession of meth case that occurred in February. He did not know the man later identified as Cowart. Tuesday afternoon as

McDowell was driving down Highway 319, he saw what he thought was the vehicle seen in the video — which had a distinguish-able crack in the windshield - driven by a man with similar features to the

man in the video. 'He turned into the Pure Gas Station at the intersection of Highway YOURLOCALNEWS

Jack R. Jordan/The Moultrie Observer

Inside the box shown above were 55 grams of methamphetamine and a scale. An eyewitness's video showed two suspects burying the box on private property in Norman Park.

319 and Veterans Parkway. 319 and Veterans Parkway. I decident to pursue and see who was driving. He was parked at a gas pump when I pulled up and tried to get into a parking spice. He saw I was following him and the peeled out," McDowall said. He said he was able to conduct a traffic show on

conduct a traffic stop on Shady Grove Road and arrested Cowart without incident.

'He then started cooper ating a bit after we got into

the interview room and he told us where we could find English." McDowell said.

English was arrested without incident at an abandoned home in the 200 block of Wesi Bethel Ave. Both Cowart and

English were charged Tuesday with trafficking methamphetamine. The reported street value of the 55 grams was "approx-imately \$500," according to

McDowell.

Public Hearing Notice

The Cities of Norman Park and Berlin are conducting a Public Hearing to present a draft of the Colquitt County Joint Comprehensive Plan on the 10th day of May, 2022 at 5:30 P.M. at Norman Park City Hall located at 154 East Broad Street, Norman Park. The current plan will expire on June 30, 2022. In accordance with the Georgia Minimum Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning (Chapter 110-12-1), each community must conduct a public hearing once an update of the plan is drafted and made available for public review, but before transmittal to the Regional Commission for review.

The purpose of this hearing is to brief the community on the contents of the plan, provide an opportunity for residents to make final suggestions, additions, or revisions, and notify the community of when the plan is submitted to the Georgia Department of Community Affairs for review.

Copies of the draft Comprehensive Plan are available for viewing and downloading at https://www.swgrcplanning.org/uploads/6/1/8/4/61849693/ colquitt_county_comprehensive_plan_2022_draft_4-20-2022.pdf

Questions should be directed to the Cities of Berlin, and Norman Park Offices or to Shane Kelsey or Olukayode (Kay) Olubowale, Southwest Georgia Regional Commission, 229.522.3552

Valdosta man pleads guilty in federal child sex case

By Terry Richards herry richards@galikews.co

VALDOSTA, Ga. - A Vaidosta man pleaded guilty in federal court to possessing child pornogra phy, the U.S. Department ustice said.

Ricardo García, 25, of Valdosta pleaded guilty to two counts of possess ing child pornography Tuesday, according to a Justice Department state

Garcia faces up to 20 Garcia faces up to 20 years of imprisonment followed by five years to life of supervised release and a maximum \$250,000 fine per count. In addition, Garcia will have to register as a sex offender upon his release from federal prison. Sentencing has been scheduled for July 26, at

the Albany federal cour-house, according to the statement.

177

The Lowndes County Sheriff's Office received a tip from the National Center for Missing and Exploited Children and the Georgia Bureau of Investigation in August 2020 that Dropbox, an Internet file storage com-pany, had found that two child porn videos had been uploaded which a probe that belonged to Garcia, the justice department said

An investigation showed Garcia's Dropbox account held about 15,000 images and 40 videos of child sexual assault, the statement said. The case was investigat

ed by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security with assistance from and the Lowndes County Sheriff's Office, GBI and the National Center for Missing and Exploited Children

Smith, 51, 1092 Roanoke Ave., McDonough, Ga.,

Norman Park

Police Department

Gretchen Plummen

Doerun Pelice

ARRESTS

tion

ABRESTS

was charged April 25 with driving while license suspended or revoked and tail lights required.

Moultrie Police Department

ARRESTS • Ronald Dale Durbam , 17, 124 Durin Rd., was Jr. charged April 28 with armed robbery and first degree home invasion,

 Brodrick Jerrel Blackwell, 32, was charged April 28 with theft by misdemeanor shoplifting. Marsha Lynn Marsha Lynn Department Kyle Turner Akridge, 31, 2974 Hwy. 270 W., Sal City, was charged April 26 with probation viola-

 During Lynn
Presley, 51, 1200 South
Main St., was charged
April 28 with two counts
of failure to appear and
driving while license sus
pended or revoked.
Prin Larger Dalman · Eric Lamar Palmore

27, 424 First Ave. S.W., was charged April 28 with probation violation.

 Dontrerio Marquiz Uzzeli, 21, 1009 Eighth Ave. was charged April 28 with willful obstruction of law enforcement officers. • Ottis Leonard

Ave Apt 207, was charged April 27 with tag lights required D UL and failure to drive within a single lane. • Keith Brandon Dean,

25, 920 Second St. S.E., was charged April 27 with probation violation

 Treyquan Jamerson, 20, 220 Hawthorne Drive, was charged April 27 with probation viols

Virginia Lee Baker, Please see CRIME, Page 14A

The Moultrie Observer 3A

Topic: Colquitt County and Cities SWOT Review Meeting Time: May 16, 2022 02:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada)

Join Zoom Meeting

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88365510424?pwd=IlgyNu0iYw_ttWg-M2muB4kc219-zl.1

Meeting ID: 883 6551 0424 Passcode: 634094 One tap mobile +19294362866





Public Hearing Notice

The City of Berlin is conducting a Public Hearing to begin the Colquitt County Comprehensive Plan on September 12, 2016 at the Berlin City hall. The current plan will expire on June 30, 2018. In accordance with the Georgia Minimum Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning (O.C.G.A. Chapter 110-12-1), each community must conduct a public hearing prior to the start of the planning process.

The purpose of this hearing is to brief the community on the process to be used to develop the plan, opportunities for public participation in development of the plan, and to obtain input on the proposed planning process. Once public comments have been addressed, the community may begin the process of developing the plan.

Copies of the current Comprehensive Plan are available at: http://www.swgrcplanning.org/comprehensive-plans.html

Questions should be directed to Berlin City hall office Tel: 229-324-2444 or, alternatively call Steve O'Neil, Southwest Georgia Regional Commission, 229-522-3552 ext.1616.

HELP CHART THE COURSE FOR THE FUTURE! - Public Meeting Notice –

The City of Berlin is conducting a public meeting to discuss Goals/Policies and Needs and Opportunities for the city. The meeting date is as follows:

Goals & Objectives – 7 pm October 24th, 2016 at Berlin City Hall Needs & Opportunities - 7 pm November 14th, 2016 at Berlin City Hall

The public is encouraged to attend and provide input on what it views as needs and opportunities and potential future goals and policies in the City of Berlin. The input will be utilized to assist in developing the City's Comprehensive Plan. For more information regarding the Comprehensive Plan please visit:

http://www.swgrcplanning.org/plans-in-progress1.html

Questions should be directed to Steve O'Neil with the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission. Phone: 229-522-3552 ext. 1616

98545





PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE Colquitt County is conducting a Public Hearing to begin the Colquitt County Comprehensive

Plan on Tuesday, September 6, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. The current plan will expire on June 30, 2018. In accordance with the Georgia Minimum Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning (O.C.G.A Chapter 110-12-1), each community must conduct a public hearing prior to the start of the planning process.

The purpose of this hearing is to brief the community on the process to be used to develop the plan, opportunities for public participation in development of the plan, and to obtain input on the proposed planning process. Once public comments have been addressed, the community may begin the process of developing the plan.

Copies of the current Comprehensive Plan are available at: http://www.swgrcplanning.org/comprehensive-plans.html.



Questions should be directed to Mrs. Melissa Lawson, County Clerk Office 261-B, Colquitt County Courthouse Annex, Telephone: 229-616-7409 or call Steve O'Neil, Southwest Georgia Regional Commission, 229-522-3552 ext. 1616.


The Moultrie Observer | Newspaper Ads | Classifieds | Announceme... http://newspaperads.moultrieobserver.com/moultrie-ga/announcemen...

Home (http://newspaperads.moultrieobserver.com) > Announcements (/moultrie-ga/announcements/search) > City and Public Notices (/moultrie-ga/city-and-public-notices/search)

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

The City of Doerun is conducting a Public Hearing to begin the Colquitt County Comprehensive Plan on October 3, 2016 at the city council chambers. The current plan will expire on June 30, 2018. In accordance with the Georging Minimum Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning (O.C.G.A. Chapter 110-12-1), each community must conduct a public hearing prior to the start of the planning process.

The purpose of this hearing is to brief the community on the process to be used to develop the plan, opportunities for public participation in development of the plan, and to obtain input on the proposed planning process. Once public comments have been addressed, the community may begin the process of developing the plan.

> Copies of the current Comprehensive Plan are available at: http://www.swgrcplanning.org/comprehensive-plans.html

Questions should be directed to City of Doerun office Tel: 229-782-5444. Or, alternatively call Steve O'Neil, Southwest Georgia Regional Commission, 229-522-3552 ext.1616.

(http://d2w746i7r32cn5.cloudfront.net/library /COA801CA160ca2386FiwlsDE47EE/photos /COA801811657c061BFGgu2D28593

/9662d1207ef4379e365f30c038b62af6.jpg)

Published September 15, 2016

City of Doerun

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

The

City of Doerun

is conducting a Public Hearing to begin the Colquitt County Comprehensive Plan on October 3, 2016 at the city council chambers. The current plan will expire on June 30, 2018. In accordance with the Georgia Minimum Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning (O.C.G.A. Chapter 110-12-1), each community must conduct a public hearing prior to the start of the planning process.

The purpose of this hearing is to brief the community on the process to be used to develop the plan, opportunities for public participation in development of the plan, and to obtain input on the proposed planning process. Once public comments have been addressed, the community may begin the process of developing the plan. Copies of the current Comprehensive Plan

are available at:

http://www.swgrcplanning.org

/comprehensive-plans.html (http://www.swgrcplanning.org

/comprehensive-plans.html)

Questions should be directed to City of

Doerun office Tel:

229-782-5444.

Or, alternatively call

Steve O'Neil, Southwest Georgia Regional Commission, 229-522-3552 ext.1616 (http://ext.1616).

982272

9/16/2016 10:48 AM

1 of 2

HELP CHART THE COURSE FOR THE FUTURE! - Public Meeting Notice -

The City of Doerun is conducting a public meeting to discuss Goals/Policies and Needs and Opportunities for the city. The meeting date is as follows:

Goals & Objectives - 6 pm January 23rd, 2017 at Doerun City Hall Council Chambers

Needs & Opportunities - 6 pm February 27th, 2017 at Doerun City Hall Council Chambers

The public is encouraged to attend and provide input on what it views as needs and opportunities and potential future goals and policies in the City of Doerun. The input will be utilized to assist in developing the City's Comprehensive Plan. For more information regarding the Comprehensive Plan please visit:

http://www.swgrcplanning.org/plans-in-progress1.html

Questions should be directed to Steve O'Neil with the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission Phone: 229-522-3552 ext. 1616

994729



Republicans are more con-

McAuliffe announced

the Moultrie Observer DA

write in their motion.



s)

gannuny empioyeu. mey

105 ROWLAND DR · MOULTRIE, GA





Public Hearing Notice

The City of Norman Park is conducting a Public Hearing to begin the Colquitt County Comprehensive Plan on October 11, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. at Norman Park City Hall located at 154 East Broad, Norman Park, GA 31771. The current plan will expire on June 30, 2018. In accordance with the Georgia Minimum Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning (O.C.G.A. Chapter 110-12-1), each community must conduct a public hearing prior to the start of the planning process.

The purpose of this hearing is to brief the community on the process to be used to develop the plan, opportunities for public participation in development of the plan, and to obtain input on the proposed planning process. Once public comments have been addressed, the community may begin the process of developing the plan.

> Copies of the current Comprehensive Plan are available at: http://www.swgrcplanning.org/comprehensive-plans.html

Questions should be directed to Norman Park City Hall at 229-769-3611 or, alternatively call Steve O'Neil, Southwest Georgia Regional Commission, 229-522-3552 ext.1616.





42285-1

Public Hearing Notice for Broadband Element Comprehensive Plan Update

Tennis

No. 1 singles is Hayden Holloway. Wier said he has about a .500 record individually, but that's because Holloway takes on the best the other side has to offer.

"There are some really solid singles players in this area of the state," he said. "We have one coming in a couple of weeks who signed with Georgia. That's the level he ends up facing.

"Nathan Corley at No. 2, I think he's 8-2. Mark

playing No. 3. He's done real well. He puts a lot into it. He'll be successful. We just need to make sure he gets going where he needs to be.

Last summer Breedlove was the youngest player (14) at the USTA All-American College Combine

in Orlando. Most days the No. 1 doubles is Zach Tucker and Jacob Icard, two sophomores. Seniors Ian Small and Long make up No. 2, **Collin Fasion also playing**

with Small in a rotation. If Colquitt beats Camden today, it's No. 1

seeds for region; a win for

back in the hunt. "Being the 1 seed is very important the way the tournament is set up," said Wier, "We'll know (today) if we have to win Tuesday or if we are the 1 seed."

In that space of time leading up to the playoffs, those matches with Thomasville will give the Packers a real postsea-son-caliber test. Wier said the Bulldogs could well be a finalist in Class AA this season. He said he's not concerned with an overall record because he's always looking to schedule strong clubs no matter their class

Se Taller

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR THE MOULTRIE COLQUITT COUNTY DEVELOPMENT **AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL AUDITING SERVICES**

The Moultrie Colquitt County Development Authority is requesting bids to provide financial auditing services for the Authority, a 501 (c)(6) organization. The audit will address the finances of the organization on an annual fiscal basis. Proposals should be submitted by March 16, 2020, at 3:00pm for consideration.

Proposals must include: Executive Summary, Professional Experience, Team Qualifications, Audit Approach, Fees, Client References, and any additional information. Additionally, the proposal should include fees for a 3-year contract of providing audit services.

Submissions may be sent via e-mail to bgrogan@selectmoultrie.com, or via mail at P.O. Box 487, Moultrie, GA 31776. Submissions should include proof of insurance and licensing. The selected firm will be notified before or by May 7, 2020. The Moultrie Colquitt County Development Authority reserves the right to refuse all bids. For any questions, proposers should contact Barbara Grogan via email or at (229) 985-2131.

gia talks with a group about the issue of maternal mortality in Georgia at the Capitol Building on Maternal Mortality Awareness Day on Jan. 29. at six months of extended been looking at the six health care providers withcoverage. The issue, he months - to do the most said, is personal to him.

good for the most people.' Rep. Sandra Scott, D-Rex, introduced legislation on Monday that would allow out-of-state women's

'If they can figure out a

way to pay for a year, that'd

be something to consid-

er..." Dugan said. "We've

in 50 miles of the Georgia border to be considered an in-state provider as long as the doctor is in "good standing" in their home state.



JOINT PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

The Colquitt County Board of Commissioners is conducting a Joint Public Hearing to present the Colquitt County Comprehensive Plan on February 17, 2020 at 5:00 p.m., at the Colquitt County Courthouse Annex, 2nd Floor, Room 261-C. In accordance with the Georgia Minimum Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning (Chapter 110-12-1), each community must conduct a public hearing prior to the start of the planning process and once a draft is completed before transmitting to the Department of Community Affairs (DCA). The purpose of this hearing is to accept input on the draft plan before transmitting to the DCA. The draft Comprehensive Plan is available by visiting www.swgrcplanning.org. Questions should be directed to Kimberly Brooks, Planner II, with the Southwest Georgia Regional Commission at 229-522-3552 ext. 110.



JOINT PUBLIC HEARING - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE Project: Colquitt Co. Comprehensive Plan Meeting Date: 6/9/2021 Facilitator: Kimberly Brooks - Regional Commission Place/Room: Room 261-C/Annex Title Company Phone E-Mail Name Clerk 616-1409 CBOC MUSON mawsonakchor 110 City of Clerk 324- 2900 Cityhall @ellentonga.com Ellenton aty of Anch Council 324.2900 Ellentur Soffens POLICE CHIEF 782-5440 FRANK Voldoern.u. ERCE ocrumpd p tik Mouthe 668-023 Itrica 985-4545 Kevin hall @ gaf Inews.com The Observer ShiGRE 256-970 87800 hubowa Vanne U City of FUNSTON 229-589-Mayor Page 1 of 2



Colquitt County and Cities Joint Comprehensive Plan 5yr Update 2nd Public Hearing Meeting Thursday, April 21, 2022 @ 5:00 PM Sign in Sheet

Name	Phone Number	Email Address	Agency or Organization
evad BRANCH	229-326-9486		City of EllenTON
lichi Buna	229 324 2900	cityhall@ellentonga.com	City of Ellenton
who du Taylor	209-1825444-X210	City Cleark @ City Schoenen Com	City of Doesen
Pis Chapman	229-941-2770	cityozhino by Windstream net	at of Funstan
Formall Ruis	229-589-2125	10/11 11 11 11	City of Funston
Tina Coleman	229-668-0023	ting. colemane mouthega.cu	City of moutine
Stiednen Gallai	229-668-7223		City of Mouthic-
Molissa Bhousen	729.616.7409	Stechen gallar any trieg com	Conjust Coully
hykarred Ohybowal	229-522-3552	ostubou li asware org	SWIGARC.
	1		
	0		
		1	



City of Norman Park and City of Berlin Second Public Hearing for the Joint Colquitt County Comprehensive Plan Five-Year Update Tuesday, May 10, 2022 @ 5:30 PM Sign in Sheet

Name	Phone Number	Email Address	Agency or Organization
DAVA TAMBA			REEDEST
ARK L. BREDWELL	229-873-4629	MLB 3101@ Cmails con	cry of Breltar
Mark L lowell	229-769-5126	Lusty 23We YALOD. com	Resident
ope Anoder	769-361	hope anodore normonpolige	gor thy of numerope
Jula tato	229-813-2874	Colgo. HERAN Atu 2 6 1 Stren 10	MAUOR
alla Weeks	221-769-3611	paina weeks & nor a partica a	a city le k
huck Snyler	229-769-3611		
Wayide Outour	1 227-527-3552	oolubourlesswan.org	SWGRE.
/			
	,		



Colquitt County and the Cities Comprehensive Plan Five-Year Update SWOT Review Meeting Monday, May 16, 2022 @ 2:00 PM Sign in Sheet

Name	Phone Number	Email Address	Agency or Organization
Mlissa Lawson	229-616-7409	mlawson@ccboc.com	Colquitt County
Hope Amador	229-769-3611	Hope.amador@normanparkga.gov	City of Norman Park
Tina Coleman	229-668-0023	Tina.coleman@moultriega.com	City of Moultrie
Liz Chapman	229-941-2770	cityoffunston@windstream.net	City of Funston
Vicki Bunn	229-324-2900	cityhall@ellentonga.com	City of Ellenton
Kimberly Taylor	229-782-5444	cityclerk@cityofdoerun.com	City of Doerun
Miranda Merritt	229-324-2444	cityclerk@cityofberlinga.com	City of Berlin
Olukayode Olubowale	229-522-3552	oolubowale@swgrc.org	SWGRC

Meeting Sign-in Sheets

		S.W. O.T. Meeting
	None	Email Address
	Vicki mccoy	city of bealin & windstream. Net
	Scott Merrit	merritt _ 269@ yahoo, com
	Jina Bridwell	++ jb 3107@gmail.com
•	Curtis Ahridge	Cakridge@windstream.net
	Melissa Weathers	mweathers 22@yahoo.com
	Gary MiAm	- gnilanehstonoof.com
	Afamilton Garner	jhgarnere Moultriega.net

Public Meeting Sign In Sheet

	Date: October 24th 2016		Facilitator: Steve O'Neil	
	Location: Berlin City Hall council chambers			
1	Name	Address	Email Address	
	Melipalleathers	POBOX 22 Berlin 31722	milliathers 22@uahoo. com	
2	Day mian	POBOX372 Berlin 31722	anilama hintoroil. con	
3	MARK L. BRIDWELL	P.U. BOX 14 BERLEN UN. 31722	MB = P WENDSTREAM. WET	
•	Tina Bridwell	P. D. Box 14 Berlin, GA 31722	tib 3107 @ omail, com	
;	Vicki macoy	PO. BOX 261 Berlin GA 31722	Vick herd @ yahas com	
;			0)	
'	N			
, [
.0				
.1				
2				
3				
4				

City of Funston Needs & Opportunitics Meeting 12-13-16 addres email robbie. clayton. sr3u@statefarm. com dobson stripling a gmail . com Dobson in 0 10

Public Meeting Sign In Sheet Date: October 17th 2016 Facilitator: Steve O'Neil Location: Ellenton City Council Chambers Email Address Address Name P.O Box 40 Ellenton 1 GA cityhall @ellenton ga.com Bunn 2 Percu A.J. PD 50 40 Ellenton GA Bar OD mayor legense @ hotmail, com 3 4 5 m 6

	ALLAR RITY AL.	11-0. Dox 70 Elleator GT	Car may reirusi (notmanli (
1	aver faction	Po Box 191 Filenton BK	
1	APA	P.O Box 236 Ellenton GA	
1	Down (d BARNOH	PO Box 174 Ellenton GA	Kathy bruch 1230 yahoo. Com
1	Judy Phillips	PUBUX 33 Ellenton GA	/
	1		
D			
1			
2			
3			
4			
5			
5			

Date: December 1st 2016		Facilitator: Steve O'Neil
Location: Ellenton City Hall Council Cha	mbers	
Name	Address	Email Address
Victi Burn	P.O Box 40 Ellenton GA	Cityhall@ellentonga.com
Mation Hay	Moultrie GA	mhayol@windstream.net
Audie Perry Sr.	P. D. Box 40 Ellenter GA	mayorPerrysre hetmail, com
Oowald BRANCH	POBOX 174 Ellenton 14	
munter Bonn	P. o Box 101 Eller tin Da 31742	
avery flack son	P.O. Box 191 Ellenton G& STAT	
Judy Phillips	PO Box 33 Ellenton, GA 31747	
Dorothy Hart	PO Box 24 Ellenton (-A 3175)	
l		

Date: October 27th 2016		Facilitator: Steve O'Neil		
Location: Moultrie City Hall council cha	ambers			
Name	Address	Email Address		
HARRISON ISAACS	135 LOWER MEIGS ROAD	HARRISON ISAACS @ GMAIL COM		
Annette Hadley		annette had ley 229 D Gmail. Com		
Tina Coleman J	3338 Evergreen Rd Doenin, GA 31744	tina. coloman amoultinega. cm.		
Daniel L. Dunn	145 Old Tram Road Moutrie, GA 31	168 daniel dunn 1965 Bamail.com		
Wilma L. Hadley	120 8th Ave SE Moultrie, GA3176	& hadleywilmagraho, com		
Angla Castellon	114 Dearred Ciscle Mantha 3176	I uncolquitta montri e garret		
BILL MCINTOSH	18 OLD TRAM RD MOULTINE, GA 5/7 5	bmcintosh@moultriega.net		
Peter Dillard	2 aviet cove	pete. d. Il And moulteregg Not.		
)				
.0				
1				
.2				
.3				
4				
5				
.6				

		Public Mee	ting Sign In Sheet	
	Date: October 3rd 2016		Facilitator: Steve O'Neil	
	Location: Colquitt County Board of Commi	issioners Chaambers		
	Name	Addre	255 2-16	Email Address
1	BEAB YOUNG	1102 S, Bidu	SE MOULTIP ,GA	Email Address BRAD. 40009 @ JAhow com Br76 (G. 70B) -
2	L.C. Shepheard	POB 874 Residence 100	9th Ave. NN. Mouthichz.	31776 (For POB) -
3	Barbara Jelks	702 7th Ave. NW 1	Noulfrie GA 31768	bielks 70@qmail.com
4	Justin Cap	4347 Tallokes Road	Moultone GA 31788	justin. lox @ ccboc. com
5	Brent Chitty	I longlest office Park	Monetini, 31768	justin. cox @ cchoc. com brente brentchitty. um
6	1			
7				
8				
9				
10				
11				
12				
13				
14				
15				
16				

Public Monting Sign In Sh

Date: October 18th 2016		Facilitator: Steve O'Neil
Location: Norman Park City Council	Chambers	
Name	Address	Email Address
VEREMY HENRY	154 E. BRORD ST. 1 PO BOX 197, NORMAN PA	EK GA Shenry 99 Bahoo.com
Hope B. Amader	P.O. Bux 197 / 154 East Broad Norm	er 64 ishenry99 Behoo.com anpek Nepe. Quarte normanperkga.sur
1		
		6
l		
2		
3		
1		
5		
5		

	Date: February 27th 2017		Facilitator: Steve O'Neil		
	Location: Doerun City Hall Council Chambe	ers			
	Name	Address	Email Address		
1	Handy Calto	314 West BLONDSST			
2	Suprina Greene	304 Hadden Are: Doern 31744	Suprina @ windstream. net		
3	Judy Colemon	413 N. Broad St. Doenn 31744	- jL-Coleman a Jellsmith Not		
4	Bevin Branch	191 HNY 270 West Dessun 31744	us@cityofdoorun.com		
5	Merisha Cavelock	1911 BIDSOM COURT 317108	City Clerk @ City of doerin. Com		
6	MICHAEL CHAPBELL	831 N. GREEN ST 31744	MC AMPAGLE SA O WIND STREAM. NET		
7	FRANK PIERCE	397 CHILDREE RD. 31744	doerun pol @ cityof doerun.co		
8	John Walters	605 N. Green St. Docran, 6A S1744	Swalters@wetshet.Com		
9	Shavon Walters	6318 Gen Hur, 270 Sale City Gon 31780	sharonw@city of doenin.com		
10		/ //			
11					
12					
13					
14					
15					
16	5				

	Date: November 8th 2016		Facilitator: Steve O'Neil		
	Location: Funston City Hall Council Cham	bers			
	Name	Address	Email Address		
1	Kebbie Clayton	183 Spiver Dr	robbie. clayton. Sr 3u@ state farm. com		
2	Bothy Rins	204 N MAIXHING			
3	Anne Rus	182 N. MONNING ST P. D. Box 89	rityoffunctor@windstream. net		
4	Liz Chapman	3233 Sylvester Dr. Mouttie 6A	lizchap 77@ yahoo.com		
5	Dolson thirty	Box 200 Funston, Ga 31753			
6	1 0	1			
7					
8					
9					
10					
11					
12					
13					
14					
15		(b)			
16					

	Date: October 25th 2016		Facilitator: Steve O'Neil
	Location: Norman Park City Hall coun	cil chambers	
	Name	Address	Email Address
1	Hope Amadar	154 East Broad, Norman Park, 643171	hope. anador @ normanporkga.ger
2	Churk Snike	PO Box 611 Norman Park, 64 31771	Chuck Snyder@ Norman Parkage . 600
3		1 1	
4			
5			
6			
7			
8			
9			
10			
11			
12			
13			
14			
15			
16			

Dat	te: October 6th 2016		Facilitator: Steve O'Neil				
Loc	cation: Moultrie City Council Chambers						
	Name	Address	Email Address				
1	PETER DillARD	2 QUIET COVE	peterdilland @ moulterega.com tim.coleman@muthiesa.com				
2 7	Tha Weman		tin coleman@multiega.cm				
3	traela Castrellow	114 Degrook Cibly	nw colonitta montosippo. no				
4	Bui Mc Sotal	18 OLD TRAM RD	breintosh@moultrieg2.net				
5	Risa Clarke Ifill	728 2nd St N.W. Muul	the mouthier our cituminacia chill B				
6			grait. Gr				
7							
8							
9							
10							
11							
12							
13							
14							
15							
16							

		Public Meeting Sign In Sheet	
	Date: March 20th 2017		Facilitator: Steve O'Neil
	Location: Doerun City Hall Council Chambe	rs	
	Name	Address	Email Address
1	Suprina Greene	304 Hadden Are: P.D. Box 481; Doer	~ Suprina@Windstream.net
2	Suly Odeman	413 N. Broad street, POBox 3	
3	Kevin Branch	191 HWY 270 West Doorun GA 31744	uspertyof docrun, com
4	Ernie Wimberry	P.O. BOX41 DOETAN EA	Fruie Wimberry @ yaho , con
5	Merisha Cavelock	1911 BLOSSOM CONTSE Mouthin Ga	cityclerk@Cityof doerun. Com
6	Renky Dalton	349 Brondst Dozem	0 - 0
7	Shimm Walters	(0318 Goe Huy 270 Sale City Go	shown w @ city of doeren.com
8	FRANK PIERCE	397 CHILDREE RD. DORRING, GA	doerungd @ city of doerun.com
9			
10			
11		-	
12			
13			
14			
15			
16			

Date: November	7th 2016		Facilitator: Steve O'Neil
Location: Colquit	t County Commission Ch	ambers	
	Name	Address	Email Address
Justin	H. Cx	101 East Contral Are Mouthrie 6A 31768	justin. Cox@ ccboc. com
Brats A Y	0000 m	1102 South BIDU SE, MOUTHIND, 64 31708	
Barbara	Jelks	702 7th Ave NW Moultrie, GA 31768	
Breut Chit	ty .	I Longleaf Park Mouthin 6a 31768	breat c breat chitty, com
,	7		1
D			
1			
2			
3			
4			
5			
6			

Sign in Sheet for Broadband Element Comprehensive Plan Update

Location	on Courthouse Annex			Meeting Date:		February 17, 2020
Facilitator:	County			Plac	ce/Room:	Room 261-C
Name		Agency	Phone		E-Mail	
Melisia	Jamson	CCBOC Cityof Cilienton	lo16:74	29_		<u>2507@ccbc.cov</u> pewysr@hotmailu
Kow Bri TIMA GO		City of Multin	891-055 668-05		city, man tina. (agorbertystolocnes,c
Justin		CCBOC				triega.com Cox C Ccbor.com
Kimberen	J Brooks	SWGRC	622,35		V I	is a Sugre. org
						5 6
_						
		-				

Page 1 of 1

City of Function city Hall

Jaarch 19,2020

	Name	Phone #	Email Address
17 X	Jimberely Brooks	SWGRC	Kimber kbrocks@swgrc.orcp
18	Nitanda Merritt	324-2444	cityclurk e cityof ber linga com
19 +	bee Amodor	229-769-3611	hope anodore norman pola
20	Lis Chapman	229-941-2770	city of function @ windstream. nct &
21	Ferrell Rus	229-589-2125	J O/
22			
23			
24			
25			
26			
27			
28			
29			
30			
31			
32			
33			
34			

Appendix

SUPPLEMENTARY ECONOMIC STATISTICS/DATA (COLQUITT COUNTY)

Total Residential Population: Employee/Residential Population Ratio: by STC Codes Agriculture & Mining Construction Manufacturing Transportation Communication Utility Wholesale Trade Retail Trade Summary Home Improvement General Merchandise Stores Food Stores Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket Apparel & Accessory Stores Furniture & Home Furnishings Eating & Orniking Places Miscellaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices	Busine Number 49 58 24 28 8 1 28		0 88 1 Emplo Number 318	
Total Residential Population: Total Residential Population Ratio: by SIC Codes Agriculture & Mining Construction Manufacturing Transportation Communication Utility Wholesale Trade Retail Trade Summary Home Improvement General Merchandise Stores Food Stores Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket Apparel & Accessory Stores Furniture & Home Furnishings Eating & Drinking Places Miscellaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automarker Services Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices	Number 49 58 24 28 8 1	5,82 29,48 0.2: esses Percent 8.8% 10.4% 4.3%	0 88 1 Emplo Number 318	Percen
Total Residential Population: Employee/Residential Population Ratio: by SIC Codes Agriculture & Mining Construction Manufacturing Transportation Communication Utility Wholesale Trade Retail Trade Summary Home Improvement General Merchandise Stores Food Stores Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket Apparel & Accessory Stores Furniture & Home Furnishings Eating & Drinking Places Miscellaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	Number 49 58 24 28 8 1	29,48 0.2: esses Percent 8.8% 10.4% 4.3%	88 1 Emplo Number 318	
Employee/Residential Population Ratio: by SIC Codes Agriculture & Mining Construction Manufacturing Transportation Communication Utility Wholesale Trade Retail Trade Summary Home Improvement General Merchandise Stores Food	Number 49 58 24 28 8 1	0.2: esses Percent 8.8% 10.4% 4.3%	1 Emplo Number 318	Percen
by SIC Codes Aqriculture & Mining Construction Manufacturing Transportation Communication Uility Wholesale Trade Retail Trade Summary Home Improvement General Merchandise Stores Food Stores Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket Apparel & Accessory Stores Furniture & Home Furnishings Eating & Deminishings Eating & Deminish	Number 49 58 24 28 8 1	esses Percent 8.8% 10.4% 4.3%	Emplo Number 318	Percent
Agriculture & Mining Construction Manufacturing Transportation Communication Utility Wholesale Trade Wholesale Trade Summary Hore Improvement General Merchandise Stores Food Stores Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket Apparel & Accessory Stores Food Food Food Food Food Food Food Food	Number 49 58 24 28 8 1	Percent 8.8% 10.4% 4.3%	Number 318	Percen
Agriculture & Mining Construction Manufacturing Transportation Communication Utility Wholesale Trade Retail Trade Summary Home Improvement General Merchandise Stores Food Stores Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket Apparel & Accessory Stores Furniture & Home Furnishings Eating & Drinking Places Miscellaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	Number 49 58 24 28 8 1	Percent 8.8% 10.4% 4.3%	Number 318	Percent
Agriculture & Mining Construction Manufacturing Transportation Communication Utility Wholesale Trade Retail Trade Summary Home Improvement General Merchandise Stores Food Stores Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket Apprent & Accessory Stores Furniture & Home Furnishings Eating & Drinking Places Miscellaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automative Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	49 58 24 28 8 1	8.8% 10.4% 4.3%	318	
Construction Manufacturing Transportation Communication Uility Wholesale Trade Retail Trade Summary Home Improvement General Merchandise Stores Food Stores Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket Apparel & Accessory Stores Furniture & Home Furnishings Eating & Drinking Places Miscellaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	24 28 8 1	4.3%		
Manufacturing Transportation Communication Utility Wholesale Trade Retail Trade Summary Home Improvement General Merchandise Stores Food Stores Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket Apparel & Accessory Stores Fumiture & Home Furnishings Eating & Drinking Places Miscellaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	28 8 1		229	3.9%
Transportation Communication Communication Utility Wholesale Trade Retail Trade Summary Home Improvement General Merchandise Stores Food Stores Food Stores Food Stores Food Stores Food Stores Furniture & Anome Furnishings Eating & Drinking Places Miscelaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	8 1	5.0%	286	4.9%
Communication Utility Wholesale Trade Retail Trade Summary Home Improvement General Merchandise Stores Food Stores Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket Apparel & Accessory Stores Furniture & Home Furnishings Eating & Drinking Places Miscellaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Miscelluneous Retail	8 1		292	5.0%
Utility Wholesale Trade Wholesale Trade Wholesale Trade Retail Trade Summary Home Improvement General Merchandise Stores Food		1.4%	49	0.8%
Wholesale Trade Retail Trade Summary Home Improvement General Merchandise Stores Food Stores Food Stores Food Stores Food Stores Food Stores Furniture & Home Furnishings Eating & Drinking Places Miscellaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Hoton Pictures & Amusements		0.2%	6	
Home Improvement General Merchandise Stores Food Stores Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket Apparel & Accessory Stores Furniture & Home Furnishings Eating & Drinking Places Miscellaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements		5.0%	1,039	17.9%
Home Improvement General Merchandise Stores Food Stores Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket Apparel & Accessory Stores Furniture & Home Furnishings Eating & Drinking Places Miscellaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements				
General Merchandise Stores Food Stores Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket Apparel & Accessory Stores Furniture & Home Furnishings Eating & Drinking Places Miscellaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	101	18.2%	832	14.3%
Food Stores Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket Apparel & Accessory Stores Furniture & Home Furnishings Eating & Uninking Places Miscellaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Hoton Pictures & Amusements	10	1.8%	110	1.9%
Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket Apparel & Accessory Stores Furniture & Home Furnishings Eating & Drinking Places Miscellaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	6	1.1%	36	0.6%
Apparel & Accessory Stores Furniture & Home Furnishings Eating & Drinking Places Miscellaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	18	3.2%	183	3.1%
Furniture & Home Furnishings Eating & Drinking Places Miscellaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	24	4.3%	154	2.6%
Furniture & Home Furnishings Eating & Drinking Places Miscellaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	1	0.2%	1	0.0%
Eating & Drinking Places Miscellaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	8	1.4%	36	0.6%
Miscellaneous Retail Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	10	1.8%	97	1.7%
Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	25	4.5%	214	3.7%
Securities Brokers Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	37	6.7%	108	1.9%
Insurance Carriers & Agents Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	16	2.9%	26	0.4%
Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	2	0.4%	26	0.4%
Services Summary Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	6	1.1%	13	0.2%
Hotels & Lodging Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	13	2.3%	42	0.7%
Automotive Services Motion Pictures & Amusements	175	31.5%	2,394	41.1%
Motion Pictures & Amusements	2	0.4%	18	0.3%
	25	4.5%	81	1.4%
Health Services	9	1.6%	24	0.4%
	23	4.1%	1,197	20.6%
Legal Services	1	0.2%	3	0.1%
Education Institutions & Libraries	10	1.8%	401	6.9%
Other Services	105	18.9%	671	11.5%
Government	27	4.9%	259	4.5%
Unclassified Establishments	20	3.6%	7	0.1%
Totals	556	100.0%	5,820	100.0%



Business Summary Colquitt_Co.zip Area: 535.42 square miles

Prepared by SWGRC

	Busine	esses	Employees	
by NAICS Codes	Number	Percent	Number	Percer
Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing & Hunting	38	6.8%	289	5.0
Mining	0	0.0%	0	0.0
Jtilities	1	0.2%	6	0.1
Construction	58	10.4%	230	4.0
Manufacturing	26	4.7%	311	5.3
Wholesale Trade	28	5.0%	1,030	17.7
Retail Trade	88	15.8%	713	12.3
Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers	20	3.6%	141	2.4
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores	2	0.4%	15	0.3
Electronics & Appliance Stores	2	0.4%	4	0.1
Bldg Material & Garden Equipment & Supplies Dealers	8	1.4%	104	1.8
Food & Beverage Stores	18	3.2%	181	3.1
Health & Personal Care Stores	4	0.7%	19	0.3
Gasoline Stations	4	0.7%	13	0.2
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores	1	0.2%	2	0.0
Sport Goods, Hobby, Book, & Music Stores	4	0.7%	7	0.1
General Merchandise Stores	6	1.1%	36	0.6
Miscellaneous Store Retailers	16	2.9%	173	3.0
Nonstore Retailers	2	0.4%	18	0.3
Transportation & Warehousing	26	4.7%	284	4.9
Information	10	1.8%	59	1.0
Finance & Insurance	25	4.5%	69	1.2
Central Bank/Credit Intermediation & Related Activities	17	3.1%	29	0.5
Securities, Commodity Contracts & Other Financial	2	0.4%	26	0.4
Insurance Carriers & Related Activities; Funds, Trusts &	6	1.1%	13	
Real Estate, Rental & Leasing	22	4.0%	66	
Professional, Scientific & Tech Services	18	3.2%	94	1.6
Legal Services	1	0.2%	3	
Management of Companies & Enterprises	0	0.0%	3	0.1
Administrative & Support & Waste Management & Remediation	21	3.8%	101	1.7
Educational Services	10	1.8%	400	6.9
Health Care & Social Assistance	32	5.8%	1,484	25.5
Arts, Entertainment & Recreation	8	1.4%	24	0.4
Accommodation & Food Services	12	2.2%	116	2.0
Accommodation	2	0.4%	18	0.3
Food Services & Drinking Places	10	1.8%	98	1.7
Other Services (except Public Administration)	86	15.5%	275	4.7
Automotive Repair & Maintenance	20	3.6%	68	1.2
Public Administration	27	4.9%	259	4.5
	27		233	1.5
Jnclassified Establishments	20	3.6%	7	0.1
Total	556	100.0%	5,820	100.0
Source: Copyright 2016 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved. Esri Total Residential Population forecasts for 2016.				



Disposable Income Profile

Prepared by SWGRC

Colquitt_Co.zip
Area: 535.42 square miles

						2016-202		2016-202
	Census 2010		2016		021	Chang		nnual Rat
Population	28,400		29,488		,081	59	5500	0.40%
Median Age	35.0		35.6		36.7	1.	1	0.61%
Households	9,830		10,140	10	,307	16	7	0.339
Average Household Size	2.84		2.86		2.87	0.0	1	0.079
2016 Households by Disposable In	come					Nu	mber	Percen
Total						1	0,140	100.00
<\$15,000							2,067	20.49
\$15,000-\$24,999							1,895	18.70
\$25,000-\$34,999							1,540	15.29
\$35,000-\$49,999							1,615	15.99
\$50,000-\$74,999							1,781	17.69
\$75,000-\$99,999							664	6.5
\$100,000-\$149,999							427	4.2
\$150,000-\$199,999							80	0.8
\$200,000+							70	0.7
Median Disposable Income						\$3	1,523	
Average Disposable Income						\$4	2,030	
				Number	r of Househ	olds		
2016 Disposable Income by Age of	Householder	<25	25-34	35-44	45-54	55-64	65-74	75
Total		417	1,648	1,805	1,856	1,864	1,557	99
<\$15,000		118	381	278	287	396	302	30
\$15,000-\$24,999		84	344	297	276	288	358	24
\$25,000-\$34,999		80	256	289	210	232	284	19
\$35,000-\$49,999		52	254	318	297	337	229	12
\$50,000-\$74,999		46	284	427	401	343	205	7
\$75,000-\$99,999		28	72	117	194	137	90	2
\$100,000-\$149,999		9	43	55	139	100	66	1
\$150,000-\$199,999		1	10	17	22	16	11	
\$200,000+		0	4	9	30	14	12	
		\$25,606	\$28,118	\$36,323	\$41,564	\$35,472	\$28,335	\$21,75
Median Disposable Income		\$25,000	\$20,110	\$30,323	\$T1,507	\$JJ,7/2	\$20,555	PZ1,/-

Data Note: Disposable Income is after-tax household income. Disposable income forecasts are based on the Current Population Survey, U.S. Census Bureau. Detail may not sum to totals due to rounding
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021.



Household Budget Expenditures

Colquitt_Co.zip Area: 535.42 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

Demographic Summary			2016	202
Population			29,488	30,08
Households			10,140	10,30
Families			7,580	7,67
Median Age			35.6	36
Median Household Income			\$37,498	\$43,20
	Spending Potential	Average Amount		
	Index	Spent	Total	Perce
Total Expenditures	69	\$45,610.64	\$462,491,862	100.0
Food	71	\$5,757.83	\$58,384,353	12.6
Food at Home	72	\$3,583.98	\$36,341,530	7.9
Food Away from Home	70	\$2,173.85	\$22,042,823	4.8
Alcoholic Beverages	65	\$333.23	\$3,378,945	0.7
Housing	67	\$13,673.07	\$138,644,921	30.0
Shelter	64	\$10,017.45	\$101,576,931	22.0
Utilities, Fuel and Public Services	75	\$3,655.62	\$37,067,990	8.0
Household Operations	67	\$1,150.18	\$11,662,844	2.5
Housekeeping Supplies	73	\$511.61	\$5,187,700	1.1
Household Furnishings and Equipment	69	\$1,212.52	\$12,294,942	2.7
Apparel and Services	69	\$1,382.35	\$14,017,007	3.0
Transportation	74	\$5,981.97	\$60,657,208	13.1
Travel	63	\$1,168.11	\$11,844,645	2.6
Health Care	72	\$3,828.41	\$38,820,117	8.4
Entertainment and Recreation	70	\$2,035.25	\$20,637,470	4.5
Personal Care Products & Services	69	\$504.92	\$5,119,841	1.1
Education	56	\$792.88	\$8,039,759	1.7
Smoking Products	82	\$334.68	\$3,393,634	0.7
Lotteries & Pari-mutuel Losses	68	\$42.54	\$431,318	0.1
Legal Fees	70	\$108.71	\$1,102,276	0.2
Funeral Expenses	84	\$72.28	\$732,938	0.2
Safe Deposit Box Rentals	70	\$2.76	\$28,036	0.0
Checking Account/Banking Service Charges	65	\$21.69	\$219,897	0.0
Cemetery Lots/Vaults/Maintenance Fees	67	\$6.92	\$70,183	0.0
Accounting Fees	63	\$56.33	\$571,157	0.1
Miscellaneous Personal Services/Advertising/Fine	64	\$38.65	\$391,891	0.1
Occupational Expenses	57	\$38.31	\$388,464	0.1
Expenses for Other Properties	70	\$96.79	\$981,401	0.2
Credit Card Membership Fees	57	\$2.21	\$22,405	0.0
Shopping Club Membership Fees	63	\$10.45	\$105,954	0.0
Support Payments/Cash Contributions/Gifts in Kind	70	\$1,619.39	\$16,420,591	3.6
Life/Other Insurance	70	\$288.34	\$2,923,761	0.6
Pensions and Social Security	67	\$4,538.28	\$46,018,201	10.0

Data Note: The Spending Potential Index (SPI) is household-based, and represents the amount spent for a product or service relative to a national average of 100. Detail may not sum to totals due to rounding.
 Source: Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021; Consumer Spending data are derived from the 2013 and 2014 Consumer Expenditure Surveys, Bureau of Labor Statistics.



Colquitt_Co.zip Area: 535.42 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

Population Summary	
2000 Total Population	25,30
2010 Total Population	28,40
2016 Total Population	29,48
2016 Group Quarters	4
2020 Total Population	30,0
2016-2021 Annual Rate	0.40
Household Summary	
2000 Households	8,91
2000 Average Household Size	2.7
2010 Households	9,83
2010 Average Household Size	2.8
2016 Households	10,14
2016 Average Household Size	2.8
2021 Households	10,30
2021 Average Household Size	2.8
2016-2021 Annual Rate	0.33
2010 Families	7,40
2010 Average Family Size	3.2
2016 Families	7,58
2016 Average Family Size	3.2
2021 Families	7,67
2021 Average Family Size	3.3
2016-2021 Annual Rate	0.24
Housing Unit Summary	0.21
2000 Housing Units	10,00
Owner Occupied Housing Units	66.6
Renter Occupied Housing Units	22.50
Vacant Housing Units	10.90
2010 Housing Units	10.9
Owner Occupied Housing Units	64.3
Renter Occupied Housing Units	25.7
Vacant Housing Units	10.00
2016 Housing Units	11,16
Owner Occupied Housing Units	61.5
Renter Occupied Housing Units	29.3
Vacant Housing Units	9.2
2021 Housing Units	11,34
Owner Occupied Housing Units	61.3
Renter Occupied Housing Units	29.5
Vacant Housing Units	9.2
Median Household Income	107.4
2016	\$37,49
2021	\$43,20
Median Home Value	
2016	\$84,78
2021	\$112,52
Per Capita Income	
2016	\$18,3
2021	\$20,14
Median Age	
2010	35
2016	35
2021	36

Data Note: Household population includes persons not residing in group quarters. Average Household Size is the household population divided by total households. Persons in families include the householder and persons related to the householder by birth, marriage, or adoption. Per Capita Income represents the income received by all persons aged 15 years and over divided by the total population. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Colquitt_Co.zip Area: 535.42 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

2016 Households by Income	
Household Income Base	10
<\$15,000	17
\$15,000 - \$24,999	16
\$25,000 - \$34,999	12
\$35,000 - \$49,999	15
\$50,000 - \$74,999	17
\$75,000 - \$99,999	9
\$100,000 - \$149,999	7
\$150,000 - \$199,999	1
\$200,000+	1
Average Household Income	\$52
2021 Households by Income	
Household Income Base	10
<\$15,000	18
\$15,000 - \$24,999	14
\$25,000 - \$34,999	ç
\$35,000 - \$49,999	13
\$50,000 - \$74,999	20
\$75,000 - \$99,999	10
\$100,000 - \$149,999	9
\$150,000 - \$199,999	
\$200,000+	
Average Household Income	\$57
2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units by Value	40.
Total	6
<\$50,000	30
\$50,000 - \$99,999	28
\$100,000 - \$149,999	12
\$150,000 - \$199,999	11
\$200,000 - \$249,999	
\$250,000 - \$299,999	
\$300,000 - \$399,999	-
\$400,000 - \$499,999	-
\$500,000 - \$749,999	
\$750,000 - \$999,999	1
\$1,000,000 +	
Average Home Value	\$131
2021 Owner Occupied Housing Units by Value	\$151
Total	6
<\$50,000	20
\$50,000 - \$99,999	19
\$100,000 - \$149,999	1
	1:
\$150,000 - \$199,999 \$200,000 - \$249,999	1
\$200,000 - \$299,999	
\$300,000 - \$399,999 \$400,000 - \$400,000	
\$400,000 - \$499,999	
\$500,000 - \$749,999	
\$750,000 - \$999,999	
\$1,000,000 +	(
Average Home Value	\$148

Data Note: Income represents the preceding year, expressed in current dollars. Household income includes wage and salary earnings, interest dividends, net rents, pensions, SSI and welfare payments, child support, and alimony. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Colquitt_Co.zip Area: 535.42 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

2010 Population by Age	
Total	28,39
0 - 4	8.1
5 - 9	7.5
10 - 14	7.3
15 - 24	14.1
25 - 34	13.0
35 - 44	13.7
45 - 54	12.9
55 - 64	11.1
65 - 74	7.4
75 - 84	3.6
85 +	1.3
18 +	72.4
2016 Population by Age	
Total	29,48
0 - 4	7.7
5 - 9	7.6
10 - 14	7.2
15 - 24	13.1
25 - 34	13.8
35 - 44	13.0
45 - 54	12.6
55 - 64	12.0
65 - 74	8.7'
75 - 84	3.7
85 +	
85 + 18 +	1.3' 73.6'
	/3.0
2021 Population by Age Total	20.00
	30,08
0 - 4	7.3
5 - 9	7.5
10 - 14	7.7
15 - 24	12.4
25 - 34	12.9
35 - 44	13.1
45 - 54	12.2
55 - 64	11.6
65 - 74	9.5
75 - 84	4.4
85 +	1.4
18 +	73.3
2010 Population by Sex	
Males	14,34
Females	14,05
2016 Population by Sex	
Males	14,92
Females	14,50
2021 Population by Sex	
Males	15,23
Females	14,84

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

Besrl Market Profile	
Colquitt_Co.zip Area: 535.42 square miles	Prepared by SWGR
2010 Population by Race/Ethnicity	
Total	28,399
White Alone	73.5%
Black Alone	12.2%
American Indian Alone	0.5%
Asian Alone	0.7%
Pacific Islander Alone	0.0%
Some Other Race Alone	11.7%
Two or More Races	1.3%
Hispanic Origin	19.0%
Diversity Index	61.5
2016 Population by Race/Ethnicity	
Total	29,488
White Alone	71.1%
Black Alone	12.6%
American Indian Alone	0.6%
Asian Alone	1.0%
Pacific Islander Alone	0.0%
Some Other Race Alone	13.1%
Two or More Races	1.7%
Hispanic Origin	21.2%
Diversity Index	65.3
2021 Population by Race/Ethnicity	
Total	30,082
White Alone	69.0%
Black Alone	12.6%
American Indian Alone	0.6%
Asian Alone	1.3%
Pacific Islander Alone	0.0%
Some Other Race Alone	14.5%
Two or More Races	1.9%
Hispanic Origin	23.6%
Diversity Index	68.5
2010 Population by Relationship and Household Type	
Total	28,400
In Households	98.3%
In Family Households	87.5%
Householder	26.3%
Spouse	19.4%
Child	33.9%
Other relative	5.0%
Nonrelative	2.8%
In Nonfamily Households	10.8%
In Group Quarters	1.7%
Institutionalized Population	0.8%
Noninstitutionalized Population	0.9%

Data Note: Persons of Hispanic Origin may be of any race. The Diversity Index measures the probability that two people from the same area will be from different race/ ethnic groups. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Colquitt_Co.zip Area: 535.42 square miles

Prepared by SWGRC

Total	19
Less than 9th Grade	11
9th - 12th Grade, No Diploma	14
High School Graduate	31
GED/Alternative Credential	5
Some College, No Degree	15
Associate Degree	
Bachelor's Degree	9
Graduate/Professional Degree	5
2016 Population 15+ by Marital Status	-
Total	22
Never Married	26
Married	55
Widowed	6
Divorced	11
2016 Civilian Population 16+ in Labor Force	**
Civilian Employed	94
Civilian Unemployed	5
2016 Employed Population 16+ by Industry	
Total	12,
Agriculture/Mining	15
Construction	6
Manufacturing	16
Wholesale Trade	10
Retail Trade	11
Transportation/Utilities	5
Information	0
Finance/Insurance/Real Estate	5
Services	34
Public Administration	3
2016 Employed Population 16+ by Occupation	5
Total	12,
White Collar	44
Management/Business/Financial	10
Professional	14.
Sales	9.
Administrative Support	10
Services	13.
Blue Collar	41
Farming/Forestry/Fishing	13
Construction/Extraction	5
Installation/Maintenance/Repair	4
Production	9.
Transportation/Material Moving	10.
	10.
2010 Population By Urban/ Rural Status	20
Total Population	28,
Population Inside Urbanized Area	0
Population Inside Urbanized Cluster	21
Rural Population	78

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Data Note: Households with children include any households with people under age 18, related or not. Multigenerational households are families with 3 or more parentchild relationships. Unmarried partner households are usually classified as nonfamily households unless there is another member of the household related to the householder. Multigenerational and unmarried partner households are reported only to the tract level. Esri estimated block group data, which is used to estimate polygons or non-standard geography.

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Colquitt_Co.zip Area: 535.42 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

Top 3 Tapestry Segments	Down the Deed (100
1. 2.	Down the Road (10D Southern Satellites (10A
	•
3.	Middleburg (40
2016 Consumer Spending	±14.017.00
Apparel & Services: Total \$	\$14,017,00
Average Spent	\$1,382.3
Spending Potential Index	6
Education: Total \$	\$8,039,75
Average Spent	\$792.8
Spending Potential Index	5
Entertainment/Recreation: Total \$	\$20,637,47
Average Spent	\$2,035.2
Spending Potential Index	7
Food at Home: Total \$	\$36,341,53
Average Spent	\$3,583.9
Spending Potential Index	7
Food Away from Home: Total \$	\$22,042,82
Average Spent	\$2,173.8
Spending Potential Index	5 D - 251 - 20
Health Care: Total \$	\$38,820,11
Average Spent	\$3,828.4
Spending Potential Index	7
HH Furnishings & Equipment: Total \$	\$12,294,94
Average Spent	\$1,212.5
Spending Potential Index	+-/
Personal Care Products & Services: Total \$	\$5,119,84
Average Spent	\$504.9
Spending Potential Index	(10)
Shelter: Total \$	\$101,576,93
Average Spent	\$10,017.4
Spending Potential Index	¢10,01/1
Support Payments/Cash Contributions/Gifts in Kind: Total \$	\$16,420,59
Average Spent	\$1,619.3
Spending Potential Index	\$1,019.
Travel: Total \$	\$11,844,64
Average Spent	\$1,168.3
Spending Potential Index	
Vehicle Maintenance & Repairs: Total \$	\$7,445,30
Average Spent	\$734.2
Spending Potential Index	

Data Note: Consumer spending shows the amount spent on a variety of goods and services by households that reside in the area. Expenditures are shown by broad budget categories that are not mutually exclusive. Consumer spending does not equal business revenue. Total and Average Amount Spent Per Household represent annual figures. The Spending Potential Index represents the amount spent in the area relative to a national average of 100. Source: Consumer Spending data are derived from the 2013 and 2014 Consumer Expenditure Surveys, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Esri. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

SUPPLEMENTARY ECONOMIC STATISTICS/DATA (CITY OF MOULTRIE)

		D	IL CHICK
Moultrie Area: 14.25 square miles		Prepare	ed by SWGRC
Data for all businesses in area			
otal Businesses:		1,119	
otal Employees:		12,251	
otal Residential Population:		14,691	
mployee/Residential Population Ratio:		0.83:1	
	Busines	F	malayooa
by SIC Codes			mployees ber Percent
Agriculture & Mining	24		110 0.9%
	44		252 2.1%
Construction	28		915 15.6%
Annufacturing	20		407 3.3%
ransportation	9		407 3.3% 134 1.1%
Communication	2		
Itility	37		
Vholesale Trade	37	3.3%	489 4.0%
Retail Trade Summary	297		706 22.1%
Home Improvement	16		224 1.8%
General Merchandise Stores	20		452 3.7%
Food Stores	39		330 2.7%
Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket	45		327 2.7%
Apparel & Accessory Stores	17	1.5%	62 0.5%
Furniture & Home Furnishings	16	1.4%	60 0.5%
Eating & Drinking Places	62	5.5%	788 6.4%
Miscellaneous Retail	82	7.3%	462 3.8%
inance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary	147	13.1%	717 5.9%
Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions	62	5.5%	324 2.6%
Securities Brokers	12	1.1%	36 0.3%
Insurance Carriers & Agents	24	2.1%	87 0.7%
Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices	48	4.3%	270 2.2%
Services Summary	372	33.2% 4,	139 33.8%
Hotels & Lodging	9	0.8%	64 0.5%
Automotive Services	35	3.1%	131 1.1%
Motion Pictures & Amusements	21	1.9%	97 0.8%
Health Services	61	5.5% 1,	427 11.6%
Legal Services	15	1.3%	60 0.5%
Education Institutions & Libraries	18		080 8.8%
Other Services	212		280 10.4%
Sovernment	106	9.5% 1,	168 9.5%
Inclassified Establishments	32	2.9%	22 0.2%
	1,119	100.0% 12,	



Business Summary

Moultrie Area: 14.25 square miles Prepared b

	Busin	esses	Emp
by NAICS Codes	Number	Percent	Numbe
Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing & Hunting	10	0.9%	7
Mining	1	0.1%	
Utilities	2	0.2%	19
Construction	46	4.1%	25
Manufacturing	32	2.9%	1,91
Wholesale Trade	36	3.2%	48
Retail Trade	227	20.3%	1,89
Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers	35	3.1%	29
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores	10	0.9%	4
Electronics & Appliance Stores	6	0.5%	2
Bldg Material & Garden Equipment & Supplies Dealers	13	1.2%	21
Food & Beverage Stores	36	3.2%	313
Health & Personal Care Stores	28	2.5%	13
Gasoline Stations	11	1.0%	33
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores	22	2.0%	80
Sport Goods, Hobby, Book, & Music Stores	9	0.8%	29
General Merchandise Stores	20	1.8%	453
Miscellaneous Store Retailers	36	3.2%	271
Nonstore Retailers	2		10
Transportation & Warehousing	13	1.2%	357
Information	17	1.5%	204
Finance & Insurance	105	9.4%	470
Central Bank/Credit Intermediation & Related Activities	67	6.0%	339
Securities, Commodity Contracts & Other Financial	14	1.3%	43
Insurance Carriers & Related Activities; Funds, Trusts &	24	2.1%	87
Real Estate, Rental & Leasing	63	5.6%	220
Professional, Scientific & Tech Services	63	5.6%	334
Legal Services	16	1.4%	62
Management of Companies & Enterprises	3		99
Administrative & Support & Waste Management & Remediation	22	2.0%	96
Educational Services	19	1.7%	1,070
Health Care & Social Assistance	93	8.3%	1,968
Arts, Entertainment & Recreation	15	1.3%	93
Accommodation & Food Services	71	6.3%	85
Accommodation	9	0.8%	64
Food Services & Drinking Places	62	5.5%	790
Other Services (except Public Administration)	142		479
Automotive Repair & Maintenance	30	2.7%	111
Automotive kepan & Hantehance	106	9.5%	1,168
	108	9.370	1,10
Unclassified Establishments	32	2.9%	2
Total	1,119	100.0%	12,25
Source: Copyright 2016 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved. Esri Total Residential Population forecasts for 2016.			



Area: 14.25 square miles

Moultrie

Prepared by SWGRC

Population Summary	
2000 Total Population	:
2010 Total Population	:
2016 Total Population	
2016 Group Quarters	
2021 Total Population	
2016-2021 Annual Rate	
Household Summary	
2000 Households	
2000 Average Household Size	
2010 Households	
2010 Average Household Size	
2016 Households	
2016 Average Household Size	
2021 Households	
2021 Average Household Size	
2016-2021 Annual Rate	
2010 Families	
2010 Average Family Size	
2016 Families	
2016 Average Family Size	
2021 Families	
2021 Average Family Size 2016-2021 Annual Rate	
Housing Unit Summary	
2000 Housing Units	
Owner Occupied Housing Units	
Renter Occupied Housing Units	
Vacant Housing Units	
2010 Housing Units	
Owner Occupied Housing Units	
Renter Occupied Housing Units	
Vacant Housing Units	
2016 Housing Units	
Owner Occupied Housing Units	
Renter Occupied Housing Units	
Vacant Housing Units	
2021 Housing Units	
Owner Occupied Housing Units	
Renter Occupied Housing Units	
Vacant Housing Units	
Median Household Income	
2016	\$2
2021	\$2
Median Home Value	
2016	\$1
2021	\$1.
Per Capita Income	
2016	\$
2021	\$
Median Age	
2010	
2016	
2021	

Data Note: Household population includes persons not residing in group quarters. Average Household Size is the household population divided by total households. Persons in families include the householder and persons related to the householder by birth, marriage, or adoption. Per Capita Income represents the income received by all persons aged 15 years and over divided by the total population. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Moultrie Area: 14.25 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

2016 Households by Income	
Household Income Base	5
<\$15,000	26
\$15,000 - \$24,999	21
\$25,000 - \$34,999	13
\$35,000 - \$49,999	12
\$50,000 - \$74,999	11
\$75,000 - \$99,999	7
\$100,000 - \$149,999	4
\$150,000 - \$199,999	1
\$200,000+	t
Average Household Income	\$41
2021 Households by Income	
Household Income Base	5
<\$15,000	29
\$15,000 - \$24,999	18
\$25,000 - \$34,999	8
\$35,000 - \$49,999	14
\$50,000 - \$74,999	12
\$75,000 - \$99,999	8
\$100,000 - \$149,999	5
\$150,000 - \$199,999	2
\$200,000+	1
Average Household Income	\$44
2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units by Value	
Total	2
<\$50,000	23
\$50,000 - \$99,999	30
\$100,000 - \$149,999	18
\$150,000 - \$199,999	12
\$200,000 - \$249,999	5
\$250,000 - \$299,999	2
\$300,000 - \$399,999	3
\$400,000 - \$499,999	1
\$500,000 - \$749,999	C
\$750,000 - \$999,999	C
\$1,000,000 +	(
Average Home Value	\$131
2021 Owner Occupied Housing Units by Value	
Total	2
<\$50,000	20
\$50,000 - \$99,999	20
\$100,000 - \$149,999	20
\$150,000 - \$199,999	17
\$200,000 - \$249,999	9
\$250,000 - \$299,999	4
\$300,000 - \$399,999	4
\$400,000 - \$499,999	2
\$500,000 - \$749,999	(
\$750,000 - \$999,999	(
\$1,000,000 +	(
Average Home Value	\$148

Data Note: Income represents the preceding year, expressed in current dollars. Household income includes wage and salary earnings, interest dividends, net rents, pensions, SSI and welfare payments, child support, and alimony. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Prepared by SWGRC

Moultrie	
Area: 14.25 square miles	

2010 Population by Age	
Total	14,0
0 - 4	8.9
5 - 9	7.8
10 - 14	6.9
15 - 24	14.3
25 - 34	13.
35 - 44	11.
45 - 54	12.
55 - 64	10.
65 - 74	7.
75 - 84	4.
85 +	2.
18 +	72.
2016 Population by Age	
Total	14,
0 - 4	8.
5 - 9	7.
10 - 14	7.
15 - 24	13.
25 - 34	13.
35 - 44	11.
45 - 54	11.
55 - 64	11.
65 - 74	8.
75 - 84	4.
85 +	2.
18 +	73.
2021 Population by Age	,
Total	14,
0 - 4	8.
5 - 9	7.
10 - 14	7.
15 - 24	13.
25 - 34	13.
35 - 44	11.
45 - 54	11.
55 - 64	11.
65 - 74	8.
75 - 84	5.
85 +	2.
18 +	72.
	72.
2010 Population by Sex	
Males	6,
Females	7,
2016 Population by Sex	
Males	7,
Females	7,'
2021 Population by Sex	
Males	7,
Females	7,

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Moultrie Area: 14.25 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

Total	14,
White Alone	44
Black Alone	45
American Indian Alone	0
Asian Alone	0
Pacific Islander Alone	0
Some Other Race Alone	7
Two or More Races	1
Hispanic Origin	13
Diversity Index	
2016 Population by Race/Ethnicity	
Total	14
White Alone	43
Black Alone	45
American Indian Alone	C
Asian Alone	C
Pacific Islander Alone	C
Some Other Race Alone	8
Two or More Races	2
Hispanic Origin	14
Diversity Index	
2021 Population by Race/Ethnicity	
Total	14
White Alone	42
Black Alone	45
American Indian Alone	(
Asian Alone	1
Pacific Islander Alone	(
Some Other Race Alone	٤
Two or More Races	2
Hispanic Origin	16
Diversity Index	
2010 Population by Relationship and Household Type	
Total	14
In Households	96
In Family Households	80
Householder	24
Spouse	13
Child	34
Other relative	5
Nonrelative	3
In Nonfamily Households	15
In Group Quarters	3
Institutionalized Population	3
	C

Data Note: Persons of Hispanic Origin may be of any race. The Diversity Index measures the probability that two people from the same area will be from different race/ ethnic groups. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.


Moultrie Area: 14.25 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

Total	9,3
Less than 9th Grade	10.
9th - 12th Grade, No Diploma	18.
High School Graduate	30.
GED/Alternative Credential	6.
Some College, No Degree	16.
Associate Degree	6.
Bachelor's Degree	6.
Graduate/Professional Degree	4.
2016 Population 15+ by Marital Status	
Total	11,3
Never Married	37.
Married	39.
Widowed	7.
Divorced	15.
2016 Civilian Population 16+ in Labor Force	
Civilian Employed	95.6
Civilian Unemployed	4.4
2016 Employed Population 16+ by Industry	
Total	5,5
Agriculture/Mining	6.!
Construction	6.1
Manufacturing	16.9
Wholesale Trade	1.
Retail Trade	10.4
Transportation/Utilities	4.:
Information	0.4
Finance/Insurance/Real Estate	5.
Services	45.
Public Administration	3.1
2016 Employed Population 16+ by Occupation	
Total	5,5
White Collar	41.7
Management/Business/Financial	7.5
Professional	14.3
Sales	10.2
Administrative Support	9.8
Services	24.7
Blue Collar	33.0
Farming/Forestry/Fishing	6.9
Construction/Extraction	5.7
Installation/Maintenance/Repair	3.:
Production	10.6
Transportation/Material Moving	7.:
2010 Population By Urban/ Rural Status	
Total Population	14,0
Population Inside Urbanized Area	0.0
Population Inside Urbanized Cluster	89.6
Rural Population	10.4



Moultrie Area: 14.25 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

2010 Households by Type	
Total	5,35
Households with 1 Person	31.1%
Households with 2+ People	68.9%
Family Households	64.2%
Husband-wife Families	34.6%
With Related Children	16.1%
Other Family (No Spouse Present)	29.6%
Other Family with Male Householder	5.2%
With Related Children	2.8%
Other Family with Female Householder	24.4%
With Related Children	17.3%
Nonfamily Households	4.7%
All Households with Children	36.5%
Aultigenerational Households	5.3%
Jnmarried Partner Households	7.1%
Male-female	6.6%
Same-sex	0.5%
2010 Households by Size	
Total	5,351
1 Person Household	31.1%
2 Person Household	28.3%
3 Person Household	15.8%
4 Person Household	13.1%
5 Person Household	6.6%
6 Person Household	3.2%
7 + Person Household	2.0%
2010 Households by Tenure and Mortgage Status	
Total	5,35:
Owner Occupied	46.0%
Owned with a Mortgage/Loan	27.4%
Owned Free and Clear	18.6%
Renter Occupied	54.0%
2010 Housing Units By Urban/ Rural Status	
Total Housing Units	6,088
Housing Units Inside Urbanized Area	0.0%
Housing Units Inside Urbanized Cluster	90.3%
Rural Housing Units	9.7%

Data Note: Households with children include any households with people under age 18, related or not. Multigenerational households are families with 3 or more parentchild relationships. Unmarried partner households are usually classified as nonfamily households unless there is another member of the household related to the householder. Multigenerational and unmarried partner households are reported only to the tract level. Esri estimated block group data, which is used to estimate polygons or non-standard geography.



Moultrie Area: 14.25 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

op 3 Tapestry Segments	
1.	Small Town Simplici
2.	Heartland Communiti
3.	Hardscrabble Road (8
2016 Consumer Spending	
Apparel & Services: Total \$	\$6,049,1
Average Spent	\$1,086.
Spending Potential Index	
Education: Total \$	\$3,866,8
Average Spent	\$694.
Spending Potential Index	
Entertainment/Recreation: Total \$	\$8,871,4
Average Spent	\$1,593.8
Spending Potential Index	
Food at Home: Total \$	\$16,284,0
Average Spent	\$2,925.
Spending Potential Index	
Food Away from Home: Total \$	\$9,438,1
Average Spent	\$1,695.
Spending Potential Index	0
Health Care: Total \$	\$16,698,3
Average Spent	\$3,000.
Spending Potential Index	
HH Furnishings & Equipment: Total \$	\$5,264,1
Average Spent	\$945.
Spending Potential Index	I∎85 1750
Personal Care Products & Services: Total \$	\$2,163,0
Average Spent	\$388.
Spending Potential Index	
Shelter: Total \$	\$45,723,1
Average Spent	\$8,214.
Spending Potential Index	
Support Payments/Cash Contributions/Gifts in Kind: Total \$	\$7,030,8
Average Spent	\$1,263.
Spending Potential Index	
Travel: Total \$	\$4,974,0
Average Spent	\$893.
Spending Potential Index	
Vehicle Maintenance & Repairs: Total \$	\$3,251,9
Average Spent	\$584.
Spending Potential Index	\$501.

Data Note: Consumer spending shows the amount spent on a variety of goods and services by households that reside in the area. Expenditures are shown by broad budget categories that are not mutually exclusive. Consumer spending does not equal business revenue. Total and Average Amount Spent Per Household represent annual figures. The Spending Potential Index represents the amount spent in the area relative to a national average of 100.
 Source: Consumer Spending data are derived from the 2013 and 2014 Consumer Expenditure Surveys, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Esri.
 Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

SUPPLEMENTARY ECONOMIC STATISTICS/DATA (CITY OF NORMAN PARK)



Business Summary

Norman Park Area: 3.13 square miles

Data for all businesses in area				
Total Businesses:		31		
Total Employees:	187			
Total Residential Population:		1,05		
Employee/Residential Population Ratio:		0.18:	1	
	Busin		Emplo	
by SIC Codes		Percent	Number	
Agriculture & Mining	4	12.9%	30	16.0%
Construction	3	9.7%	8	4.3%
Manufacturing	1	3.2%	4	2.1%
Transportation	1	3.2%	7	3.7%
Communication	1	3.2%	6	3.2%
Utility	0	0.0%	0	0.0%
Wholesale Trade	1	3.2%	9	4.8%
Retail Trade Summary	9	29.0%	23	12.3%
Home Improvement	1	3.2%	2	1.1%
General Merchandise Stores	1	3.2%	2	1.1%
Food Stores	2	6.5%	6	3.2%
Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket	3	9.7%	5	2.7%
Apparel & Accessory Stores	0	0.0%	0	0.0%
Furniture & Home Furnishings	0	0.0%	0	0.0%
Eating & Drinking Places	1	3.2%	4	2.1%
Miscellaneous Retail	2	6.5%	4	2.1%
Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary	1	3.2%	1	0.5%
Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions	1	3.2%	0	0.0%
Securities Brokers	0	0.0%	0	0.0%
Insurance Carriers & Agents	0	0.0%	0	0.0%
Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices	0	0.0%	1	0.5%
Services Summary	7	22.6%	90	48.1%
Hotels & Lodging	0	0.0%	0	0.0%
Automotive Services	0	0.0%	0	0.0%
Motion Pictures & Amusements	0	0.0%	0	0.0%
Health Services	1	3.2%	1	0.5%
Legal Services	0	0.0%	0	0.0%
Education Institutions & Libraries	1	3.2%	47	25.1%
Other Services	6	19.4%	43	23.0%
Government	2	6.5%	11	5.9%
Unclassified Establishments	1	3.2%	0	0.0%
Totals Source: Copyright 2016 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved. Esri Total Residential Population forecasts for 2016.	31	100.0%	187	100.0%

Prepared by SWGRC



Business Summary

Norman Park Area: 3.13 square miles

	Busin		Employ
by NAICS Codes	Number	Percent	Number
Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing & Hunting	4	12.9%	28
Mining	0	0.0%	0
Utilities	0	0.0%	0
Construction	3	9.7%	8
Manufacturing	1		4
Wholesale Trade	1	3.2%	9
Retail Trade	8	25.8%	19
Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers	3	9.7%	4
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores	0	0.0%	0
Electronics & Appliance Stores	0	0.0%	0
Bldg Material & Garden Equipment & Supplies Dealers	1	3.2%	2
Food & Beverage Stores	2	6.5%	6
Health & Personal Care Stores	0	0.0%	0
Gasoline Stations	0	0.0%	0
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores	0	0.0%	0
Sport Goods, Hobby, Book, & Music Stores	1	3.2%	3
General Merchandise Stores	1	3.2%	2
Miscellaneous Store Retailers	1	3.2%	1
Nonstore Retailers	0	0.0%	0
Transportation & Warehousing	1	3.2%	7
Information	1	3.2%	6
Finance & Insurance	1	3.2%	0
Central Bank/Credit Intermediation & Related Activities	1	3.2%	0
Securities, Commodity Contracts & Other Financial	0	0.0%	0
Insurance Carriers & Related Activities; Funds, Trusts &	0	0.0%	0
Real Estate, Rental & Leasing	0	0.0%	0
Professional, Scientific & Tech Services	1	3.2%	1
Legal Services	0	0.0%	0
Management of Companies & Enterprises	0	0.0%	0
Administrative & Support & Waste Management & Remediation	2	6.5%	5
Educational Services	1	3.2%	47
Health Care & Social Assistance	1	3.2%	9
Arts, Entertainment & Recreation	0	0.0%	1
Accommodation & Food Services	1	3.2%	4
Accommodation	0	0.0%	0
Food Services & Drinking Places	1	3.2%	4
Other Services (except Public Administration)	4	12.9%	30
Automotive Repair & Maintenance	0	0.0%	0
Public Administration	2	6.5%	11
Unclassified Establishments	1	3.2%	0
Total	31	100.0%	187
Source: Convright 2016 Infogroup. Inc. All rights reserved. Esri Total Residential Population forecasts for 2016.			

Prepared by S

Source: Copyright 2016 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved. Esri Total Residential Population forecasts for 2016.



_

Household Budget Expenditures

Norman Park Area: 3.13 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

Demographic Summary			2016	202
Population			1,051	1,09
Households			381	39
Families			294	30
Median Age			35.5	36
Median Household Income			\$34,313	\$40,2
	Spending Potential	Average Amount		
	Index	Spent	Total	Perce
Total Expenditures	62	\$41,325.90	\$15,745,169	100.0
Food	65	\$5,282.64	\$2,012,686	12.8
Food at Home	66	\$3,283.29	\$1,250,934	7.9
Food Away from Home	65	\$1,999.35	\$761,752	4.8
Alcoholic Beverages	59	\$304.56	\$116,039	0.7
Housing	61	\$12,490.21	\$4,758,770	30.2
Shelter	59	\$9,154.96	\$3,488,040	22.2
Utilities, Fuel and Public Services	68	\$3,335.25	\$1,270,730	8.1
Household Operations	60	\$1,034.04	\$393,969	2.5
Housekeeping Supplies	66	\$466.24	\$177,636	1.1
Household Furnishings and Equipment	62	\$1,098.65	\$418,584	2.7
3		1-1	1	
Apparel and Services	63	\$1,274.38	\$485,539	3.1
Transportation	67	\$5,444.46	\$2,074,340	13.2
Travel	56	\$1,034.29	\$394,063	2.5
Health Care	64	\$3,413.09	\$1,300,386	8.3
Entertainment and Recreation	63	\$1,838.89	\$700,618	4.4
Personal Care Products & Services	63	\$462.80	\$176,327	1.1
Education	49	\$698.66	\$266,191	1.7
Eddeaton	15	4090.00	\$200,191	1.7
Smoking Products	74	\$303.09	\$115,476	0.7
Lotteries & Pari-mutuel Losses	61	\$38.34	\$14,607	0.1
Legal Fees	61	\$95.57	\$36,411	0.2
Funeral Expenses	75	\$64.25	\$24,480	0.2
Safe Deposit Box Rentals	61	\$2.38	\$908	0.0
Checking Account/Banking Service Charges	61	\$20.12	\$7,665	0.0
Cemetery Lots/Vaults/Maintenance Fees	64	\$6.63	\$2,526	0.0
Accounting Fees	56	\$49.96	\$19,033	0.1
Miscellaneous Personal Services/Advertising/		\$35.12	\$13,381	0.1
Occupational Expenses	50 50 51	\$33.98	\$12,948	0.1
Expenses for Other Properties	55	\$76.05	\$12,946	0.1
Credit Card Membership Fees	55	1.		
•	52	\$2.02	\$768	0.0
Shopping Club Membership Fees	58	\$9.70	\$3,697	0.0
Support Payments/Cash Contributions/Gifts	n Kind 62	\$1,440.14	\$548,695	3.5
Life/Other Insurance	61	\$251.92	\$95,981	0.6
Pensions and Social Security	60	\$4,053.73	\$1,544,470	9.8

Data Note: The Spending Potential Index (SPI) is household-based, and represents the amount spent for a product or service relative to a national average of 100. Detail may not sum to totals due to rounding. Source: Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021; Consumer Spending data are derived from the 2013 and 2014 Consumer Expenditure Surveys, Bureau of Labor Statistics.



\$35,000-\$49,999

\$50,000-\$74,999

\$75,000-\$99,999

\$200,000+

\$100,000-\$149,999

\$150,000-\$199,999

Median Disposable Income

Average Disposable Income

Disposable Income Profile

Norman Park Area: 3.13 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

	Census 2010		2016	20	021	2016-2021 Change		2016-2021 Annual Rate
Population	972		1,051	1,0	091	40		0.75%
Median Age	34.5		35.5	3	6.8	1.3		0.72%
Households	356		381		394	13		0.67%
Average Household Size	2.69		2.72	2	.73	0.01		0.07%
2016 Households by Disposab	le Income					Num	ber	Percent
Total							381	100.0%
<\$15,000							80	21.0%
\$15,000-\$24,999							78	20.5%
\$25,000-\$34,999							67	17.6%
\$35,000-\$49,999							56	14.7%
\$50,000-\$74,999							57	15.0%
\$75,000-\$99,999							26	6.8%
\$100,000-\$149,999							15	3.9%
\$150,000-\$199,999							1	0.3%
\$200,000+							1	0.3%
Median Disposable Income						\$28,	997	
Average Disposable Income						\$38,	563	
				Number	of House	olds		
2016 Disposable Income by A	ge of Householder	<25	25-34	35-44	45-54	55-64	65-74	75+
Total		14	60	74	62	67	70) 34
<\$15,000		4	15	12	9	15	14	1
\$15,000-\$24,999		2	14	13	11	12	17	7
\$25,000-\$34,999		3	10	14	8	10	16	5

\$27,508

\$34,866

\$25,718

\$33,177

\$33,108

\$40,616

\$38,472

\$49,825

\$30,223

\$39,913

\$26,785

\$36,375

\$20,473

\$26,425

Data Note: Disposable Income is after-tax household income. Disposable income forecasts are based on the Current Population Survey, U.S. Census Bureau. Detail may not sum to totals due to rounding Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021.



Norman Park Area: 3.13 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

Population Summary	
2000 Total Population	815
2010 Total Population	972
2016 Total Population	1,05
2016 Group Quarters	1
2021 Total Population	1,09
2016-2021 Annual Rate	0.75%
Household Summary	
2000 Households	318
2000 Average Household Size	2.57
2010 Households	350
2010 Average Household Size	2.69
2016 Households	38
2016 Average Household Size	2.72
2021 Households	394
2021 Average Household Size	2.73
2016-2021 Annual Rate	0.67%
2010 Families	270
2010 Average Family Size	3.0
2016 Families	294
2016 Average Family Size	3.0
2021 Families	302
2021 Average Family Size	3.1
2016-2021 Annual Rate	0.54%
Housing Unit Summary	
2000 Housing Units	350
Owner Occupied Housing Units	70.6%
Renter Occupied Housing Units	20.0%
Vacant Housing Units	9.4%
2010 Housing Units	384
Owner Occupied Housing Units	69.8%
Renter Occupied Housing Units	22.9%
Vacant Housing Units	7.3%
2016 Housing Units	391
Owner Occupied Housing Units	69.8%
Renter Occupied Housing Units	27.6%
Vacant Housing Units	2.6%
2021 Housing Units	398
Owner Occupied Housing Units	69.6%
Renter Occupied Housing Units	29.4%
Vacant Housing Units	1.0%
Median Household Income	
2016	\$34,313
2021	\$40,29
Median Home Value	4.0,200
2016	\$74,43
2021	\$95,23
Per Capita Income	ψυσιευ
2016	\$15,82
2021	\$17,62
Median Age	\$17,02
2010	34.
2016	34
2010	36.0
2021	50.

Data Note: Household population includes persons not residing in group quarters. Average Household Size is the household population divided by total households. Persons in families include the householder and persons related to the householder by birth, marriage, or adoption. Per Capita Income represents the income received by all persons aged 15 years and over divided by the total population. **Source:** U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Norman Park Area: 3.13 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

2016 Households by Income	
Household Income Base	38
<\$15,000	17.89
\$15,000 - \$24,999	17.60
\$25,000 - \$34,999	15.20
\$35,000 - \$49,999	16.59
\$50,000 - \$74,999	13.69
\$75,000 - \$99,999	8.49
\$100,000 - \$149,999	8.4
\$150,000 - \$199,999	1.69
\$200,000+	0.59
Average Household Income	\$46,84
2021 Households by Income	
Household Income Base	39
<\$15,000	19.39
\$15,000 - \$24,999	14.09
\$25,000 - \$34,999	10.20
\$35,000 - \$49,999	15.09
\$50,000 - \$74,999	19.39
\$75,000 - \$99,999	10.49
\$100,000 - \$149,999	9.10
\$150,000 - \$199,999	2.09
\$200,000+	0.59
Average Household Income	\$52,47
2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units by Value	+/
Total	27
<\$50,000	34.19
\$50,000 - \$99,999	32.69
\$100,000 - \$149,999	8.89
\$150,000 - \$199,999	7.39
\$200,000 - \$249,999	10.39
\$250,000 - \$299,999	2.20
\$300,000 - \$399,999	0.79
\$400,000 - \$499,999	2.20
\$500,000 - \$749,999	1.19
\$750,000 - \$999,999	0.79
\$1,000,000 +	0.09
Average Home Value	\$111,63
2021 Owner Occupied Housing Units by Value	+/
Total	27
<\$50,000	29.2
\$50,000 - \$99,999	22.7
\$100,000 - \$149,999	12.6
\$150,000 - \$199,999	13.7
\$200,000 - \$249,999	11.9
\$250,000 - \$299,999	4.0
\$300,000 - \$399,999	1.1
\$400,000 - \$499,999	2.2
\$500,000 - \$749,999	1.1
	1.1
\$750,000 - \$999,999	
\$750,000 - \$999,999 \$1,000,000 +	0.0

Data Note: Income represents the preceding year, expressed in current dollars. Household income includes wage and salary earnings, interest dividends, net rents, pensions, SSI and welfare payments, child support, and alimony. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Norman Park Area: 3.13 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

2010 Population by Age	
Total	
0 - 4	
5 - 9	
10 - 14	
15 - 24	1
25 - 34	1
35 - 44	1
45 - 54	1
55 - 64	1
65 - 74	
75 - 84	
85 +	
18 +	7
2016 Population by Age	
Total	
0 - 4	
5 - 9	
10 - 14	
15 - 24	1
25 - 34	1
35 - 44	1
45 - 54	1
55 - 64	1
65 - 74	
75 - 84	
85 +	
18 +	7
2021 Population by Age	
Total	
0 - 4	
5 - 9	
10 - 14	
15 - 24	1
25 - 34	1
35 - 44	1
45 - 54	1
55 - 64	1
65 - 74	1
75 - 84	
85 +	
18 +	7
2010 Population by Sex	
Males	
Females	
2016 Population by Sex	
Males	
Females	
2021 Population by Sex	
Males	
Females	



Norman Park Area: 3.13 square miles

Prepared by SWGRC

2010 Population by Race/Ethnicity	
Total	9
White Alone	74.4
Black Alone	10.1
American Indian Alone	0.8
Asian Alone	0.5
Pacific Islander Alone	0.0
Some Other Race Alone	12.3
Two or More Races	2.0
Hispanic Origin	21.2
Diversity Index	62
2016 Population by Race/Ethnicity	
Total	1,0
White Alone	71.6
Black Alone	10.4
American Indian Alone	0.9
Asian Alone	0.8
Pacific Islander Alone	0.0
Some Other Race Alone	14.0
Two or More Races	2.5
Hispanic Origin	23.8
Diversity Index	66
2021 Population by Race/Ethnicity	
Total	1,0
White Alone	69.3
Black Alone	10.4
American Indian Alone	0.9
Asian Alone	1.0
Pacific Islander Alone	0.0
Some Other Race Alone	15.6
Two or More Races	2.8
Hispanic Origin	26.5
Diversity Index	70
2010 Population by Relationship and Household Type	
Total	9
In Households	98.4
In Family Households	89.2
Householder	26.0
Spouse	18.9
Child	35.5
Other relative	5.5
Nonrelative	3.3
In Nonfamily Households	9.0
In Group Quarters	1.6
Institutionalized Population	0.0
Noninstitutionalized Population	1.6

Data Note: Persons of Hispanic Origin may be of any race. The Diversity Index measures the probability that two people from the same area will be from different race/ ethnic groups. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Norman Park Area: 3.13 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

2016 Population 25+ by Educational Attainment	
Total	67
Less than 9th Grade	15.3
9th - 12th Grade, No Diploma	12.8
High School Graduate	33.8
GED/Alternative Credential	5.7
Some College, No Degree	17.3
Associate Degree	7.0
Bachelor's Degree	5.2
Graduate/Professional Degree	3.0
2016 Population 15+ by Marital Status	
Total	81
Never Married	28.0
Married	51.6
Widowed	7.1
Divorced	13.3
2016 Civilian Population 16+ in Labor Force	
Civilian Employed	94.3
Civilian Unemployed	5.7
2016 Employed Population 16+ by Industry	
Total	46
Agriculture/Mining	16.39
Construction	5.6
Manufacturing	14.00
Wholesale Trade	4.3
Retail Trade	14.00
Transportation/Utilities	7.3
Information	0.29
Finance/Insurance/Real Estate	4.7
Services	31.0
Public Administration	2.84
2016 Employed Population 16+ by Occupation	2.0
Total	46
White Collar	44.19
Management/Business/Financial	8.80
Professional	13.30
Sales	12.79
Administrative Support	9.20
Services	12.50
	43.20
Blue Collar	
Farming/Forestry/Fishing	12.50
Construction/Extraction	3.90
Installation/Maintenance/Repair	3.20
Production	9.00
Transportation/Material Moving	14.6
2010 Population By Urban/ Rural Status	
Total Population	97
Population Inside Urbanized Area	0.04
Population Inside Urbanized Cluster	0.00
Rural Population	100.00

Norman Park Area: 3.13 square miles	Prepared by SWGR
2010 Households by Type	
Total	356
Households with 1 Person	19.1%
Households with 2+ People	80.9%
Family Households	77.5%
Husband-wife Families	56.2%
With Related Children	28.4%
Other Family (No Spouse Present)	21.1%
Other Family with Male Householder	7.0%
With Related Children	4.2%
Other Family with Female Householder	14.3%
With Related Children	9.0%
Nonfamily Households	3.4%
All Households with Children	42.1%
Multigenerational Households	6.7%
Unmarried Partner Households	6.5%
Male-female	6.2%
Same-sex	0.3%
2010 Households by Size	
Total	357
1 Person Household	19.0%
2 Person Household	29.7%
3 Person Household	19.0%
4 Person Household	16.0%
5 Person Household	10.1%
6 Person Household	3.4%
7 + Person Household	2.8%
2010 Households by Tenure and Mortgage Status	
Total	356
Owner Occupied	75.3%
Owned with a Mortgage/Loan	43.5%
Owned Free and Clear	31.7%
Renter Occupied	24.7%
2010 Housing Units By Urban/ Rural Status	
Total Housing Units	384
Housing Units Inside Urbanized Area	0.0%
Housing Units Inside Urbanized Cluster	0.0%
Rural Housing Units	100.0%

Data Note: Households with children include any households with people under age 18, related or not. Multigenerational households are families with 3 or more parent-child relationships. Unmarried partner households are usually classified as nonfamily households unless there is another member of the household related to the householder. Multigenerational and unmarried partner households are reported only to the tract level. Esri estimated block group data, which is used to estimate polygons or non-standard geography. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Norman Park Area: 3.13 square miles

Prepared by SWGRC

	1.	Down the Road (10)
	2.	Southern Satellites (10
	3.	Top Tier (1
2016 Consumer Spending		
Apparel & Services: Total \$		\$485,53
Average Spent		\$1,274.3
Spending Potential Index		6
Education: Total \$		\$266,19
Average Spent		\$698.6
Spending Potential Index		2
Entertainment/Recreation: Total \$		\$700,61
Average Spent		\$1,838.8
Spending Potential Index		6
Food at Home: Total \$		\$1,250,93
Average Spent		\$3,283.2
Spending Potential Index		(
Food Away from Home: Total \$		\$761,7
Average Spent		\$1,999.3
Spending Potential Index		(
Health Care: Total \$		\$1,300,38
Average Spent		\$3,413.0
Spending Potential Index		e
HH Furnishings & Equipment: Total \$		\$418,58
Average Spent		\$1,098.0
Spending Potential Index		(
Personal Care Products & Services: Total \$		\$176,32
Average Spent		\$462.8
Spending Potential Index		6
Shelter: Total \$		\$3,488,04
Average Spent		\$9,154.9
Spending Potential Index		5
Support Payments/Cash Contributions/Gifts in Kind:	Total \$	\$548,69
Average Spent		\$1,440.
Spending Potential Index		
Travel: Total \$		\$394,00
Average Spent		\$1,034.2
Spending Potential Index		
Vehicle Maintenance & Repairs: Total \$		\$252,9
Average Spent		\$663.9
Spending Potential Index		

Data Note: Consumer spending shows the amount spent on a variety of goods and services by households that reside in the area. Expenditures are shown by broad budget categories that are not mutually exclusive. Consumer spending does not equal business revenue. Total and Average Amount Spent Per Household represent annual figures. The Spending Potential Index represents the amount spent in the area relative to a national average of 100. Source: Consumer Spending data are derived from the 2013 and 2014 Consumer Expenditure Surveys, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Esri. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

SUPPLEMENTARY ECONOMIC STATISTICS/DATA (CITY OF BERLIN)



Business Summary

Berlin Area: 0.75 square miles

Data for all businesses in area Total Businesses:		23	
Total Employees:		85	
Total Employees: Total Residential Population:		417	
Employee/Residential Population Ratio:		0.2::	
		0.2	1
	Busine		Emp
by SIC Codes		Percent	Numbe
Agriculture & Mining	3		
Construction	3	13.0%	1
Manufacturing	2		1
Transportation	1	4.3%	
Communication	0		
Utility	0	0.0%	
Wholesale Trade	1	4.3%	
Retail Trade Summary	3	13.0%	1
Home Improvement	0	0.0%	
General Merchandise Stores	1	4.3%	
Food Stores	1	4.3%	1
Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket	1	4.3%	
Apparel & Accessory Stores	0	0.0%	
Furniture & Home Furnishings	1	4.3%	
Eating & Drinking Places	0	0.0%	
Miscellaneous Retail	0	0.0%	
Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary	1	4.3%	
Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions	1	4.3%	
Securities Brokers	0	0.0%	
Insurance Carriers & Agents	0	0.0%	
Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices	0	0.0%	
Services Summary	5	21.7%	
Hotels & Lodging	0	0.0%	
Automotive Services	0	0.0%	
Motion Pictures & Amusements	1		
Health Services	1		
Legal Services	0	0.0%	
Education Institutions & Libraries	0	0.0%	
Other Services	3		
Government	2	8.7%	
Unclassified Establishments	2	8.7%	
Totals	23	100.0%	
Source: Convright 2016 Infogroup. Inc. All rights reserved. Esri Total Residential Population forecasts for 2016.	10075270.0		

Source: Copyright 2016 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved. Esri Total Residential Population forecasts for 2016.

Prepared by



Business Summary

Berlin Area: 0.75 square miles Prepared by SV

	Busin	esses	Employ
by NAICS Codes	Number	Percent	Number
Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing & Hunting	3	13.0%	8
Mining	0	0.0%	0
Utilities	0	0.0%	0
Construction	3	13.0%	12
Manufacturing	2	8.7%	11
Wholesale Trade	1	4.3%	2
Retail Trade	3	13.0%	18
Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers	1	4.3%	2
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores	0	0.0%	0
Electronics & Appliance Stores	1	4.3%	1
Bldg Material & Garden Equipment & Supplies Dealers	0	0.0%	0
Food & Beverage Stores	1	4.3%	11
Health & Personal Care Stores	0	0.0%	0
Gasoline Stations	1	4.3%	1
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores	0	0.0%	0
Sport Goods, Hobby, Book, & Music Stores	0	0.0%	0
General Merchandise Stores	1	4.3%	3
Miscellaneous Store Retailers	0	0.0%	0
Nonstore Retailers	0	0.0%	0
Transportation & Warehousing	1	4.3%	9
Information	1	4.3%	2
Finance & Insurance	1	4.3%	0
Central Bank/Credit Intermediation & Related Activities	- 1	4.3%	0
Securities, Commodity Contracts & Other Financial	0	0.0%	0
Insurance Carriers & Related Activities; Funds, Trusts &	0	0.0%	0
Real Estate, Rental & Leasing	0	0.0%	0
Professional, Scientific & Tech Services	1	4.3%	1
Legal Services	0	0.0%	0
Management of Companies & Enterprises	0	0.0%	0
Administrative & Support & Waste Management & Remediation	0	0.0%	0
Educational Services	0	0.0%	0
Health Care & Social Assistance	1	4.3%	7
	1	4.3%	1
Arts, Entertainment & Recreation Accommodation & Food Services	0	0.0%	0
Accommodation			0
	0	0.0%	0
Food Services & Drinking Places		0.0%	
Other Services (except Public Administration)	2	8.7%	4
Automotive Repair & Maintenance	0	0.0%	0
Public Administration	2	8.7%	11
Unclassified Establishments	2	8.7%	0
Fotal Cotal	23	100.0%	85
Source: Copyright 2016 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved. Esri Total Residential Population forecasts for 2016.			



Median Disposable Income

Average Disposable Income

Disposable Income Profile

Prepared by SWGRC

Berlin Area: 0.75 square miles

						2016-2021		2016-2021
	Census 2010		2016		021	Change		Annual Rate
Population	551		417		386	-31		-1.53%
Median Age	37.6		38.6	:	39.6	1.0		0.51%
Households	196		148		136	-12		-1.68%
Average Household Size	2.81		2.82	:	2.84	0.02		0.14%
2016 Households by Disposa	ble Income					Nun	nber	Percen
Total							148	100.0%
<\$15,000							30	20.3%
\$15,000-\$24,999							36	24.39
\$25,000-\$34,999							28	18.99
\$35,000-\$49,999							16	10.8%
\$50,000-\$74,999							16	10.89
\$75,000-\$99,999							12	8.19
\$100,000-\$149,999							9	6.10
\$150,000-\$199,999							1	0.79
\$200,000+							0	0.00
Median Disposable Income						\$27	,155	
Average Disposable Income						\$40	,191	
				Number	of Househ	olds		
2016 Disposable Income by	Age of Householder	<25	25-34	35-44	45-54	55-64	65-74	75-
Total		5	20	26	28	25	27	1
<\$15,000		1	4	4	5	7	4	
\$15,000-\$24,999		1	5	6	6	5	9	6 - 3
\$25,000-\$34,999		2	4	5	4	3	6	
\$35,000-\$49,999		0	2	3	3	3	3	
\$50,000-\$74,999		0	2	4	3	3	2	
\$75,000-\$99,999		0	1	3	3	2	2	
\$100,000-\$149,999		0	1	1	3	2	2	
\$150,000-\$199,999		0	0	0	0	0	0	()
\$200,000+		0	0	0	0	0	0	
Madies Discondula Terrare		+	+== ===	+	+	+	+== +==	+

\$25,000 \$25,859

\$30,124 \$30,496

\$31,991 \$35,458 \$44,751 \$52,795 \$40,323 \$36,982 \$26,926

\$26,290

\$26,162

\$20,000

Data Note: Disposable Income is after-tax household income. Disposable income forecasts are based on the Current Population Survey, U.S. Census Bureau. Detail may not sum to totals due to rounding

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021.



Household Budget Expenditures

Berlin Area: 0.75 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

Demographic Summary			2016	202
Population			417	38
Households			148	13
Families			107	9
Median Age			38.6	39.
Median Household Income			\$31,007	\$36,32
	Spending Potential	Average Amount		
	Index	Spent	Total	Percer
Total Expenditures	68	\$44,844.78	\$6,637,027	100.09
Food	70	\$5,662.40	\$838,035	12.69
Food at Home	71	\$3,520.80	\$521,078	7.99
Food Away from Home	69	\$2,141.60	\$316,957	4.89
Alcoholic Beverages	61	\$313.38	\$46,380	0.7
		<i>QUIDIOO</i>	<i><i><i>ϕ</i></i> 10/000</i>	017
Housing	65	\$13,272.73	\$1,964,364	29.6
Shelter	61	\$9,524.86	\$1,409,679	21.2
Utilities, Fuel and Public Services	77	\$3,747.87	\$554,685	8.4
Household Operations	66	\$1,124.84	\$166,477	2.5
Housekeeping Supplies	73	\$509.91	\$75,467	1.1
Household Furnishings and Equipment	67	\$1,180.15	\$174,662	2.6
nousenoid i diffisinings and Equipment	07	\$1,100.15	\$174,002	2.0
Apparel and Services	67	\$1,349.78	\$199,767	3.0
Transportation	75	\$6,053.68	\$895,945	13.5
Travel	59	\$1,102.49	\$163,169	2.5
Health Care	73	\$3,846.55	\$569,289	8.6
Entertainment and Recreation	69	\$2,011.01	\$297,629	4.5
Personal Care Products & Services	66	\$485.46	\$71,848	1.1
Education	53	\$748.04	\$110,710	1.7
Smoking Products	83	\$341.10	\$50,483	0.8
Lotteries & Pari-mutuel Losses	65	\$40.61	\$6,011	0.1
Legal Fees	66	\$102.51	\$15,172	0.2
Funeral Expenses	93	\$79.85	\$11,818	0.2
Safe Deposit Box Rentals	70	\$2.76	\$409	0.0
Checking Account/Banking Service Charges	60	\$19.90	\$2,945	0.0
Cemetery Lots/Vaults/Maintenance Fees	64	\$6.65	\$984	0.0
Accounting Fees	59	\$53.41	\$7,904	0.0
Miscellaneous Personal Services/Advertising/Fine	59	\$32.28	\$4,777	0.1
· •	48			0.1
Occupational Expenses	2.172	\$32.59	\$4,823	
Expenses for Other Properties	62	\$85.99	\$12,727	0.2
Credit Card Membership Fees	52	\$1.99	\$295	0.0
Shopping Club Membership Fees	56	\$9.36	\$1,385	0.0
Support Payments/Cash Contributions/Gifts in Kind	69	\$1,603.30	\$237,288	3.6
Life/Other Insurance	71	\$295.57	\$43,745	0.7
Pensions and Social Security	66	\$4,476.47	\$662,518	10.0

Data Note: The Spending Potential Index (SPI) is household-based, and represents the amount spent for a product or service relative to a national average of 100. Detail may not sum to totals due to rounding. Source: Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021; Consumer Spending data are derived from the 2013 and 2014 Consumer Expenditure Surveys, Bureau of Labor Statistics.



Berlin

Area: 0.75 square miles

Population Summary 2000 Total Population 514 2010 Total Population 551 2016 Total Population 417 2016 Group Quarters 0 2021 Total Population 386 2016-2021 Annual Rate -1.53% **Household Summary** 2000 Households 182 2000 Average Household Size 2.74 2010 Households 196 2010 Average Household Size 2.81 2016 Households 148 2016 Average Household Size 2.82 2021 Households 136 2021 Average Household Size 2.84 2016-2021 Annual Rate -1.68% 2010 Families 144 2010 Average Family Size 3.31 2016 Families 107 2016 Average Family Size 3.36 2021 Families 98 2021 Average Family Size 3.40 2016-2021 Annual Rate -1.74% **Housing Unit Summary** 2000 Housing Units 231 **Owner Occupied Housing Units** 67.1% Renter Occupied Housing Units 11.7% Vacant Housing Units 21.2% 2010 Housing Units 236 Owner Occupied Housing Units 61.0% 22.0% Renter Occupied Housing Units Vacant Housing Units 16.9% 2016 Housing Units 236 Owner Occupied Housing Units 43.6% Renter Occupied Housing Units 18.6% Vacant Housing Units 37.3% 2021 Housing Units 236 Owner Occupied Housing Units 41.5% Renter Occupied Housing Units 16.5% Vacant Housing Units 42.4% Median Household Income 2016 \$31,007 2021 \$36,325 Median Home Value 2016 \$79,000 2021 \$93,056 Per Capita Income 2016 \$18,847 2021 \$21,724 Median Age 2010 37.6 2016 38.6 2021 39.6

Prepared by SWGRC

Data Note: Household population includes persons not residing in group quarters. Average Household Size is the household population divided by total households. Persons in families include the householder and persons related to the householder by birth, marriage, or adoption. Per Capita Income represents the income received by all persons aged 15 years and over divided by the total population. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Area: 0.75 square miles

Berlin

Prepared by SWGRC

2016 Households by Income	
Household Income Base	1
<\$15,000	16.3
\$15,000 - \$24,999	19.0
\$25,000 - \$34,999	20.3
\$35,000 - \$49,999	12.0
\$50,000 - \$74,999	8.:
\$75,000 - \$99,999	6.8
\$100,000 - \$149,999	11.9
\$150,000 - \$199,999	2.7
\$200,000+	1.4
Average Household Income	\$50,8
2021 Households by Income	
Household Income Base	1
<\$15,000	19.1
\$15,000 - \$24,999	16.9
\$25,000 - \$34,999	12.1
\$35,000 - \$49,999	12.5
\$50,000 - \$74,999	9.6
\$75,000 - \$99,999	8.1
\$100,000 - \$149,999	16.2
\$150,000 - \$199,999	3.7
\$200,000+	1.5
Average Household Income	\$58,9
2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units by Value	
Total	1
<\$50,000	35.9
\$50,000 - \$99,999	24.3
\$100,000 - \$149,999	12.0
\$150,000 - \$199,999	11.7
\$200,000 - \$249,999	3.9
\$250,000 - \$299,999	1.9
\$300,000 - \$399,999	7.1
\$400,000 - \$499,999	1.1
\$500,000 - \$749,999	0.1
\$750,000 - \$999,999	0.0
\$1,000,000 +	0.1
Average Home Value	\$113,3
2021 Owner Occupied Housing Units by Value	
Total	
<\$50,000	33.
\$50,000 - \$99,999	18.
\$100,000 - \$149,999	10.
\$150,000 - \$199,999	14.
\$200,000 - \$249,999	7.
\$250,000 - \$299,999	4.
\$300,000 - \$399,999	9.
\$400,000 - \$499,999	2.
\$500,000 - \$749,999	0.
\$750,000 - \$999,999	0.
\$1,000,000 +	0.
Average Home Value	\$129,8

pensions, SSI and welfare payments, child support, and alimony. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



	Berlin	Prepared by SW
	Area: 0.75 square miles	
2010 Population by Age		
Total		5
0 - 4		6.9
5 - 9		7.4
10 - 14		8.2
15 - 24		12.7
25 - 34		11.3
35 - 44		14.2
45 - 54		12.2
55 - 64		12.3
65 - 74		9.4
75 - 84		3.4
85 +		1.8
18 +		72.6
2016 Population by Age		72.0
Total		4
0 - 4		6.9
5 - 9		6.9
10 - 14		6.9
15 - 24		12.9
25 - 34		11.7
35 - 44		13.4
45 - 54		13.
55 - 64		11.2
65 - 74		10.7
75 - 84		4.5
85 +		1.4
18 +		74.5
2021 Population by Age		/4
Total		3
0 - 4		- 6.1
5 - 9		7.0
10 - 14		7.
15 - 24		12.2
25 - 34		11.9
35 - 44		11.3
45 - 54		11.3
45 - 54 55 - 64		14.0
65 - 74		
		10.
75 - 84		6.
85 +		1.3
18 +		75.3
2010 Population by Sex		
Males		2
Females		2
2016 Population by Sex		
Males		2
Females		2
2021 Population by Sex		
Males		1
Females		1



Berlin

Prepared by SWGRC

Berlin Area: 0.75 square miles	Prepared by SWG
2010 Population by Race/Ethnicity	
Total	5
White Alone	77.0
Black Alone	8.7
American Indian Alone	0.5
Asian Alone	0.7
Pacific Islander Alone	0.0
Some Other Race Alone	12.0
Two or More Races	1.1
Hispanic Origin	16.2
Diversity Index	56
2016 Population by Race/Ethnicity	
Total	4
White Alone	74.1
Black Alone	9.1
American Indian Alone	0.7
Asian Alone	1.2
Pacific Islander Alone	0.0
Some Other Race Alone	13.7
Two or More Races	1.2
Hispanic Origin	18.5
Diversity Index	61
2021 Population by Race/Ethnicity	
Total	3
White Alone	71.8
Black Alone	9.3
American Indian Alone	0.8
Asian Alone	1.3
Pacific Islander Alone	0.0
Some Other Race Alone	15.2
Two or More Races	1.6
Hispanic Origin	21.0
Diversity Index	64
2010 Population by Relationship and Household Type	
Total	5
In Households	100.0
In Family Households	88.4
Householder	27.2
Spouse	20.5
Child	33.9
Other relative	4.7
Nonrelative	1.8
In Nonfamily Households	11.6
In Group Quarters	0.0
Institutionalized Population	0.0

Data Note: Persons of Hispanic Origin may be of any race. The Diversity Index measures the probability that two people from the same area will be from different race/ ethnic groups. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

Market Profile	
Berlin	Prepared by SW0
Area: 0.75 square miles	
2016 Population 25+ by Educational Attainment	
Total	2
Less than 9th Grade	9.8
9th - 12th Grade, No Diploma	18.9
High School Graduate	32.7
GED/Alternative Credential	1.8
Some College, No Degree	10.9
Associate Degree	4.4
Bachelor's Degree	16.7
Graduate/Professional Degree	4.7
2016 Population 15+ by Marital Status	
Total	33
Never Married	31.3
Married	51.5
Widowed	
	9.1
Divorced	8.2
2016 Civilian Population 16+ in Labor Force	
Civilian Employed	91.8
Civilian Unemployed	8.2
2016 Employed Population 16+ by Industry	
Total	15
Agriculture/Mining	16.6
Construction	2.5
Manufacturing	19.7
Wholesale Trade	1.9
Retail Trade	6.4
Transportation/Utilities	3.8
Information	0.0
Finance/Insurance/Real Estate	5.7
Services	42.0
Public Administration	0.6
2016 Employed Population 16+ by Occupation	
Total	15
White Collar	66.2
Management/Business/Financial	26.1
Professional	26.1
Sales	5.1
	8.9
Administrative Support	
Services	8.90
Blue Collar	24.8
Farming/Forestry/Fishing	2.5
Construction/Extraction	2.5
Installation/Maintenance/Repair	1.3
Production	8.99
Transportation/Material Moving	9.64
2010 Population By Urban/ Rural Status	
Total Population	55
Population Inside Urbanized Area	0.04
Population Inside Urbanized Cluster	0.0
Rural Population	100.0



_

Market Profile

Area: 0.75 square miles

Berlin

Prepared by SWGRC

2010 Households by Type	
Total	
Households with 1 Person	22.
Households with 2+ People	77.
Family Households	73.
Husband-wife Families	55.
With Related Children	23.
Other Family (No Spouse Present)	18.
Other Family with Male Householder	6
With Related Children	3.
Other Family with Female Householder	11
With Related Children	7.
Nonfamily Households	4
All Households with Children	34
Multigenerational Households	5
Jnmarried Partner Households	5
Male-female	4
Same-sex	1
2010 Households by Size	
Total	
1 Person Household	22.
2 Person Household	35.
3 Person Household	14.
4 Person Household	13.
5 Person Household	9.
6 Person Household	3.
7 + Person Household	2.
2010 Households by Tenure and Mortgage Status	
Total	
Owner Occupied	73.
Owned with a Mortgage/Loan	37.
Owned Free and Clear	36.
Renter Occupied	26.
2010 Housing Units By Urban/ Rural Status	
Total Housing Units	
Housing Units Inside Urbanized Area	0.
Housing Units Inside Urbanized Cluster	0.
Rural Housing Units	100.

Data Note: Households with children include any households with people under age 18, related or not. Multigenerational households are families with 3 or more parent-child relationships. Unmarried partner households are usually classified as nonfamily households unless there is another member of the household related to the householder. Multigenerational and unmarried partner households are reported only to the tract level. Esri estimated block group data, which is used to estimate polygons or non-standard geography. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Area: 0.75 square miles

Berlin

Prepared by SWGRC

Top 3 Tapestry Segments	
1.	Southern Satellites (10
2.	Top Tier (1
3.	Professional Pride (1
2016 Consumer Spending	
Apparel & Services: Total \$	\$199,76
Average Spent	\$1,349.7
Spending Potential Index	6
Education: Total \$	\$110,71
Average Spent	\$748.0
Spending Potential Index	5
Entertainment/Recreation: Total \$	\$297,62
Average Spent	\$2,011.0
Spending Potential Index	6
Food at Home: Total \$	\$521,07
Average Spent	\$3,520.8
Spending Potential Index	7
Food Away from Home: Total \$	\$316,95
Average Spent	\$2,141.6
Spending Potential Index	6
Health Care: Total \$	\$569,28
Average Spent	\$3,846.5
Spending Potential Index	7
HH Furnishings & Equipment: Total \$	\$174,66
Average Spent	\$1,180.1
Spending Potential Index	6
Personal Care Products & Services: Total \$	\$71,84
Average Spent	\$485.4
Spending Potential Index	6
Shelter: Total \$	\$1,409,67
Average Spent	\$9,524.8
Spending Potential Index	6
Support Payments/Cash Contributions/Gifts in Kind: Total \$	\$237,28
Average Spent	\$1,603.3
Spending Potential Index	e
Travel: Total \$	\$163,16
Average Spent	\$1,102.4
Spending Potential Index	5
Vehicle Maintenance & Repairs: Total \$	\$106,59
Average Spent	\$720.2
Spending Potential Index	¢, 20.

Data Note: Consumer spending shows the amount spent on a variety of goods and services by households that reside in the area. Expenditures are shown by broad budget categories that are not mutually exclusive. Consumer spending does not equal business revenue. Total and Average Amount Spent Per Household represent annual figures. The Spending Potential Index represents the amount spent in the area relative to a national average of 100. Source: Consumer Spending data are derived from the 2013 and 2014 Consumer Expenditure Surveys, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Esri. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

SUPPLEMENTARY ECONOMIC STATISTICS/DATA (CITY OF ELLENTON)



Business Summary

Ellenton Area: 0.79 square miles Prepared by SWG

Data for all businesses in area				
Total Businesses:		11		
Total Employees:		309		
Total Residential Population:		291		
Employee/Residential Population Ratio:		1.06:	.1	
	Busine			oyees
by SIC Codes	Number		Number	
Agriculture & Mining	2	18.2%	38	12.
Construction	0	0.0%	1	0.
Manufacturing	0	0.0%	2	
Transportation	0	0.0%	0	0.
Communication	0	0.0%	0	0.
Utility	0	0.0%	0	0.
Wholesale Trade	1	9.1%	238	77.
Retail Trade Summary	2	18.2%	14	4.
Home Improvement	0	0.0%	6	1.
General Merchandise Stores	0	0.0%	0	0.
Food Stores	2	18.2%	5	
Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket	0	0.0%	0	0.
Apparel & Accessory Stores	0	0.0%	0	
Furniture & Home Furnishings	0	0.0%	0	0.
Eating & Drinking Places	0	0.0%	2	
Miscellaneous Retail	0	0.0%	0	0.
Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary	0	0.0%	0	0.
Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions	0	0.0%	0	0.
Securities Brokers	0	0.0%	0	0.
	0	0.0%	0	0
Insurance Carriers & Agents	0	0.0%	0	
Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices	0	0.0%	0	0.
Services Summary	3	27.3%	11	3
Hotels & Lodging	0	0.0%	0	0.
Automotive Services	0	0.0%	2	0
Motion Pictures & Amusements	0	0.0%	1	0
Health Services	0	0.0%	3	1
Legal Services	0	0.0%	1	0
Education Institutions & Libraries	0	0.0%	0	0
Other Services	2	18.2%	5	1
Government	1	9.1%	5	1
Unclassified Establishments	0	0.0%	0	0
Totals Source: Copyright 2016 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved. Esri Total Residential Population forecasts for 2016.	11	100.0%	309	100



Business Summary

Ellenton Area: 0.79 square miles

	Busin	
by NAICS Codes	Number	
Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing & Hunting	2	
Mining	0	
Jtilities	0	
Construction	0	
Manufacturing	0	
Wholesale Trade	1	
Retail Trade	2	
Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers	0	
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores	0	
Electronics & Appliance Stores	0	
Bldg Material & Garden Equipment & Supplies Dealers	0	
Food & Beverage Stores	2	
Health & Personal Care Stores	0	
Gasoline Stations	0	
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores	0	
Sport Goods, Hobby, Book, & Music Stores	0	
General Merchandise Stores	0	
Miscellaneous Store Retailers	0	
Nonstore Retailers	0	
Transportation & Warehousing	0	
Information	0	
Finance & Insurance	0	
Central Bank/Credit Intermediation & Related Activities	0	
Securities, Commodity Contracts & Other Financial	0	
Insurance Carriers & Related Activities; Funds, Trusts &	0	
Real Estate, Rental & Leasing	0	
Professional, Scientific & Tech Services	0	
Legal Services	0	
Management of Companies & Enterprises	0	
Administrative & Support & Waste Management & Remediation	0	
Educational Services	0	
Health Care & Social Assistance	0	
Arts, Entertainment & Recreation	0	
Accommodation & Food Services	0	
Accommodation	0	
Food Services & Drinking Places	0	
Other Services (except Public Administration)	2	
Automotive Repair & Maintenance	0	
Public Administration	1	
Unclassified Establishments	0	
Total	11	1



Average Disposable Income

Disposable Income Profile

Ellenton Area: 0.79 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

\$44,478 \$42,191

\$35,160

	Census 2010		2016	2	021	2016-202 Chang	and the second se	2016-202: nnual Rate
Population	281		291		297	-	6	0.41%
Median Age	33.6		34.7		36.1	1.	4	0.79%
Households	107		111		113		2	0.369
Average Household Size	2.36		2.38		2.38	0.0	0	0.009
2016 Households by Dispos	able Income					Nu	mber	Percen
Total							111	100.09
<\$15,000							15	13.50
\$15,000-\$24,999							19	17.19
\$25,000-\$34,999							15	13.59
\$35,000-\$49,999							20	18.09
\$50,000-\$74,999							26	23.4
\$75,000-\$99,999							7	6.3
\$100,000-\$149,999							8	7.2
\$150,000-\$199,999							0	0.0
\$200,000+							1	0.99
Median Disposable Income						\$3	8,736	
Average Disposable Income						\$4	7,625	
				Number	r of Househ	olds		
2016 Disposable Income by	Age of Householder	<25	25-34	35-44	45-54	55-64	65-74	75
Total		4	16	22	22	20	17	
<\$15,000		1	3	2	2	3	3	
\$15,000-\$24,999		1	3	3	2	3	5	
\$25,000-\$34,999		1	2	3	2	2	3	
\$35,000-\$49,999		0	3	5	4	4	2	
\$50,000-\$74,999		1	4	6	7	5	3	
\$75,000-\$99,999		0	1	1	3	1	1	
\$100,000-\$149,999		0	1	2	3	1	1	
\$150,000-\$199,999		0	0	0	0	0	0	
\$200,000+		0	0	0	0	0	0	
φ200/000 ·								

\$33,413 \$46,704 \$52,036 \$60,790

Data Note: Disposable Income is after-tax household income. Disposable income forecasts are based on the Current Population Survey, U.S. Census Bureau. Detail may not sum to totals due to rounding Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021.



Household Budget Expenditures

Prepared by SWGRC

Ellenton Area: 0.79 square miles

D	emographic Summary			2016	202
	Population			291	29
	Households			111	11
	Families			83	8
	Median Age			34.7	36.
	Median Household Income			\$50,000	\$56,58
		Spending Potential	Average Amount		
		Index	Spent	Total	Percer
Т	otal Expenditures	79	\$52,566.26	\$5,834,855	100.09
	Food	82	\$6,637.36	\$736,747	12.69
	Food at Home	83	\$4,127.01	\$458,098	7.9
	Food Away from Home	81	\$2,510.35	\$278,649	4.8
	Alcoholic Beverages	72	\$367.33	\$40,774	0.7
			+	+,	
	Housing	76	\$15,558.06	\$1,726,945	29.6
	Shelter	72	\$11,164.87	\$1,239,301	21.2
	Utilities, Fuel and Public Services	90	\$4,393.19	\$487,644	8.4
	Household Operations	77	\$1,318.52	\$146,356	2.5
	Housekeeping Supplies	85	\$597.71	\$66,346	1.1
	Household Furnishings and Equipment	78	\$1,383.34	\$153,551	2.6
		,.	+2,000101	+100,001	
	Apparel and Services	79	\$1,582.18	\$175,622	3.0
	Transportation	88	\$7,096.02	\$787,658	13.5
	Travel	69	\$1,292.32	\$143,448	2.5
	Health Care	85	\$4,508.86	\$500,483	8.6
	Entertainment and Recreation	81	\$2,357.26	\$261,656	4.5
	Personal Care Products & Services	78	\$569.05	\$63,164	1.1
	Education	62	\$876.84	\$97,329	1.7
	2000000		<i>qcicc<i>iccic<i>icicicicic<i>icc<i>icicicicc<i>icicic<i>icicicic<i>icic<i>icic<i>i</i></i></i></i></i></i></i></i></i></i>	437,023	2.17
	Smoking Products	98	\$399.83	\$44,381	0.8
	Lotteries & Pari-mutuel Losses	76	\$47.61	\$5,285	0.1
	Legal Fees	77	\$120.16	\$13,338	0.2
	Funeral Expenses	109	\$93.60	\$10,390	0.2
	Safe Deposit Box Rentals	82	\$3.23	\$359	0.0
	Checking Account/Banking Service Charges	70	\$23.32	\$2,589	0.0
	Cemetery Lots/Vaults/Maintenance Fees	75	\$7.79	\$865	0.0
	Accounting Fees	70	\$62.60	\$6,949	0.1
	Miscellaneous Personal Services/Advertising/Fine	63	\$37.84	\$4,200	0.1
	Occupational Expenses	57	\$38.20	\$4,240	0.1
	Expenses for Other Properties	73	\$100.80	\$11,189	0.1
	Credit Card Membership Fees	61	\$100.80	\$260	0.0
	Shopping Club Membership Fees	66	\$2.34		0.0
	Shopping Club Membership rees	00	\$10.97	\$1,218	0.0
	Support Payments/Cash Contributions/Gifts in Kind	81	\$1,879.36	\$208,609	3.6
	Life/Other Insurance	84	\$346.47	\$38,458	0.7
	Pensions and Social Security	77	\$5,247.24	\$582,444	10.09

Data Note: The Spending Potential Index (SPI) is household-based, and represents the amount spent for a product or service relative to a national average of 100. Detail may not sum to totals due to rounding.
 Source: Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021; Consumer Spending data are derived from the 2013 and 2014 Consumer Expenditure Surveys, Bureau of Labor Statistics.



Ellenton

Area: 0.79 square miles

Prepared by SWGRC

Population Summary	
2000 Total Population	
2010 Total Population	
2016 Total Population	
2016 Group Quarters	
2021 Total Population	
2016-2021 Annual Rate	0.4
Household Summary	
2000 Households	
2000 Average Household Size	2
2010 Households	
2010 Average Household Size	2
2016 Households	
2016 Average Household Size	2
2021 Households	
2021 Average Household Size	2
2016-2021 Annual Rate	0.3
2010 Families	
2010 Average Family Size	2
2016 Families	
2016 Average Family Size	2
2021 Families	
2021 Average Family Size	2
2016-2021 Annual Rate	0.2
Housing Unit Summary	
2000 Housing Units	
Owner Occupied Housing Units	74.
Renter Occupied Housing Units	14.
Vacant Housing Units	10.
2010 Housing Units	
Owner Occupied Housing Units	68.
Renter Occupied Housing Units	20.
Vacant Housing Units	10.
2016 Housing Units	10.
Owner Occupied Housing Units	65.
Renter Occupied Housing Units	23.
Vacant Housing Units	10.
2021 Housing Units	10.
Owner Occupied Housing Units	66.
Renter Occupied Housing Units	23.
Vacant Housing Units	10.
Median Household Income	10.
2016	\$50,
2021	\$56,
Median Home Value	\$50,
2016	\$83,
2021	\$103,
Per Capita Income	\$105,
2016	\$20,
2021	
Median Age	\$22,
2010	3
2010	3
	د 3
2021	-

Data Note: Household population includes persons not residing in group quarters. Average Household Size is the household population divided by total households. Persons in families include the householder and persons related to the householder by birth, marriage, or adoption. Per Capita Income represents the income received by all persons aged 15 years and over divided by the total population. **Source:** U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Ellenton Prepared by SWGRC Area: 0.79 square miles 2016 Households by Income Household Income Base 111 <\$15,000 10.8% \$15,000 - \$24,999 14.4% \$25,000 - \$34,999 12.6% \$35,000 - \$49,999 11.7% \$50,000 - \$74,999 25.2% \$75,000 - \$99,999 12.6% \$100,000 - \$149,999 5.4% \$150,000 - \$199,999 5.4% \$200,000+ 0.9% \$59,423 Average Household Income 2021 Households by Income Household Income Base 113 <\$15,000 11.5% \$15,000 - \$24,999 10.6% \$25,000 - \$34,999 7.1% \$35,000 - \$49,999 9.7% \$50,000 - \$74,999 28.3% \$75,000 - \$99,999 15.9% \$100,000 - \$149,999 8.0% \$150,000 - \$199,999 7.1% \$200,000+ 0.9% Average Household Income \$67,747 2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units by Value 81 Total <\$50,000 22.2% \$50,000 - \$99,999 42.0% \$100,000 - \$149,999 21.0% \$150,000 - \$199,999 7.4% \$200,000 - \$249,999 2.5% \$250,000 - \$299,999 1.2% \$300,000 - \$399,999 3.7% \$400,000 - \$499,999 1.2% \$500,000 - \$749,999 0.0% \$750,000 - \$999,999 0.0% \$1,000,000 + 0.0% Average Home Value \$102,439 2021 Owner Occupied Housing Units by Value 84 Total <\$50,000 19.0% \$50,000 - \$99,999 29.8% \$100,000 - \$149,999 25.0% \$150,000 - \$199,999 11.9% \$200,000 - \$249,999 4.8% \$250,000 - \$299,999 3.6% \$300,000 - \$399,999 4.8% \$400,000 - \$499,999 2.4% \$500,000 - \$749,999 0.0% \$750,000 - \$999,999 0.0% \$1,000,000 + 0.0%

Data Note: Income represents the preceding year, expressed in current dollars. Household income includes wage and salary earnings, interest dividends, net rents, pensions, SSI and welfare payments, child support, and alimony. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

\$125,588

Average Home Value



Ellenton Area: 0.79 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

2010 Population by Age	
Total	
0 - 4	
5 - 9	
10 - 14	
15 - 24	1
25 - 34	1
35 - 44	1
45 - 54	1
55 - 64	1
65 - 74	
75 - 84	
85 +	
18 +	7
2016 Population by Age	
Total	
0 - 4	
5 - 9	
10 - 14	
15 - 24	1
25 - 34	1
35 - 44	-
45 - 54	-
55 - 64	- 1
65 - 74	
75 - 84	
85 +	
18 +	7
2021 Population by Age	,
Total	
0 - 4	
5 - 9	
10 - 14	
15 - 24	1
25 - 34	1
25 - 34 35 - 44	
45 - 54	1
55 - 64	1
65 - 74	
75 - 84	
85 +	-
18 +	7
2010 Population by Sex	
Males	
Females	
2016 Population by Sex	
Males	
Females	
2021 Population by Sex	
Males	
Females	



Ellenton Area: 0.79 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

2010 Population by Race/Ethnicity	
Total	28
White Alone	78.09
Black Alone	3.20
American Indian Alone	0.40
Asian Alone	1.49
Pacific Islander Alone	0.00
Some Other Race Alone	16.00
Two or More Races	1.19
Hispanic Origin	29.99
Diversity Index	64.
2016 Population by Race/Ethnicity	
Total	29
White Alone	75.69
Black Alone	3.49
American Indian Alone	0.39
Asian Alone	1.79
Pacific Islander Alone	0.09
Some Other Race Alone	17.99
Two or More Races	1.00
Hispanic Origin	33.39
Diversity Index	68.
2021 Population by Race/Ethnicity	
Total	29
White Alone	73.39
Black Alone	3.49
American Indian Alone	0.39
Asian Alone	2.00
Pacific Islander Alone	0.00
Some Other Race Alone	19.69
Two or More Races	1.49
Hispanic Origin	37.00
Diversity Index	71.
2010 Population by Relationship and Household Type	
Total	28
In Households	90.09
In Family Households	80.49
Householder	23.89
Spouse	18.99
Child	32.49
Other relative	3.69
Nonrelative	2.19
In Nonfamily Households	9.6
In Group Quarters	10.04
Institutionalized Population	0.04
Noninstitutionalized Population	10.00

Data Note: Persons of Hispanic Origin may be of any race. The Diversity Index measures the probability that two people from the same area will be from different race/ ethnic groups. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Ellenton Area: 0.79 square miles

Prepared by SWGRC

2016 Population 25+ by Educational Attainment Total	
Less than 9th Grade	
9th - 12th Grade, No Diploma	
High School Graduate	
GED/Alternative Credential	
Some College, No Degree	
Associate Degree	
Bachelor's Degree	
Graduate/Professional Degree	
2016 Population 15+ by Marital Status	
Total	
Never Married	
Married	
Widowed	
Divorced	
2016 Civilian Population 16+ in Labor Force	
Civilian Employed	
Civilian Unemployed	
2016 Employed Population 16+ by Industry	
Total	
Agriculture/Mining	
Construction	
Manufacturing	
Wholesale Trade	
Retail Trade	
Transportation/Utilities	
Information	
Finance/Insurance/Real Estate	
Services	
Public Administration	
2016 Employed Population 16+ by Occupation	
Total	
White Collar	
Management/Business/Financial	
Professional	
Sales	
Administrative Support	
Services	
Blue Collar	
Farming/Forestry/Fishing	
Construction/Extraction	
Installation/Maintenance/Repair	
Production	
Transportation/Material Moving	
2010 Population By Urban/ Rural Status	
Total Population	
Population Inside Urbanized Area	
Population Inside Urbanized Cluster	
Rural Population	


Ellenton Area: 0.79 square miles

Prepared by SWGRC

2010 Households by Type Total	10
Households with 1 Person	19.49
Households with 1 Person	80.69
Family Households	75.09
Husband-wife Families	59.39
With Related Children	29.69
Other Family (No Spouse Present)	15.79
Other Family with Male Householder	4.69
With Related Children	2.89
Other Family with Female Householder	11.19
With Related Children	7.4%
Nonfamily Households	5.6%
All Households with Children	40.2%
Aultigenerational Households	4.79
Jnmarried Partner Households	4.79
Male-female	3.79
Same-sex	0.99
2010 Households by Size	0.57
Total	10
1 Person Household	19.8%
2 Person Household	34.9%
3 Person Household	15.19
4 Person Household	15.1%
5 Person Household	8.5%
6 Person Household	3.8%
7 + Person Household	2.8%
2010 Households by Tenure and Mortgage Status	2107
Total	10
Owner Occupied	76.6%
Owned with a Mortgage/Loan	34.6%
Owned Free and Clear	43.0%
Renter Occupied	23.4%
2010 Housing Units By Urban/ Rural Status	
Total Housing Units	12
Housing Units Inside Urbanized Area	0.0%
Housing Units Inside Urbanized Cluster	0.09
	100.0%
Rural Housing Units	

Data Note: Households with children include any households with people under age 18, related or not. Multigenerational households are families with 3 or more parentchild relationships. Unmarried partner households are usually classified as nonfamily households unless there is another member of the household related to the householder. Multigenerational and unmarried partner households are reported only to the tract level. Esri estimated block group data, which is used to estimate polygons or non-standard geography.



Ellenton Area: 0.79 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

Top 3 Tapestry Segments		
	1.	Southern Satellites (1
	2.	Top Tier (
	3.	Professional Pride (
2016 Consumer Spending		
Apparel & Services: Total \$		\$175,6
Average Spent		\$1,582
Spending Potential Index		
Education: Total \$		\$97,3
Average Spent		\$876
Spending Potential Index		
Entertainment/Recreation: Total \$		\$261,6
Average Spent		\$2,357
Spending Potential Index		
Food at Home: Total \$		\$458,0
Average Spent		\$4,127
Spending Potential Index		
Food Away from Home: Total \$		\$278,6
Average Spent		\$2,510
Spending Potential Index		
Health Care: Total \$		\$500,4
Average Spent		\$4,508
Spending Potential Index		
HH Furnishings & Equipment: Total \$		\$153,5
Average Spent		\$1,383
Spending Potential Index		
Personal Care Products & Services: Total	\$	\$63,1
Average Spent		\$569
Spending Potential Index		
Shelter: Total \$		\$1,239,3
Average Spent		\$11,164
Spending Potential Index		
Support Payments/Cash Contributions/Gi	ifts in Kind: Total \$	\$208,6
Average Spent		\$1,879
Spending Potential Index		
Travel: Total \$		\$143,4
Average Spent		\$1,292
Spending Potential Index		
Vehicle Maintenance & Repairs: Total \$		\$93,7
Average Spent		\$844
Spending Potential Index		

Data Note: Consumer spending shows the amount spent on a variety of goods and services by households that reside in the area. Expenditures are shown by broad budget categories that are not mutually exclusive. Consumer spending does not equal business revenue. Total and Average Amount Spent Per Household represent annual figures. The Spending Potential Index represents the amount spent in the area relative to a national average of 100.
 Source: Consumer Spending data are derived from the 2013 and 2014 Consumer Expenditure Surveys, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Esri.
 Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

SUPPLEMENTARY ECONOMIC STATISTICS/DATA (CITY OF DOERUN)



Business Summary

Doerun Area: 1.27 square miles

Data for all businesses in area				
Total Businesses:		44		
Total Employees:		232		
Total Residential Population:		808		1
Employee/Residential Population Ratio:		0.29:	1	
	Busine	esses	Emplo	oyees
by SIC Codes		Percent	Number	
Agriculture & Mining	2	4.5%	26	11.2
Construction	5	11.4%	18	7.8
Manufacturing	2	4.5%	13	5.6
Transportation	1	2.3%	5	2.2
Communication	1	2.3%	3	1.3
Utility	0	0.0%	0	0.0
Wholesale Trade	2	4.5%	16	6.9
Retail Trade Summary	10	22.7%	34	14.7
Home Improvement	1	2.3%	5	
General Merchandise Stores	2	4.5%	10	4.3
Food Stores	2	4.5%	5	
Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket	2	4.5%	7	
Apparel & Accessory Stores	0	0.0%	0	
Furniture & Home Furnishings	1	2.3%	1	0.4
Eating & Drinking Places	1	2.3%	3	1.3
Miscellaneous Retail	1	2.3%	3	1.3
Planar Territoria Dal Pateto Provinsia	7	15.9%	44	19.0
Finance, Insurance, Real Estate Summary		9.1%		
Banks, Savings & Lending Institutions	4	2.3%	2 38	16.4
Securities Brokers	2	4.5%	38	16.4
Insurance Carriers & Agents	2	2.3%	3	0.4
Real Estate, Holding, Other Investment Offices	1	2.3%	1	0.4
Services Summary	11	25.0%	58	25.0
Hotels & Lodging	0	0.0%	0	0.0
Automotive Services	2	4.5%	3	
Motion Pictures & Amusements	0	0.0%	0	
Health Services	2	4.5%	5	
Legal Services	0	0.0%	0	0.0
Education Institutions & Libraries	1	2.3%	38	16.4
Other Services	6	13.6%	11	4.7
Government	3	6.8%	15	6.5
Unclassified Establishments	1	2.3%	1	0.4
Totals	44	100.0%	232	100.0
Source: Copyright 2016 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved. Esri Total Residential Population forecasts for 2016.				

Prepared by SWG



Business Summary

Doerun Area: 1.27 square miles Prepared by SV

	Busin		Employe
by NAICS Codes		Percent	Number P
Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing & Hunting	2	4.5%	25
Mining	0	0.0%	0
Utilities	0	0.0%	0
Construction	5	11.4%	18
Manufacturing	2	4.5%	13
Wholesale Trade	2	4.5%	16
Retail Trade	9	20.5%	31
Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers	2	4.5%	6
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores	0	0.0%	0
Electronics & Appliance Stores	1	2.3%	1
Bldg Material & Garden Equipment & Supplies Dealers	1	2.3%	5
Food & Beverage Stores	2	4.5%	5
Health & Personal Care Stores	1	2.3%	2
Gasoline Stations	1	2.3%	1
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores	0	0.0%	0
Sport Goods, Hobby, Book, & Music Stores	0	0.0%	0
General Merchandise Stores	2	4.5%	10
Miscellaneous Store Retailers	0	0.0%	0
Nonstore Retailers	0	0.0%	0
Transportation & Warehousing	1	2.3%	6
Information	1	2.3%	3
Finance & Insurance	6	13.6%	42
Central Bank/Credit Intermediation & Related Activities	4	9.1%	2
Securities, Commodity Contracts & Other Financial	1	2.3%	38
Insurance Carriers & Related Activities; Funds, Trusts &	2	4.5%	3
Real Estate, Rental & Leasing	2	4.5%	2
Professional, Scientific & Tech Services	0	0.0%	0
Legal Services	0	0.0%	0
Management of Companies & Enterprises	0	0.0%	0
Administrative & Support & Waste Management & Remediation	0	0.0%	0
Educational Services	1	2.3%	37
Health Care & Social Assistance	2	4.5%	5
Arts, Entertainment & Recreation	0	0.0%	0
Accommodation & Food Services	1	2.3%	3
Accommodation	0	0.0%	0
Food Services & Drinking Places	1	2.3%	3
Other Services (except Public Administration)	7	15.9%	13
Automotive Repair & Maintenance	2	4.5%	2
Automotive Repair of Mantenance	3	6.8%	15
	5	0.070	15
Unclassified Establishments	1	2.3%	1
		2.0.10	-
Total	44	100.0%	232 1
Source: Copyright 2016 Infogroup, Inc. All rights reserved. Esri Total Residential Population forecasts for 2016.			



Disposable Income Profile

Prepared by SWGRC

Area: 1.27 square miles

Doerun

						2016-202	1 :	2016-2021
	Census 2010		2016	2	021	Change	e A	nnual Rate
Population	774		808		825	1	7	0.42%
Median Age	38.5		39.0		40.1	1.	1	0.56%
Households	305		316		322		5	0.38%
Average Household Size	2.54		2.56		2.56	0.0	2	0.00%
2016 Households by Disposable	Income					Nu	mber	Percent
Total							316	100.0%
<\$15,000							75	23.7%
\$15,000-\$24,999							59	18.7%
\$25,000-\$34,999							49	15.5%
\$35,000-\$49,999							49	15.5%
\$50,000-\$74,999							62	19.6%
\$75,000-\$99,999							17	5.4%
\$100,000-\$149,999							6	1.9%
\$150,000-\$199,999							0	0.0%
\$200,000+							0	0.0%
Median Disposable Income						\$2	9,197	
Average Disposable Income						\$3	6,470	
				Number	r of Househ	olds		
2016 Disposable Income by Age	of Householder	<25	25-34	35-44	45-54	55-64	65-74	75+
Total		10	44	51	60	59	49	43
<\$15,000		3	11	9	12	14	10	16
\$15,000-\$24,999		2	9	9	9	9	10	11
\$25,000-\$34,999		2	6	7	7	8	10	8
\$35,000-\$49,999		1	7	9	10	10	8	4
\$50,000-\$74,999		1	9	14	15	13	7	3
\$75,000-\$99,999		1	2	2	6	3	2	1
\$100,000-\$149,999		0	1	0	2	2	1	0
\$150,000-\$199,999		0	0	0	0	0	0	0
\$200,000+		0	0	0	0	0	0	0
		+25 000	420 447	#2E 000	\$37,833	\$32,638	400 114	#10 720
Median Disposable Income		\$25,000	\$28,447	\$35,000	\$37,033	\$32,030	\$28,114	\$18,736

Data Note: Disposable Income is after-tax household income. Disposable income forecasts are based on the Current Population Survey, U.S. Census Bureau. Detail may not sum to totals due to rounding Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021.



Household Budget Expenditures

Prepared by SWGRC

Doerun Area: 1.27 square miles

Demographic Summary			2016	2021
Population			808	825
Households			316	322
Families			230	233
Median Age			39.0	40.1
Median Household Income			\$34,389	\$39,859
	Spending Potential	Average Amount		
	Index	Spent	Total	Percent
Total Expenditures	59	\$38,859.85	\$12,279,712	100.0%
Food	61	\$4,895.42	\$1,546,952	12.6%
Food at Home	62	\$3,108.41	\$982,257	8.0%
Food Away from Home	58	\$1,787.01	\$564,695	4.6%
Alcoholic Beverages	54	\$278.28	\$87,937	0.7%
Housing	55	\$11,318.88	\$3,576,767	29.1%
Shelter	52	\$8,116.18	\$2,564,713	20.9%
Utilities, Fuel and Public Services	66	\$3,202.70	\$1,012,054	8.2%
Household Operations	56	\$967.80	\$305,826	2.5%
Housekeeping Supplies	63	\$444.31	\$140,402	1.1%
Household Furnishings and Equipment	58	\$1,017.74	\$321,606	2.6%
Apparel and Services	56	\$1,120.26	\$354,001	2.9%
Transportation	65	\$5,225.00	\$1,651,101	13.4%
Travel	53	\$983.67	\$310,840	2.5%
Health Care	66	\$3,486.03	\$1,101,584	9.0%
Entertainment and Recreation	60	\$1,757.35	\$555,323	4.5%
Personal Care Products & Services	57	\$418.43	\$132,225	1.1%
Education	47	\$666.10	\$210,487	1.7%
Smoking Products	82	\$337.13	\$106,533	0.9%
Lotteries & Pari-mutuel Losses	62	\$39.01	\$12,328	0.1%
Legal Fees	65	\$100.95	\$31,900	0.3%
Funeral Expenses	90	\$77.34	\$24,438	0.2%
Safe Deposit Box Rentals	71	\$2.78	\$877	0.0%
Checking Account/Banking Service Charges	57	\$18.81	\$5,944	0.0%
Cemetery Lots/Vaults/Maintenance Fees	47	\$4.91	\$1,552	0.0%
Accounting Fees	56	\$50.03	\$15,811	0.1%
Miscellaneous Personal Services/Advertising/Fine	50	\$30.25	\$9,560	0.1%
Occupational Expenses	47	\$31.89	\$10,078	0.1%
Expenses for Other Properties	65	\$89.59	\$28,312	0.2%
Credit Card Membership Fees	44	\$1.69	\$535	0.0%
Shopping Club Membership Fees	46	\$7.64	\$2,415	0.0%
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Support Payments/Cash Contributions/Gifts in Kind	62	\$1,434.17	\$453,197	3.7%
Life/Other Insurance	64	\$264.36	\$83,538	0.7%
Pensions and Social Security	56	\$3,790.01	\$1,197,644	9.8%

Data Note: The Spending Potential Index (SPI) is household-based, and represents the amount spent for a product or service relative to a national average of 100. Detail may not sum to totals due to rounding. Source: Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021; Consumer Spending data are derived from the 2013 and 2014 Consumer Expenditure Surveys, Bureau of Labor Statistics.



-

Market Profile

Area: 1.27 square miles

Doerun

Prepared by SWGR

Population Summary	
2000 Total Population	
2010 Total Population	
2016 Total Population	
2016 Group Quarters	
2021 Total Population	
2016-2021 Annual Rate	(
Household Summary	
2000 Households	
2000 Average Household Size	
2010 Households	
2010 Average Household Size	
2016 Households	
2016 Average Household Size	
2021 Households	
2021 Average Household Size	
2016-2021 Annual Rate	0
2010 Families	
2010 Average Family Size	
2016 Families	
2016 Average Family Size	
2021 Families	
2021 Average Family Size	
2016-2021 Annual Rate	0
Housing Unit Summary	
2000 Housing Units	
Owner Occupied Housing Units	6
Renter Occupied Housing Units	2
Vacant Housing Units	1
2010 Housing Units	1
Owner Occupied Housing Units	5
Renter Occupied Housing Units	2
	1
Vacant Housing Units	1
2016 Housing Units	-
Owner Occupied Housing Units	5
Renter Occupied Housing Units	2
Vacant Housing Units	1
2021 Housing Units	-
Owner Occupied Housing Units	5
Renter Occupied Housing Units	2
Vacant Housing Units	1
Median Household Income	42
2016	\$34
2021	\$3
Median Home Value	
2016	\$10
2021	\$12
Per Capita Income	
2016	\$1
2021	\$1
Median Age	
2010	
2016	
2021	

Data Note: Household population includes persons not residing in group quarters. Average Household Size is the household population divided by total households. Persons in families include the householder and persons related to the householder by birth, marriage, or adoption. Per Capita Income represents the income received by all persons aged 15 years and over divided by the total population.

Doerun Area: 1.27 square r	Prepared by S
2016 Households by Income	
Household Income Base	
<\$15,000	2
\$15,000 - \$24,999	1
\$25,000 - \$34,999	1
\$35,000 - \$49,999	1
\$50,000 - \$74,999	1
\$75,000 - \$99,999	1
\$100,000 - \$149,999	
\$150,000 - \$199,999	
\$200,000+	
Average Household Income	\$44
2021 Households by Income	
Household Income Base	
<\$15,000	2
\$15,000 - \$24,999	1
\$25,000 - \$34,999	
\$35,000 - \$49,999	1
\$50,000 - \$74,999	1
\$75,000 - \$99,999	1
\$100,000 - \$149,999	
\$150,000 - \$199,999	
\$200,000+	
Average Household Income	\$4
2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units by Value	
Total	2
<\$50,000	2
\$50,000 - \$99,999 \$100,000 - \$149,999	2
\$150,000 - \$199,999	2
\$200,000 - \$249,999	
\$250,000 - \$299,999	
\$300,000 - \$399,999	
\$400,000 - \$499,999	
\$500,000 - \$749,999	
\$750,000 - \$999,999	
\$1,000,000 +	
Average Home Value	\$124
2021 Owner Occupied Housing Units by Value	
Total	
<\$50,000	1
\$50,000 - \$99,999	1
\$100,000 - \$149,999	3
\$150,000 - \$199,999	
\$200,000 - \$249,999	
\$250,000 - \$299,999	1
\$300,000 - \$399,999	
\$400,000 - \$499,999	
\$500,000 - \$749,999	
\$750,000 - \$999,999	
\$1,000,000 +	¢14
Average Home Value	\$14

	•
OCI	
CD	
	_

Area: 1.27 square miles

Doerun

Prepared by SWGRC

2010 Population by Age	
Total	
0 - 4	
5 - 9	
10 - 14	
15 - 24	
25 - 34	
35 - 44	
45 - 54	
55 - 64	
65 - 74	
75 - 84	
85 +	
18 +	
2016 Population by Age	
Total	
0 - 4	
5 - 9	
10 - 14	
15 - 24	
25 - 34	
35 - 44	
45 - 54	
55 - 64	
65 - 74	
75 - 84	
85 +	
18 +	
2021 Population by Age	
Total	
0 - 4	
5 - 9	
10 - 14	
15 - 24	
25 - 34	
35 - 44	
45 - 54	
55 - 64	
65 - 74	
75 - 84	
85 +	
18 +	
2010 Population by Sex	
Males	
Females	
2016 Population by Sex	
Males	
Females	
2021 Population by Sex	
Males	
Females	

2010 Population by Race Total White Alone Black Alone	/Ethnicity	
White Alone		
Black Alone		75
DIGCK AIOTIC		21
American Indian Alone		0
Asian Alone		0
Pacific Islander Alone		0
Some Other Race Alone	1	2
Two or More Races		0
Hispanic Origin		3
Diversity Index		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
2016 Population by Race	Ethnicity	
Total		
White Alone Black Alone		73 22
American Indian Alone		0
Asian Alone		0
Pacific Islander Alone		0
Some Other Race Alone		2
Two or More Races		0
Hispanic Origin		4
Diversity Index		
2021 Population by Race	/Ethnicity	
Total		
White Alone		71
Black Alone		22
American Indian Alone		C
Asian Alone		1
Pacific Islander Alone		C
Some Other Race Alone	k	3
Two or More Races		0
Hispanic Origin		4
Diversity Index		
	ionship and Household Type	
Total		100
In Households		100
In Family Household Householder	•	28
Spouse		19
Child		33
Other relative		4
Nonrelative		2
In Nonfamily Househ	olds	
In Group Quarters		0
Institutionalized Pop	lation	0
Noninstitutionalized		C

Data Note: Persons of Hispanic Origin may be of any race. The Diversity Index measures the probability that two people from the same area will be from different race/ ethnic groups. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

Doerun Area: 1.27 square miles	Prepared by
2016 Population 25+ by Educational Attainment	
Total	
Less than 9th Grade	
9th - 12th Grade, No Diploma	
High School Graduate	
GED/Alternative Credential	
Some College, No Degree	
Associate Degree	
Bachelor's Degree	
Graduate/Professional Degree	
2016 Population 15+ by Marital Status Total	
Never Married	
Married	
Widowed	
Divorced	
2016 Civilian Population 16+ in Labor Force	
Civilian Employed	
Civilian Unemployed	
2016 Employed Population 16+ by Industry	
Total	
Agriculture/Mining	
Construction	
Manufacturing	
Wholesale Trade	
Retail Trade	
Transportation/Utilities	
Information	
Finance/Insurance/Real Estate Services	
Public Administration	
2016 Employed Population 16+ by Occupation	
Total	
White Collar	
Management/Business/Financial	
Professional	
Sales	
Administrative Support	
Services	
Blue Collar	
Farming/Forestry/Fishing	
Construction/Extraction	
Installation/Maintenance/Repair	
Production	
Transportation/Material Moving	
2010 Population By Urban/ Rural Status	
Total Population	
Population Inside Urbanized Area Population Inside Urbanized Cluster	
Rural Population	1
Kurai Population	

Doerun Area: 1.27 square miles	Prepared by
2010 Households by Type	
Total	
Households with 1 Person	
Households with 2+ People	
Family Households	
Husband-wife Families	
With Related Children	
Other Family (No Spouse Present)	
Other Family with Male Householder	
With Related Children	
Other Family with Female Householder	
With Related Children	
Nonfamily Households	
All Households with Children	
Multigenerational Households	
Unmarried Partner Households	
Male-female	
Same-sex	
2010 Households by Size	
Total	
1 Person Household	
2 Person Household	
3 Person Household	
4 Person Household	
5 Person Household	
6 Person Household	
7 + Person Household	
2010 Households by Tenure and Mortgage Status	
Total	
Owner Occupied	
Owned with a Mortgage/Loan	
Owned Free and Clear	
Renter Occupied	
2010 Housing Units By Urban/ Rural Status	
Total Housing Units	
Housing Units Inside Urbanized Area	
Housing Units Inside Urbanized Cluster	
Rural Housing Units	1

Data Note: Households with children include any households with people under age 18, related or not. Multigenerational households are families with 3 or more parent-child relationships. Unmarried partner households are usually classified as nonfamily households unless there is another member of the household related to the householder. Multigenerational and unmarried partner households are reported only to the tract level. Esri estimated block group data, which is used to estimate polygons or non-standard geography.
 Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Prepared by SWGRC

Doerun Area: 1.27 square miles

Top 3 Tapestry Segments		a tribut
	1.	Heartland Commu
	2.	Southern Satellites (
	3.	Top Tier
2016 Consumer Spending		
Apparel & Services: Total \$		\$354
Average Spent		\$1,12
Spending Potential Index		
Education: Total \$		\$210
Average Spent		\$66
Spending Potential Index		
Entertainment/Recreation: Total \$		\$555
Average Spent		\$1,75
Spending Potential Index		
Food at Home: Total \$		\$982
Average Spent		\$3,10
Spending Potential Index		
Food Away from Home: Total \$		\$564
Average Spent		\$1,78
Spending Potential Index		
Health Care: Total \$		\$1,101
Average Spent		\$3,48
Spending Potential Index		
HH Furnishings & Equipment: Total \$		\$321
Average Spent		\$1,01
Spending Potential Index		5 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Personal Care Products & Services: Total	\$	\$132
Average Spent		\$41
Spending Potential Index		
Shelter: Total \$		\$2,564
Average Spent		\$8,11
Spending Potential Index		
Support Payments/Cash Contributions/G	ifts in Kind: Total \$	\$453
Average Spent		\$1,43
Spending Potential Index		
Travel: Total \$		\$310
Average Spent		\$98
Spending Potential Index		410
Vehicle Maintenance & Repairs: Total \$		\$204
Average Spent		\$64
Spending Potential Index		۵ 04

Data Note: Consumer spending shows the amount spent on a variety of goods and services by households that reside in the area. Expenditures are shown by broad budget categories that are not mutually exclusive. Consumer spending does not equal business revenue. Total and Average Amount Spent Per Household represent annual figures. The Spending Potential Index represents the amount spent in the area relative to a national average of 100. Source: Consumer Spending data are derived from the 2013 and 2014 Consumer Expenditure Surveys, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Esri. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

SUPPLEMENTARY ECONOMIC STATISTICS/DATA (CITY OF FUNSTON)

Funston Area: 1.17 square miles			Prepare
	Busine		Er
by NAICS Codes Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing & Hunting	Number 1	Percent 5.0%	Num
Agincular (From Start), From Start (Start)	0	0.0%	
	0	0.0%	
Construction	4	20.0%	
Manufacturing	1	5.0%	
Wholesale Trade	0	0.0%	
Retail Trade	1	5.0%	
Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers	0	0.0%	
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores	0	0.0%	
Electronics & Appliance Stores	0	0.0%	
Bldg Material & Garden Equipment & Supplies Dealers	0	0.0%	
Food & Beverage Stores	0	0.0%	
Health & Personal Care Stores	0	0.0%	
Gasoline Stations	0	0.0%	
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores	0	0.0%	
Sport Goods, Hobby, Book, & Music Stores	0	0.0%	
General Merchandise Stores	0	0.0%	
Miscellaneous Store Retailers	1	5.0%	
Nonstore Retailers	0	0.0%	
Transportation & Warehousing	1	5.0%	
Information	0	0.0%	
Finance & Insurance	1	5.0%	
Central Bank/Credit Intermediation & Related Activities	1	5.0%	
Securities, Commodity Contracts & Other Financial	0	0.0%	
Insurance Carriers & Related Activities; Funds, Trusts &	0	0.0%	
Real Estate, Rental & Leasing	1	5.0%	
Professional, Scientific & Tech Services	0	0.0%	
Legal Services	0	0.0%	
Management of Companies & Enterprises	0	0.0%	
Administrative & Support & Waste Management & Remediation	2	10.0%	
Educational Services	0	0.0%	
Health Care & Social Assistance	1	5.0%	
Arts, Entertainment & Recreation	0	0.0%	
Accommodation & Food Services	1	5.0%	
Accommodation	0	0.0%	
Food Services & Drinking Places	1	5.0%	
Other Services (except Public Administration)	3	15.0%	
Automotive Repair & Maintenance	1	5.0%	
Public Administration	3		
Unclassified Establishments	1	5.0%	
		100.0%	



Business Summary

Funston Area: 1.17 square miles

Data for all businesses in area	
Total Businesses:	
Total Employees:	
Total Residential Population:	
Employee/Residential Population Ratio:	
by SIC Codes	Busine Number
Agriculture & Mining	Nulliber
Construction	- 4
Manufacturing	1
Transportation	1
Communication	0
Utility	0
Wholesale Trade	0
Retail Trade Summary	2
Home Improvement	0
General Merchandise Stores	0
Food Stores	0
Auto Dealers, Gas Stations, Auto Aftermarket	0
Apparel & Accessory Stores	0



Median Disposable Income

Average Disposable Income

Disposable Income Profile

Prepared by SWGRC

Funston Area: 1.17 square miles

	Census 2010		2016	20	021	2016-2021 Change	4	2016-2021 Annual Rate
Population	449		463	4	467	4		0.17%
Median Age	32.2		33.1	3	4.3	1.2		0.71%
Households	154		157	3	158	1		0.13%
Average Household Size	2.92		2.95	2	.96	0.01		0.07%
2016 Households by Disposal	ole Income					Num	ıber	Percent
Total							157	100.0%
<\$15,000							28	17.8%
\$15,000-\$24,999							21	13.4%
\$25,000-\$34,999							22	14.0%
\$35,000-\$49,999							28	17.8%
\$50,000-\$74,999							34	21.7%
\$75,000-\$99,999							13	8.3%
\$100,000-\$149,999							7	4.5%
\$150,000-\$199,999							2	1.3%
\$200,000+							2	1.3%
Median Disposable Income						\$38	,015	
Average Disposable Income						\$47	,183	
				Number	of Househo	olds		
2016 Disposable Income by A	ge of Householder	<25	25-34	35-44	45-54	55-64	65-74	75+
Total		7	30	29	28	29	21	14
<\$15,000		2	7	4	4	5	3	3
\$15,000-\$24,999		1	4	3	3	3	3	3
\$25,000-\$34,999		1	4	4	3	3	4	3
\$35,000-\$49,999		1	5	6	5	6	4	2
\$50,000-\$74,999		1	6	8	7	6	4	1
\$75,000-\$99,999		0	2	2	3	3	2	(
		0	-	1	2	2	1	
\$100,000-\$149,999		0	1	1	2	2	1	(
\$100,000-\$149,999 \$150,000-\$199,999		0	0	0	0	0	0	

\$25,000

\$33,674

\$33,394

\$41,035

\$40,263 \$48,777

\$46,099

\$41,035

\$56,566 \$52,884

\$36,309

\$47,884

\$25,000 \$30,470

Data Note: Disposable Income is after-tax household income. Disposable income forecasts are based on the Current Population Survey, U.S. Census Bureau. Detail may not sum to totals due to rounding
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021.



Household Budget Expenditures

Funston Area: 1.17 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

Demographic Summary			2016	2
Population			463	
Households			157	
Families			122	
Median Age			33.1	
Median Household Income			\$46,653	\$52
	Spending Potential	Average Amount		
	Index	Spent	Total	Pere
Total Expenditures	77	\$50,904.93	\$7,992,074	100
Food	79	\$6,378.55	\$1,001,433	12
Food at Home	79	\$3,929.80	\$616,978	7
Food Away from Home	79	\$2,448.76	\$384,455	4
Alcoholic Beverages	74	\$381.16	\$59,842	C
Housing	76	\$15,506.62	\$2,434,540	30
Shelter	74	\$11,595.92	\$1,820,560	22
Utilities, Fuel and Public Services	80	\$3,910.70	\$613,980	7
Household Operations	76	\$1,304.06	\$204,737	2
Housekeeping Supplies	79	\$558.42	\$87,672	1
Household Furnishings and Equipment	78	\$1,370.07	\$215,101	2
Apparel and Services	78	\$1,560.61	\$245,016	3
Transportation	80	\$6,492.31	\$1,019,292	12
Travel	72	\$1,347.57	\$211,568	2
Health Care	78	\$4,108.66	\$645,059	8
Entertainment and Recreation	77	\$2,252.76	\$353,684	4
Personal Care Products & Services	78	\$569.21	\$89,366	1
Education	65	\$923.05	\$144,919	1
Smoking Products	81	\$331.35	\$52,022	0
Lotteries & Pari-mutuel Losses	74	\$46.50	\$7,301	0
Legal Fees	78	\$121.46	\$19,069	0
Funeral Expenses	78	\$67.32	\$10,570	0
Safe Deposit Box Rentals	73	\$2.87	\$450	0
Checking Account/Banking Service Charges	74	\$24.59	\$3,860	0
Cemetery Lots/Vaults/Maintenance Fees	78	\$8.13	\$1,277	0
Accounting Fees	69	\$62.38	\$9,793	C
Miscellaneous Personal Services/Advertising/Fine	82	\$49.13	\$7,714	0
Occupational Expenses	69	\$46.06	\$7,231	0
Expenses for Other Properties	87	\$120.05	\$18,848	C
Credit Card Membership Fees	68	\$2.63	\$413	0
Shopping Club Membership Fees	76	\$12.71	\$1,996	C
			. ,	
Support Payments/Cash Contributions/Gifts in Kind	77	\$1,779.86	\$279,438	3
Life/Other Insurance	75	\$309.08	\$48,525	C
Pensions and Social Security	76	\$5,167.74	\$811,335	10

Data Note: The Spending Potential Index (SPI) is household-based, and represents the amount spent for a product or service relative to a national average of 100. Detail may not sum to totals due to rounding. Source: Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021; Consumer Spending data are derived from the 2013 and 2014 Consumer Expenditure Surveys, Bureau of Labor Statistics.



Funston Area: 1.17 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

Population Summary	
2000 Total Population	
2010 Total Population	
2016 Total Population	
2016 Group Quarters	
2021 Total Population	
2016-2021 Annual Rate	
Household Summary	
2000 Households	
2000 Average Household Size	
2010 Households	
2010 Average Household Size	
2016 Households	
2016 Average Household Size	
2021 Households	
2021 Average Household Size	
2016-2021 Annual Rate	
2010 Families	
2010 Average Family Size	
2016 Families	
2016 Average Family Size	
2021 Families	
2021 Average Family Size	
2016-2021 Annual Rate	
Housing Unit Summary	
2000 Housing Units	
Owner Occupied Housing Units	
Renter Occupied Housing Units	
Vacant Housing Units	
2010 Housing Units	
Owner Occupied Housing Units	
Renter Occupied Housing Units	
Vacant Housing Units	
2016 Housing Units	
Owner Occupied Housing Units	
Renter Occupied Housing Units	
Vacant Housing Units	
2021 Housing Units	
Owner Occupied Housing Units	
Renter Occupied Housing Units	
Vacant Housing Units	
Median Household Income	
2016	\$4
2021	\$
Median Home Value	
2016	\$
2021	\$1
Per Capita Income	
2016	\$
2021	\$
Median Age	+
2010	
2016	
2021	

Data Note: Household population includes persons not residing in group quarters. Average Household Size is the household population divided by total households. Persons in families include the householder and persons related to the householder by birth, marriage, or adoption. Per Capita Income represents the income received by all persons aged 15 years and over divided by the total population. **Source:** U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Funston Area: 1.17 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

2016 Households by Income	
Household Income Base	
<\$15,000	1
\$15,000 - \$24,999	1
\$25,000 - \$34,999	1
\$35,000 - \$49,999	1
\$50,000 - \$74,999	2
\$75,000 - \$99,999	1
\$100,000 - \$149,999	
\$150,000 - \$199,999	
\$200,000+	
Average Household Income	\$58
2021 Households by Income	
Household Income Base	
<\$15,000	1
\$15,000 - \$24,999	1
\$25,000 - \$34,999	
\$35,000 - \$49,999	1
\$50,000 - \$74,999	2
\$75,000 - \$99,999	1
\$100,000 - \$149,999	1
\$150,000 - \$199,999	
\$200,000+	
Average Household Income	\$64
2016 Owner Occupied Housing Units by Value	
Total	
<\$50,000	2
\$50,000 - \$99,999	3
\$100,000 - \$149,999	2
\$150,000 - \$199,999	
\$200,000 - \$249,999	
\$250,000 - \$299,999	
\$300,000 - \$399,999	
\$400,000 - \$499,999	
\$500,000 - \$749,999	
\$750,000 - \$999,999	
\$1,000,000 +	
Average Home Value	\$112
2021 Owner Occupied Housing Units by Value	
Total	
<\$50,000	2
\$50,000 - \$99,999	2
\$100,000 - \$149,999	2
\$150,000 - \$199,999	1
\$200,000 - \$249,999	
\$250,000 - \$299,999	
\$300,000 - \$399,999	
\$400,000 - \$499,999	
\$500,000 - \$749,999	
\$750,000 - \$999,999	
\$1,000,000 +	
Average Home Value	\$13

Data Note: Income represents the preceding year, expressed in current dollars. Household income includes wage and salary earnings, interest dividends, net rents, pensions, SSI and welfare payments, child support, and alimony. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Area: 1.17 square miles

Funston

Prepared by SWGRC

Total	
0 - 4	
5 - 9	
10 - 14	
15 - 24	1
25 - 34	1
35 - 44	1
45 - 54	1
55 - 64	1
65 - 74	
75 - 84	
85 +	
18 +	7
2016 Population by Age	
Total	
0 - 4	
5 - 9	
10 - 14	
15 - 24	1
25 - 34	1
35 - 44	1
45 - 54	1
55 - 64	1
65 - 74	
75 - 84	
85 +	
18 +	7
2021 Population by Age	
Total	
0 - 4	
5 - 9	
10 - 14	
15 - 24 25 - 34	1
25 - 34 35 - 44	1
45 - 54	1
55 - 64	1
65 - 74	1
75 - 84	
85 +	
18 +	7
2010 Population by Sex	
Males	
Females	
2016 Population by Sex	
Males	
Females	
2021 Population by Sex	
Males	
Females	



Funston Area: 1.17 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

2010 Population by Race/Ethnicity	
Total	
White Alone	5
Black Alone	
American Indian Alone	
Asian Alone	
Pacific Islander Alone	
Some Other Race Alone	:
Two or More Races	
Hispanic Origin	:
Diversity Index	
2016 Population by Race/Ethnicity	
Total	
White Alone	(
Black Alone	
American Indian Alone	
Asian Alone	
Pacific Islander Alone	
Some Other Race Alone	:
Two or More Races	
Hispanic Origin	:
Diversity Index	
2021 Population by Race/Ethnicity	
Total	
White Alone	
Black Alone	
American Indian Alone	
Asian Alone	
Pacific Islander Alone	
Some Other Race Alone	
Two or More Races	
Hispanic Origin	2.
Diversity Index	
2010 Population by Relationship and Household Type	
Total	
In Households	1
In Family Households	
Householder	
Spouse	
Child	
Other relative	
Nonrelative	
In Nonfamily Households	
In Group Quarters	
Institutionalized Population	
Noninstitutionalized Population	

Data Note: Persons of Hispanic Origin may be of any race. The Diversity Index measures the probability that two people from the same area will be from different race/ ethnic groups. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

Market Profile	
Funston Area: 1.17 square miles	Prepared by
2016 Population 25+ by Educational Attainment	
Total	
Less than 9th Grade	
9th - 12th Grade, No Diploma	
High School Graduate	
GED/Alternative Credential	
Some College, No Degree	
Associate Degree	
Bachelor's Degree	
Graduate/Professional Degree	
2016 Population 15+ by Marital Status	
Total	
Never Married	
Married	
Widowed	
Divorced	
2016 Civilian Population 16+ in Labor Force	
Civilian Employed	
Civilian Unemployed	
2016 Employed Population 16+ by Industry	
Total	
Agriculture/Mining	
Construction	
Manufacturing	
Wholesale Trade	
Retail Trade	
Transportation/Utilities	
Information	
Finance/Insurance/Real Estate	
Services	
Public Administration	
2016 Employed Population 16+ by Occupation	
Total	
White Collar	
Management/Business/Financial	
Professional	
Sales	
Administrative Support Services	
Blue Collar	
Farming/Forestry/Fishing	
Construction/Extraction	
Installation/Maintenance/Repair	
Production	
Transportation/Material Moving	
2010 Population By Urban/ Rural Status	
Total Population	
Population Inside Urbanized Area	
Population Inside Orbanized Alea	
Rural Population	

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.

Market Profile Funston Area: 1.17 square miles	Prepared by SW
2010 Hausahalda hu Tura	
2010 Households by Type Total	1
Households with 1 Person	17.
Households with 2+ People	82.
Family Households	78.
Husband-wife Families	59.
With Related Children	30.
Other Family (No Spouse Present)	18.
Other Family with Male Householder	6.
With Related Children	3.
Other Family with Female Householder	11
With Related Children	9.
Nonfamily Households	4.
All Households with Children	44.
Multigenerational Households	6.
Unmarried Partner Households	7.
Male-female	6.
Same-sex	0.
2010 Households by Size	
Total	
1 Person Household	17.
2 Person Household	29.
3 Person Household	18.
4 Person Household	14.
5 Person Household	10.
6 Person Household	4.
7 + Person Household	3.
2010 Households by Tenure and Mortgage Status	
Total	
Owner Occupied	70.
Owned with a Mortgage/Loan	39.
Owned Free and Clear	31.
Renter Occupied	29.
2010 Housing Units By Urban/ Rural Status	
Total Housing Units	:
Housing Units Inside Urbanized Area	0.
Housing Units Inside Urbanized Cluster	13.
Rural Housing Units	86.

Data Note: Households with children include any households with people under age 18, related or not. Multigenerational households are families with 3 or more parentchild relationships. Unmarried partner households are usually classified as nonfamily households unless there is another member of the household related to the householder. Multigenerational and unmarried partner households are reported only to the tract level. Esri estimated block group data, which is used to estimate polygons or non-standard geography. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.



Funston Area: 1.17 square miles Prepared by SWGRC

op 3 Tapestry Segments	1.	Middleburg (
	2.	Down the Road (1
	3.	Top Tier (
016 Consumer Spending	5.	
Apparel & Services: Total \$		\$245,0
Average Spent		\$1,560
Spending Potential Index		\$1,300
Education: Total \$		\$144,9
Average Spent		\$923
Spending Potential Index		ψ525
Entertainment/Recreation: Total \$		\$353,6
Average Spent		\$2,252
Spending Potential Index		42/232
Food at Home: Total \$		\$616,9
Average Spent		\$3,929
Spending Potential Index		40/020
Food Away from Home: Total \$		\$384,4
Average Spent		\$2,448
Spending Potential Index		4-7
Health Care: Total \$		\$645,0
Average Spent		\$4,108
Spending Potential Index		
HH Furnishings & Equipment: Total \$		\$215,:
Average Spent		\$1,370
Spending Potential Index		
Personal Care Products & Services: Total \$		\$89,3
Average Spent		\$569
Spending Potential Index		
Shelter: Total \$		\$1,820,5
Average Spent		\$11,595
Spending Potential Index		
Support Payments/Cash Contributions/Gifts in Kind: Tot	al \$	\$279,4
Average Spent		\$1,779
Spending Potential Index		
Travel: Total \$		\$211,5
Average Spent		\$1,347
Spending Potential Index		
Vehicle Maintenance & Repairs: Total \$		\$126,5
Average Spent		\$805
Spending Potential Index		

Data Note: Consumer spending shows the amount spent on a variety of goods and services by households that reside in the area. Expenditures are shown by broad budget categories that are not mutually exclusive. Consumer spending does not equal business revenue. Total and Average Amount Spent Per Household represent annual figures. The Spending Potential Index represents the amount spent in the area relative to a national average of 100. Source: Consumer Spending drom the 2013 and 2014 Consumer Expenditure Surveys, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Esri. Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2010 Summary File 1. Esri forecasts for 2016 and 2021 Esri converted Census 2000 data into 2010 geography.